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IFRS

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
328,650 321,102 283,585 256,964 228,064
5,488,455 5,362,403 4,735,870 4,291,299 3,808,669
145,262 135,226 123,924 109,212 100,234
2,425,875 2,258,274 2,069,531 1,823,840 1,673,908
473,912 456,328 407,509 366,176 328,298
7,914,330 7,620,678 6,805,400 6,115,139 5,482,577
(185,401) (177,788) (172,314) (159,729) (140,412)

(3,096,197)  (2,969,060) (2,877,644)  (2,667,474)  (2,344,880)

(59,274) (48,381) (23,510) (19,387) (19,355)
(989,876) (807,963) (392,617) (323,763) (323,229)
229,237 230,159 211,685 187,060 168,531
3,828,258 3,843,655 3,535,140 3,123,902 2,814,468
231,571 231,478 212,777 187,673 169,047
3,867,236 3,865,683 3,553,376 3,134,139 2,823,085
179,417 177,198 163,741 145,746 130,848
2,996,264 2,959,207 2,734,475 2,433,958 2,185,162
170,845 169,595 156,911 139,656 124,622
2,853,112 2,832,237 2,620,414 2,332,255 2,081,187
55,934 54,755 48,851 43,268
934,098 914,409 815,812 722,576

47/504



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)

OooooOodd

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
16,815,597 15,251,382 13,874,299 12,680,615 11,829,789
280,820,470 254,698,079 231,700,793 211,766,271 197,557,476
9,135,860 8,483,275 7,607,791 6,864,696 6,342,814
152,568,862 141,670,693 127,050,110 114,640,423 105,924,994
(200, 665) (188,531) (168,049) (154,656) (139,676)
(3,351,106)  (3.,148,468)  (2,806,418)  (2,582,755)  (2,332,589)
3,595,095 2,710,375 2,403,631 2,272,724 2,000,759
60,038,087 45,263,263 40,140,638 37,954,491 33,412,675
15,457,992 14,067,954 12,912,822 11,819,073 11,072,652
258,148,466 234,934,832 215,644,127 197,378,519 184,913,288
11,729,171 10,885,223 10,097,786 9,173,995 8,817,961
195,877,156 181,783,224 168,633,026 153,205,717 147,259,949
1,304,946 1,140,859 923,916 824,677 723,914
21,792,598 19,052,345 15,429,397 13,772,106 12,089,364
294,388 288,731 279,365 279,147 279,147
4,916,280 4,821,808 4,665,396 4,661,755 4,661,755
0.56 0.61 0.56 0.50 0.45
9.35 10.19 9.35 8.35 7.52
0.175 0.19 0.196 0.175 0.155
2.92 3.17 3.27 2.92 2.59
4.09 3.70 3.31 2.95 2.59
68.30 61.79 55.28 49.27 43.25
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2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
1.12 1.22 1.23 1.19 1.17
14.53 17.28 18.04 18.13 18.32
2.12 2.25 2.24 2.15 2.12
30.65 29.63 30.41 29.83 30.53
28.30 28.57 30.61 31.73 32.45
10
Tier 1,197,868 1,068,706 925,037
Tier 103,159 72,923 698
Tier 212,937 250,714 262,768
Tier 11.10 10.61 9.69
Tier 12.07 11.35 9.70
14.06 13.87 12.46 13.63 12.98
11 1.43 1.18 0.9 0.95 1.00
12 1.43 1.18 0.9 0.95 1.00
13 153.30 187.60 229.35 236.30 220.75
14 0.63 0.58 0.32 0.29 0.32
15 2.62 2.68 2.62 2.62 2.56
/ 6.4936 6.1190 6.0969 6.2855 6.3009
/ 7.0952 7.4556 8.4189 8.3176 8.1625
/ 0.8378 0.7889 0.7862 0.8108 0.8107
(€H) ) (
(@)
Q)
) -
®) -
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V.19 42.8

2015 12 31 310,042 285,059
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2015

2015 2014
440,847 93.02% 429,300 94.08%
206,231 43.52% 209,912 46.00%
135,652 28.62% 126,250 27.67%
98,964 20.88% 93,138 20.41%
22,062 4.66% 18,231 4.00%
11,003 2.32% 8,797 1.92%

473,912 100.00% 456,328 100.00%
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31 2013 12 31

4,818,850 4,431,867 4,179,257
314,162 265,826 284,253
1,310,194 1,213,479 957,368
6,443,206 5,911,172 5,420,878
3,982,160 3,688,329 3,508,797
257,439 198,621 188,356
759,726 754,215 683,406
4,999,325 4,641,165 4,380,559
4,402,258 4,021,257 3,688,976
398,103 500,208 503,179
1,569,551 1,524,131 1,247,184
6,369,912 6,045,596 5,439,339
2,397,327 2,082,757 1,864,654
1,406 1,551 1,371
367,215 353,371 302,427
2,765,948 2,437,679 2,168,452
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2015 134.19 3.68 3,779.21
2015 2014
) ()
183,928 48.67% 192,006 52.68%
118,849 31.45% 112,960 30.99%
73,820 19.53% 58,524 16.05%
1,324 0.35% 1,012 0.28%
377,921 100.00% 364,502 100.00%
2015 80.78 4.21 1,839.28
CD BOC-
2015 12 31 4 8,188.50
3,869.83 8.73 483.80

2025
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2015 12 31 4 4,022.58
3,810.01 9.47 613.07
2015 3.98 1.67
CD
M&A
2015 5.39
2.93
CRI ORI 2015 White Paper

on RMB Internationalisation — RMB along the “ Belt and Road”
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Finance Provider (Domestic)

Euromoney

110

76
QFII

2015 12 31

Best Trade Finance Provider (Domestic)

Best Global RMB Bank 12

Best Domestic Cash Manager in China

179 1,600

1,449

ROFII
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Three No-Less-Thans

2015 12 31
289

2014

2015 12 31

Award
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2015
Three No-Less-Thans
BOC Wang Luo Tong Bao Wo Finance BOC Wang Rong Yi
1 1,457 1,075
1 8,130
Yinjianfa[2014]

387.35 80.51 26.24

322.48 32.39 1,318
Best Performance Award Contribution
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2015
58.89 5.21 1,188.49
CD
24

2015 12 31 3 9,821.60

2,938.31 7.97 396.45

11
IT e

2015 12 31 2 3,973.27

3,145.70 15.10
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QoL
2015 12 31 7,204 303
34
10 86,500
8,100 2015 Excellent
Competitiveness-Wealth Management Bank in 2015 Golden Medal Private Banking
of the Year
ETC
e
Colourful Life APP
020

BOC VIP Day Global Splendours in One Card BOC Overseas E-

shopping More Instalments, More Gifts

IC

EMV
Global Travel Card

30 70
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2015 12 31
2015 12 31 2014 12 31

41,947.56 36,193.04 15.90%
5,328.18 4,786.94 11.31%
7,397.19 6,069.07 21.88%

2015 2014
27,267.53 21,240.41 28.38%
14,417.24 13,382.30 7.73%
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2015

24
LBMA

72

3,981

G3

LBMA

UAE

382

2015 22
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CD
Fast Communication
2015 5,589
M&A
CIFED
44.99 83.93
QDLP QDIE
QDI QFII RQFII
GCS
GCS 2015
12 31 6.86 The Asset
Best Domestic Custody- China CFO Chinese Best CFO Asset Custodian Bank
Xin Nong Dai 50
2015 12 31 76 64 17
31 78

33
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2015 12 31 73
71.36 150.80 152.44 49.33
50.78 91.44 1.42
3.40 239.33

Best Agricultural Community Banks of the Year
Award Rural Internet Financial Products Innovation
Award Competitive Excellent Rural Bank Award

Outstanding Bank of the Year Award

2015
2015 12 31
3,502.05 2,957.65
2015 73.21 19.72
2015 12 31
16 644 46 18
500
2015 2.09 2.46
17
Splendid Southeast Asia
Splendid Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan Splendid South Korea Splendid Japan Splendid USA

Global Splendours BOC
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Overseas E-shopping

UnionPay
VISA Mastercard 2015 12 31 16
40
10
FinanceAsia Achievement Awards 2015 — Borrower of The Year
2015 12 31 1.18
2015
330.96 37.43
2015
20 10
CIPS CIPS
ccp 0TC
ccp
e e
BOC
BOCHK
2015 BOCHK

1PO
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BOCHK
UnionPay
20.5
360
Banking
NCB
ASEAN BOCHK
BOCHK
ASEAN
2015 12 18 BOCHK NCB 680
BOCHK The Asian Banker Strongest Bank in Asia Pacific and Hong Kong
Bank in Hong Kong The Banker Bank of the Year in Hong Kong

Best SME’ s Partner Award

BOCHK BOCHK
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10

ASEAN

Enrich

Best Retail



BOCI
BOCI
153
BOCI
B&D
BOCI
BOCI
BOCI
LME
BOCI
BOCI FinanceAsia
Asset

Education Website on Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect

Bauhinia Award 2015— Best IPO Investment Bank

2015 12 31 BOCI
42.48
11
2015
BOCI
BOCI
ICE Europe

Best Chinese DCM House in Hong Kong

Best Bond House Domestic-Hong Kong
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771.9
50
BOCI
CME
Best IPO The

Best Investor

Chinese Securities Golden

Excellent Securities Service
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oooooog
in Hong Kong— Gold Award for Cross-border Service Most Popular Securities
Broker among Investors both in Mainland China and Hong Kong
BOCI
BOCI 2015 12 31
481.03 100.75 2015
20.99
BOCI
BOCI Best Asset Management Securities Company Best Financial
Advisers Project Team in China CcDC Outstanding Member of
China’ s Bond Market and Best Short-term Financing Bill Issuer
BOCIM
BOCIM 2015 12 31 BOCIM
20.12 14.85 7.43 96
BOCIM AUM 97 6,764
2,778 73
2015 BOCIM Golden Bull Investment Managers Golden FundeTOP Fund Managers Five-
year Sustainable Return Star Fund
BOCIM
BOCG
BOCG 2015 12 31 BOCG
76.13 38.90 2015 BOCG
20.20 1.23
2015

10.67 52.84
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BOCHK
MTR
BOCG
BOCG
BOCG 2015 12 31 BOCG
982.82 66.89 2015 226.63
8.29
IncomeRich Annuity Insurance Plan
IncomeShine Whole Life Coupon Plan StepUp Whole Life Insurance Plan Forever Glorious ULife
Plan
BOCG Bloomberg Businessweek Retirement Insurance Planning— Excellence Award
Saving Insurance Plan— Outstanding Award Life Insurance — Outstanding Award
Metro Finance Metro Finance Digital
RMB Business Outstanding Awards 2015- Outstanding Insurance Business
BOC
BOC 2015 12 31 BOC
119.80 50.16 2015 46.08
2.82
166.52
58.634 2015 90
7,627.08

50
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2015

2015
BOC-
BOC-
394
BOCG
BOCG
2015
BOC
BOC

176

68.99

80.31

88.4

Zunxiang Huyou

BOCG

24

BOC

Zunxiang Wuyou

851.51

2015 12 31
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BOC

2015 12 31
2015

2014

Zunxiang Jiacheng

BOCG

BOC

oOoOooodn

BOC-
48.32

13

NPA

546.54

2015
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3.43 2015 12 31 BOC 227
43 30 62 BOC
3.3
BOC 144A S
50 EMTN GMTN
7.5
S&P BOC A-

2015 24 21 18

2015 22 30 2015 241

2021

75/504



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn

2016

13

BOCHK

2016 12
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2015 new normal
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BIS
CBRC Guidelines for Loan Credit Risk
Classification
13
2015 1,308.97 304.03
1.43 0.25 2,006.65
121.34 153.30
34.30 1,276.35 305.78
1.77 0.30
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2,291.65 285.11 2.51
0.14
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
8,775,798 96.06% 8,182,127 96.45%
229,165 2.51% 200,654 2.37%
58,741 0.64% 54,369 0.64%
41,516 0.45% 24,705 0.29%
30,640 0.34% 21,420 0.25%
9,135,860 100.00% 8,483,275 100.00%
130,897 1.43% 100,494 1.18%
6,854,159 95.21% 6,319,759 95.67%
217,300 3.02% 188,957 2.86%
57,049 0.79% 52,925 0.80%
40,612 0.56% 22,991 0.35%
29,974 0.42% 21,141 0.32%
7,199,094 100.00% 6,605,773 100.00%
127,635 1.77% 97,057 1.47%

2015 2014 2013
2.22 1.92 1.68
22.07 9.89 10.52
48.25 42.38 31.09
46.25 46.94 8.86
IAS 39
2015 1,302.37
304.48 1.43
0.25 1,276.35

305.78 1.77

0.30
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26.02 1.30
0.13 0.02
2015 2014 2013
99,789 73,119 65,455
71,325 60,197 31,658
(40,877) (33,527) (23,994)
130,237 99,789 73,119
97,057 70,433 62,844
69,422 58,577 30,325
(38,844) (31,953) (22,736)
127,635 97,057 70,433
2015 12 31 2014 12 31 2013 12 31
7,011,867 112,983 6,339,052 86,914 5,741,454 61,452
2,123,993 17,254 2,144,223 12,875 1,866,337 11,667
9,135,860 130,237 8,483,275 99,789 7,607,791 73,119
6,799,585 112,763 6,104,014 86,205 5,553,630 61,184
399,509 14,872 501,759 10,852 504,550 9,249
7,199,094 127,635 6,605,773 97,057 6,058,180 70,433
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1. VI.
2015 558.72 92.66
0.63 0.05 533.27
97.53 0.77 0.08
2015 2014 2013
12 31 12 31 12 31
10 2.3 2.4 2.1
10 50 14.0 14.7 14.2
10 10 +
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ABS
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33,899

30,979

27,014

22,793

19,026

16,503

16,494

14,653

14,129

13,806

.37%

.34%

.30%

.25%

.21%

.18%

.18%

.16%

.15%

.15%

VI.



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn

25
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
25
(2,046) (191) (90) (239) (1,240) (149) 86 132
25
2,046 191 90 239 1,240 149 (86) (132)
CBRC
2015

25
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2015

2015 2014 2013

12 31 12 31 12 31

25 48.6 49.9 48.0
25 62.0 59.9 62.2
- 1.5 2.3 1.7
- 19.0 14.6 23.8
8 1.1 0.3 0.2
8 0.1 0.4 2.3
2015

1 VI.
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
1,940,702 2,042,886
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(5,673,516) (5,015,706)

1 (1,163,853) (804,780)

1 3 (236,711) (97,853)
3 1 734,148 230,541
1 5 2,009,358 1,696,225
5 3,747,477 3,132,115
1,357,605 1,183,428

CBRC Guidelines for Reputational Risk Management of
Commercial Banks
2015

IT
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Basic Standard for Enterprise Internal Control
Guidelines for Internal

Control of Commercial Banks

2015 1.52 128

RACA KRI LDC
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AML

AML
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2015 1,794.17 1,708.45
1.25 0.74 ROA 1.12
0.10 ROE 14.53
2.75

2015 2014

328,650 321,102 7,548 2.35%

145,262 135,226 10,036 7.42%

92,410 91,240 1,170 1.28%
473,912 456,328 17,584 3.85%
(185,401) (177,788) (7,613) 4.28%

(59,274) (48,381) (10,893) 22.52%

229,237 230,159 (922) (0.40%)

231,571 231,478 93 0.04%

(52,154) (54,280) 2,126 (3.92%)

179,417 177,198 2,219 1.25%

170,845 169,595 1,250 0.74%
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2015
2015 12 31 2015 9 30 2015 6 30 2015 3 31
117,972 117,062 117,549 121,329
39,300 40,799 44,908 45,838
136,679 (131,980) 267,230 400,165
2015 3,286.50 75.48 2.35
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2015 2014
(

) (@) )
8,916,436 4.88 8,263,521 5.19 652,915 (31)
3,145,750 3.45 2,461,952 3.50 683,798 )
2,257,994 1.31 2,319,947 1.41 (61,953) (10)
1,204,278 3.47 1,229,126 4.48 (24,848) (101)
15,524,458 3.96 14,274,546 4.22 1,249,912 (26)
11,388,012 1.94 10,650,698 2.02 737,314 )
2,703,157 2.01 2,516,830 2.24 186,327 (23)
271,374 4.02 260,750 3.88 10,624 14
14,362,543 1.99 13,428,278 2.10 934,265 11)
2.12 2.25 (13)
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2015 2014
(

) (@) )
6,459,621 5.77 5,854,808 6.23 604,813 (46)
2,320,776 3.93 1,826,017 3.90 494,759 3
1,775,952 1.57 1,872,829 1.67 (96,877) (10)
882,036 4.12 969,597 4.94 (87,561) (82)
11,438,385 4.62 10,523,251 4.90 915,134 (28)
8,492,422 2.28 7,981,630 2.30 510,792 ©)
1,650,677 3.34 1,481,293 4.33 169,384 (99)
143,719 4.90 174,776 4.59 (31,057) 31
10,286,818 2.48 9,637,699 2.66 649,119 (18)
2.38 2.46 )
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2015 2014
(

) ) )
75,272 2.35 91,084 2.70 (15,812) (35)
34,925 1.59 27,940 1.52 6,985 7
67,863 0.47 60,453 1.05 7,410 (58)
178,060 1.49 179,477 1.96 (1,417) 1Y)
84,578 0.66 81,127 1.20 3,451 (54)
89,163 0.39 92,830 0.79 (3,667) (40)
2,981 5.74 412 5.34 2,569 40
176,722 0.61 174,369 0.99 2,353 (38)
0.88 1.00 (12)

@

@
®
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2015 2014
435,062 428,572 6,490 33,886 (27,396)
108,651 86,210 22,441 23,933 (1,492)

29,543 32,779 (3.236) (874) (2,362)
41,800 55,119 (13,319) (1,113) (12,206)
615,056 602,680 12,376 55,832 (43,456)
221,288 215,019 6,269 14,894 (8,625)
54,209 56,434 (2,225) 4,174 (6,399)
10,909 10,125 784 412 372
286,406 281,578 4,828 19,480 (14,652)
328,650 321,102 7,548 36,352 (28,804)
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2015 2014
372,513 365,022 7,491 37,680  (30,189)
91,277 71,140 20,137 19,296 841
27,811 31,186 (3.375) (1,618)  (1,757)
36,378 47,939 (11,561) (4,326)  (7,235)
527,979 515,287 12,692 51,032  (38,340)
193,391 183,674 9,717 11,748  (2,031)
55,181 64,196 (9,015) 7,334 (16,349)
7,036 8,019 (983) (1,426) 443
255,608 255,889 (281) 17,656  (17,937)
272,371 259,398 12,973 33,376 (20,403)
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2015 2014
1,770 2,456 (686) (427) (259)

556 424 132 106 26

320 637 (317) 78 (395)

2,646 3,517 (871) (243) (628)

559 972 (413) 4 (454)

348 732 (384) 29) (355)

171 22 149 137 12

1,078 1,726 (648) 149 @797)
1,568 1,791 (223) (392) 169
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2015 2014
(

)
4,022,655 6.00 3,752,063 6.51 270,592 (51)
2,234,610 5.44 1,986,408 5.71 248,202 @7
202,356 4.75 116,337 6.27 86,019 (152)
6,459,621 5.77 5,854,808 6.23 604,813 (46)
4,312,654 5.98 3,902,599 6.37 410,055 (39)
2,146,967 5.35 1,952,209 5.97 194,758 (62)
2,144,678 0.69 2,082,762 0.74 61,916 5)
2,215,337 3.45 2,133,567 3.54 81,770 (©)

1,381,000 0.52 1,291,650 0.52 89,350 -
2,435,218 3.37 2,271,031 3.41 164,187 4)
316,189 4.09 202,620 4.24 113,569 (15)
8,492,422 2.28 7,981,630 2.30 510,792 )
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2015 2014
(
)
75,272 2.35 91,084 2.70 (15,812) (35)
27,031 0.14 23,329 0.15 3,702 @
19,854 1.80 26,082 2.96 (6,228) (116)
19,695 0.05 14,283 0.04 5,412 1
15,532 0.63 14,364 0.59 1,168 4
2,466 2.31 3,069 2.44 (603) (13)
84,578 0.66 81,127 1.20 3,451 (54)
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2015 2.12 13
PBOC
2014 11 PBOC 1.2
2015 PBOC
2015 PBOC
2015
0.83
2.94
0.66
2015 1,452.62 100.36 7.42
30.65
2015 924.10
11.70 1.28 19.50
22.57
12.28

7.33
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2015 2014
24,481 19,973 4,508 22.57
24,215 21,567 2,648 12.28
11,888 14,815 (2,927) (19.76)
16,541 16,112 429 2.66

5,757 8,835 (3,078) (34.84)
7,388 7,610 (222) (2.92)
3,677 3,426 251 7.33
6,958 6,200 758 12.23

100,905 98,538 2,367 2.40
(8,495) (7,298) (1,197) 16.40
92,410 91,240 1,170 1.28
16,951 13,965 2,986 21.38
20,771 18,369 2,402 13.08
10,237 12,727 (2,490) (19.56)

9,891 11,556 (1,665) (14.41)
5,677 8,704 (3,027) (34.78)
6,556 6,864 (308) (4.49)
3,322 3,113 209 6.71
5,040 4,611 429 9.30
78,445 79,909 (1,464) (1.83)
(3,225) (2,701) (524) 19.40
75,220 77,208 (1,988) (2.57)
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528.52 88.66 20.16
V.
2015
76.13 4.28 1,854.01
0.27 28.30
1 V.
2015 2014
80,324 77,889 2,435 3.13
40,671 39,284 1,387 3.53
13,218 13,214 4 0.03
26,734 26,224 510 1.94
14,123 10,900 3,223 29.57
10,331 10,277 54 0.53
185,401 177,788 7,613 4.28
2015 558.72
92.66 19.88 0.63
258.08 25.23 300.64

67.43
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2015 521.54 21.26 3.92
22.52 1
V.
2015 1 5,642.15 10.26 16
8,155.97 1 3,900.38 9.88 15
4,579.92
2015 12 31 2014 12 31

8,935,195 53.14 8,294,744 54.39

3,595,095 21.38 2,710,375 17.77

2,196,063 13.06 2,306,088 15.12

1,007,855 5.99 1,130,211 7.41

1,081,389 6.43 809,964 5.31

16,815,597 100.00 15,251,382 100.00

11,729,171 75.88 10,885,223 77.38

2,627,973 17.00 2,353,848 16.73

313,210 2.03 308,492 2.19
787,638 5.09 520,391 3.70
15,457,992 100.00 14,067,954 100.00
@

@
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6,525.85 7.69

233.30 6.66

2,006.65
153.30
0.37

2015

8,330.62
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2015
9 1,358.60
6,728.15 10.61 7 118.67
3,270.90
2015
121.34
53.05
8,847.20 32.64 3 5,950.95
7,040.94 33.07 2
223.34 23.51 1,173.51
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
) ()
119,062 3.31 104,528 3.86
1,078,533 30.00 750,685 27.70
1,790,790 49.81 1,424,463 52.55
606,710 16.88 430,699 15.89

3,595,095 100.00 2,710,375 100.00
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
) )
1,411,475 39.26 892,754 32.94
62,293 1.73 42,979 1.59
441,288 12.28 420,378 15.51
292,978 8.15 207,606 7.66
278,719 7.75 334,224 12.33
160,000 4.45 160,000 5.90
2,646,753 73.62 2,057,941 75.93
289,498 8.05 193,154 7.13
50,534 1.41 45,617 1.68
157,267 4.37 138,055 5.09
106,776 2.97 60,708 2.24
604,075 16.80 437,534 16.14
344,267 9.58 214,900 7.93
3,595,095 100.00 2,710,375 100.00
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
) )
2,833,062 78.80 2,128,968 78.55
477,259 13.28 385,736 14.23
138,893 3.86 130,576 4.82
145,881 4.06 65,095 2.40
3,595,095 100.00 2,710,375 100.00
10
2014 7,710 5.44% 2019-04-08
1
2010 6,070 0.5%% 2017-01-26
2015 6,000 3.50% 2016-12-26
2015 5,500 4.95% 2018-01-19
1
2006 5,000 0.60% 2016-12-12
2011 4,910 3.55% 2016-12-06
1
2010 4,750 0.59% 2020-02-25
1
2009 4,660 0.54% 2016-09-01
2015 4,620 3.94% 2020-04-23
2015 4,470 4.10% 2020-03-24
PBOC
2015 8,439.48 7.75 11

7,291.71 5,303.32
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6.18 9 1,146.67 266.04 7.08
4,026.28
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
) ()
3,130,624 26.69 2,663,173 24.46
3,037,783 25.90 3,013,812 27.69
274,799 2.34 234,187 2.15
6,443,206 54.93 5,911,172 54.30
2,092,841 17.84 1,847,870 16.98
2,841,372 24.22 2,709,995 24.90
65,112 0.56 83,300 0.76
4,999,325 42.62 4,641,165 42.64
230,793 1.97 278,576 2.56
55,847 0.48 54,310 0.50

11,729,171 100.00 10,885,223 100.00
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
) ()
2,599,679 27.58 2,254,165 26.10
2,282,082 24.20 2,238,938 25.93
251,251 2.67 204,590 2.37
5,133,012 54.45 4,697,693 54.40
1,616,747 17.15 1,411,723 16.35
2,559,844 27.16 2,394,343 27.73
63,008 0.67 80,884 0.94
4,239,599 44.98 3,886,950 45.02
53,409 0.57 49,956 0.58
9,426,020 100.00 8,634,599 100.00
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
) ()
9,114,667 77.71 8,584,335 78.86
1,201,162 10.24 976,427 8.97
881,340 7.51 799,630 7.35
532,002 4.54 524,831 4.82
11,729,171 100.00 10,885,223 100.00
2015 1 3,576.05 1,741.77
14.72
(1) 2015 1,794.17 1,708.45
@ 280

®) (4) 2014
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2014

2015

2015
5,451.76

559.34

835.55
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5) 50.12
V.16
V.40
960.73 1 520.78
6,720.94
7,572.79 5,566.80
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2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
282,151 270,405 31,738 33,467 14,761 17,230 - - 328,650 321,102
101,468 98,969 41,769 33,102 3,150 4,161 (1,125)  (1,006) 145,262 135,226
75,220 77,208 14,729 11,758 3,302 3,033 (841) (759) 92,410 91,240
(150,393) (147,149)  (31,370)  (26,990)  (4,763)  (4,655) 1,125 1,006  (185,401) (177,788)
(56,400)  (43,940)  (2,095)  (2,850) @70  (1,591) - - (59,274)  (48,381)
176,817 178,285 42,376 38,048 12,378 15,145 - - 231,571 231,478

13,053,114 12,071,129 3,010,958 2,715,651 1,819,844 1,843,435 (1,068,319) (1,378,833) 16,815,597 15,251,382

11,970,984 11,125,104 2,784,066 2,521,863 1,770,859 1,799,659  (1,067,917) (1,378,672) 15,457,992 14,067,954

2015 9,819.85 8.13 13
531.14 72.99 2015
1,768.17 14.68 0.82
76.36
2,953.07 10.87 3 109.58
16.84 2015 423.76
43.28 11.38 18.30
235.91 1.28 1 8,198.44
10.17 2015 123.78
27.67 18.27
5.34
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82,285 99,864 17,579

2,211 5,642 3,431
(1,118)

4,144 4,218 4

15,888 9,338 (6,550)

712,138 1,029,842 317,704
(54)

11,999 18,482 6,483

26,548 30,209 3,661

47,967 82,236 34,269
1,143

(40,734) (69,160) (28,426)
(5,776) (1,617) 4,159 33
(317,487) (339,911) (22,424) (403)
(7,224) (7,012) 212 (1)

Guidelines on Market Risk Management in Commercial Banks
Regulatory Guidelines on Valuation of Financial Instruments in Commercial Banks
CAS IFRS BIS

Valuation Policy of Financial
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Instrument Fair Values of Bank of China Limited

IFRS CAS

113/504



2015

V.21

11,633
644
10,326 10,687

V. 22(3)
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2015 12 31
(€)) (€))
294,387,791,241 (2)
999,400,000 (3)
€))
(2)  210,765,514,846 83,622,276,395
6) 399,400,000 600,000,000
2015 12 31
1.00 294,387,791,241
100 999,400,000
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30

2019 10 23

(@) Tierl

(b) Tier2

@
Tierl
() Tier2

3.44

O) H

1.71

(i) 5
3.498 1.66

(i) 10

3.503 1.80

1 0.79499

®) H

©
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2014
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@
)
Tierl
1 100
10 23
A) 6.75
®
18.07 2
Tierl
Tierl
Tier2 Tier2
Tier2
Tierl
2014
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5.125 (
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4 20
A 2.62 /
A
@
2
(¢
10
G
3
1
2014 11 21
11 21
360
2014
6.00
2
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3
Tier 1
Tier 1 5.125%(
26 12 26
A
Tier 2
A

4

20 A

2 A

2014

Tier 1
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(&

€

10

2015

13

13

5.50
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2011 1 1 110,384 110,384 @
2011 12 31
2011 12 31 195,525,057,184 195,525,057,184
2012 1 1 9,686 9,686 @
2012 12 31
2012 12 31 195,525,066,870 195,525,066,870
2013 1 1 217,209,172 217,209,172 Q@
2013 12 31
2013 12 31 195,742,276,042 195,742,276,042
2014 1 1 9,366,595,563 9,366,595,563 @
2014 12 31
2014 12 31 205,108,871,605 205,108,871,605
2015 1 1 5,656, 643,241 5,656,643,241 Q@
2015 12 31
2015 12 31 210,765,514, 846 210,765,514,846

(€Y)

2010 12 31 83,622,276,395 83,622,276,395

2011 12 31 83,622,276,395 83,622,276,395

2012 12 31 83,622,276,395 83,622,276,395

2013 12 31 83,622,276,395 83,622,276,395

2014 12 31 83,622,276,395 83,622,276,395

2015 12 31 83,622,276,395 83,622,276,395
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2014 0 0

2014 10 23 399,400,000 399,400,000 39,940,000,000 39,940,000,000

2014 11 21 320,000,000 719,400,000 32,000,000,000 71,940,000,000

2014 12 31 719,400,000 71,940,000,000

2015 13 280,000,000 999,400,000 28,000,000,000 99,940,000,000

2015 12 31 999,400,000 99,940,000,000

2015
25,822,000
400 0.06

15,240,628,510 2010 12 271,545,137,605
5.61 2015 13

2015 12 31 963,786 761,073

202,713

2015 12 31 48 47
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2015 12 31

188,461,533,607 (1)

HKSCC 81,805,031,953 (2)
199
7,440,607,204(1)
28
— 277,707,172,764
@
@
HKSCC 2015 12 31
HKSCC
2015 12 31

2015 12 31 10

1 0 | 399,400,000 | 39.96%

2 180,000,000 | 180,000,000 | 18.01%

3 0| 50,000,000 5.00%

4 0| 30,000,000 3.00%

5 0| 22,000,000 2.20%

- 0
6 _ ~005L- 7,000,000 21,000,000 2.10%
FH002
7 0 20,000,000 2.00%
7 12,500,000 | 20,000,000 2.00%
304
7 - 5 10,000,000 | 20,000,000 2.00%
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10

4,000,000

19,000,000

1.90%

10

CBRC

10

50
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2015

2016
2016
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OooooOodd
0.175 2015
2016 2015
( 2016 ) ( )
2016 24 2016 20
2015 17 2014 0.19 2014
2015 7
559.34 2015 30
2015
28
2015 10 23
6.75%
2015 11 23 ( ) 6.00%
19
14 5.50%
2006 2006

2014 10 23
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2014 11 20 2015 31
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
4.50 3.51 4.00 4.40 5.68
63.27 49.35 56.24 61.86 79.86
2.20 2.73 2.96 3.03 3.25
30.93 38.38 41.62 42.60 45.70
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
3.47 3.10 3.26 4.28 5.96
57.95 51.77 54.44 71.48 99.53
2.82 2.58 2.48 2.44 3.43
47.09 43.09 41.42 40.75 57.28
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2015 2015 2015 2015 10 2015 11 2015 12
5.08 4.31 3.69 3.88 3.71 3.55
71.42 60.60 51.88 54.55 52.16 49.91
4.07 3.50 3.25 3.34 3.41 3.28
57.22 49.21 45.70 46.96 47.94 46.12

2015 2015 2015 2015 10 2015 11 2015 12
5.96 4.52 4.29 4.10 4.30 4.50
99.53 75.48 71.64 68.47 71.81 75.15
4.40 3.43 3.71 3.76 3.79 3.95
73.48 57.28 61.96 62.79 63.29 65.97

131/504



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn

@
25 93% 7%
2013
(TIAN Guoli) 2013 2010
B5 ) 12 2013
1999 4
2010 12
1983 1999
2013
BOCHK
1983
2014
(CHEN Siging) 2014 1990
G5 ) 2008 2014
2000 2008
2011 12
BOCHK
BOC 2014
BOCHK
1982
1999
2011
(ZHANG 2004 11 2010 6 CCB
Xiangdong) 2005 2010
58 )
2001 2004 11 PBOC
1999 2001
2004 2008 12
1986
1988 1990
2011
(ZHANG Qi) 2001 2011
“43 )
1991
2001
1995 1998 2001
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2013
(WANG Yong) 2007 2013
53 ) 2012 12
2004 2007
1997 2004
1984
1987
2014
(WANG Wei) 2004 11 2014
68 )
2004 2004 11
1994 11 2004
1982 1988 2002
2014 10
(LIU Xianghui) 2013 2014
(61 ) 2010
2013
2004 2010
1978 1994
1993
1994 2004
1978
1989 10 1990
1985 1986
2015
(L1 Jucai) 2014 12 2015
51
GL ) 2010 2014 12
1996 11 2010
1986
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(CHOW  Man
Paul)

©9 )

Yiu,

2010 10
2003 2010

AustralianSuper Pty.Ltd.

1997
2003 HSBC
1992 1997
2003 2010
2003 2010
2007 2008
2009
2001 2007
1970
1979 1982
1987
2010
2003 2005 2010
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(Jackson TAI)
(65 )

2011
40
DBS
DBS DBS
DBS
2002 2007 DBS DBS
2001
2002 DBS DBS
1999 2001 DBS
2007 2008 DBS
1974 1999 J.P.
2013
2011
2008
VaporStrean Private
holdings 2012 2013
Russell Reynolds Associates Private holdings
2011 2014
2010 2013
NYSE 2008 2010
ING 2001 2010
Capitaland

Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute
1972

1974
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2012 10
(DNB)
(Nout WELLINK) 30 14
a2 ) 2011 1 DNB
1999
ECB
1997 BIS
2002 2006 2006
2011
1997 2011 G10
IMF
1982 DNB 1977 1982
1961 1968
1975
2008
1988 1998
( ) MN1
Westeinde
1980
2011
2013
(LU Zhengfei)
G2 ) 1994 1999
2001 2007
2007
2014
2001
2005
2013
2014
2004
2005 11
2009 12
2011
2004 2010 12
1988
1996
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2013
(LEUNG Cheuk
Yan) 1987
4 ) 2011 2009 2010
2012
1976 A
1981
1982
1985
(1988 )
1989
1991
2010
(L1 Jun) 2009 12
%9 )
2006 2009 12
2000 11 2006
2000 2009 12
1998 2001
1990 10 1998
1995
2004
(WANG Xuegiang) 2005
(58 ) 2003 2004
2001 10 2003
2000 10 2001
10 1996
11 2000
1985 1996 10
1985
2008
2004
(LIU Wanming) 2005
7 ) 2014
2001 11 2004
1984
2001 11
1984
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2010
(DENG Zhiying)
(56 ) 2008 2010
2007 2008
2008 2008
1993 2007
1984 1993
1984
2016 4
(GAO Zhaogang)
(46 ) 2001 1 2014 7
1998 12 2001 1
1992 7 1998
12
1992 2012
2012
(XIANG Xi)
44 )
2010 2015
2005 2010
2003 2005
2000 10 2005
1993
2000 10
1993
2004 12
2015
(CHEN Yuhua) 2008 12 2013
2 ) 2004
2008 12
2000 2004
1996 12 2000
1994 1996 12
1992 1994 3
1986 1992
1986
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(G
(CHEN Siqging)
G5 )
2004
(ZHANG Lin)
39 ) 2002 2004
1998 2002
1983
2014
(REN Deqi) 2014
G2 ) 2013 10
2014
2003 2013 10
2015 10 BOCHK
1988
2015
(GAO Yingxin) 1986 2005
B3 ) 2015 BOCHK
BOCHK 2004
2005
1996 2004
2015 BOCHK
2015
1986
2015
(XU Luode) 2015 2013
53 ) 2015
2007 2013
2003 10 2007
1999 2003 10
2015
10
BOCHK
1983
2016
(PAN Yuehan) 1984 2011
(G1 ) 2015 11 2012
2015 11
2009 2011
2008
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2014 11
(XIAO Wei) 1994 2009 11
G5 ) 2014 11
2004 2009 11
2007 2009 11
1999 12 2004
2002 11 2004
1994
2015
(GENG Wei) 2015 10
G2 ) 2006
1995

1. 2015 21
2. 2015 11
3. 2015 7
4. 2016
5. 2016
6. 2015 17
7. 2015 11
8. 2016 14
9. 2016 14
10. 2015
11. 2015 26
12. 2015
13. 2015
14. 2015 11
15. 2015 11
16. 2015 1
17. 2015 16
18. 2015 16 2015 10 29
19. 2016 14
20. 2016 20
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21. 2016
¢))
2015
2015
1
TIAN Guoli - 4480 16.99 61.79
CHEN Siqging - 4480 16.53 61.33
ZHANG Xiangdong - - - —
ZHANG Qi - - - -
WANG Yong - - - -
WANG Wei - - - -
LIU Xianghui - - - -
LI Jucai - - - -
CHOW Man Yiu, Paul 45.00 - - 45.00
Jackson TAI 40.00 - - 40.00
Nout 50.00 - - 50.00
WELLINK
LU Zhengfei 50.00 - - 50.00
LEUNG Cheuk Yan 40.00 - - 40.00
LI Jun - 4480 18.69 63.49
WANG Xuegiang - 68.42 35.11 103.53
LIU Wanming - 63.69 32.78 96.47
DENG Zhiying 5.00 - - 5.00
LIU Xiaozhong 5.00 - - 5.00
XIANG Xi 5.00 - - 5.00
CHEN Yuhua 9.72 - - 9.72
ZHANG Lin - 40.32 18.51 58.83
REN Deqi - 40.32 13.80 54.12
GAO Yingxin - 26.88 9.81 36.69
XU Luode - 20.16 7.20 27.36
X1A0 Wei - 93.66 41.52 135.18
GENG Wei - 40.50 17.25 57.75
1
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LI Zaohang - 20.16 10.28 30.44
ZHU Hexin - 20.16 7.20 27.36
SUN Zhijun - - - -
MEI Xingbao 15.04 - - 15.04
ZHU Shumin - 10.08 4.03 14.11
YUE Yi - 6.72 2.81 9.53

ZHANG Jinliang - 40.32 13.80 54.12
CHIM Wai Kin - 130.72 17.12 147.84
FAN Yaosheng - 33.34 15.94 49.28

1. 2007 2009

2. 2015

3.

4.

5. 2015

2015
6. 71,000
2015 13.5398
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Ming 2015
11
2014
2015 12
H A
H BOC
H
2015 A
2015 A
BOC

2015

2015

BOC

2014

2015

BOC

H
2015

2015
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2014
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Ernst & Young Hua

2014

2015

BOC

2015

17 2015 12

BOC
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2015
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2015 11 25 29 21 17 28 10 16 10 29 12

17

BOCHK
BOC
67
2014
2015
2015 )

2015
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1/2 15/18 8/8 - - - -
(TIAN Guoli)

2/2 15/18 8/8 - - - -
(CHEN
Siqing)

2/2 18/18 8/8 - 9/9 -
(ZHANG
Xiangdong)

2/2 18/18 8/8 - - 9/9 -
(ZHANG Qi)

2/2 18/18 8/8 5/5 - - -
(WANG Yong)

2/2 18/18 8/8 - 5/5 - -
(WANG Wei)

2/2 18/18 8/8 - 5/5 - -
(LU
Xianghut)

1/1 5/5 4/4 2/2 - - -
(L1 Jucai)

2/2 18/18 - 5/5 5/5 9/9 3/3
(CHOW Man
Yiu, Paul)

2/2 18/18 8/8 5/5 5/5 - 2/3
(Jackson
TAD)
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2/2 18/18 8/8 5/5 5/5 - -
(Nout
WELLINK)
2/2 18/18 - 5/5 - 9/9 3/3
(w
Zhengfei)
2/2 18/18 - 5/5 - 9/9 3/3
(LEUNG Cheuk
Yan)
0/0 4/8 - - - - 0/1
(LI Zaohang)
0/0 6/6 2/2 2/2 - - -
(SUN Zhijun)
2015 17 2014 2015 17 10 16
10 29
2015 21 10 16 10 29
2015 25 29 21 2015
24 2015
25
2015 12 15
2015
A.6.5
2025
2015
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3.13
2015
100
99
2015
IT
2015
2003 56
CBRC

2015 12 31 10,770.70
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2015

2015

2015

2015
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2015
EPS 2015 25
2015 EPS
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12 31
2015 2014
615,056 10,271,435 602,680 10,064,756
(286,406)  (4,782,980) (281,578)  (4,702,353)
328,650 5,488,455 321,102 5,362,403
100,905 1,685,114 98,538 1,645,585
(8,495) (141,867) (7.,298) (121,877)
92,410 1,543,247 91,240 1,523,708
9,460 157,982 11,099 185,353
5,765 96,276 1,795 29,977
37,627 628,371 31,092 519,236
473,912 7,914,330 456,328 7,620,678
(185,401)  (3,096,197) (177,788)  (2,969,060)
(59,274) (989,876) (48,381) (807,963)
229,237 3,828,258 230,159 3,843,655
.19 2,334 38,978 1,319 22,027
231,571 3,867,236 231,478 3,865,683
(52,154) (870,972) (54,280) (906,476)
179,417 2,996,264 177,198 2,959,207
170,845 2,853,112 169,595 2,832,237
8,572 143,152 7,603 126,970
179,417 2,996,264 177,198 2,959,207
.10
0.56 9 0.61 10
0.56 9 0.58 10
.38.
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12 31
2015 2014
179,417 2,996,264 177,198 2,959,207
11

(161) (2,689) (233) (3,891)
14 234 5 84
(147) (2,455) (228) (3,808)
6,573 109,769 8,430 140,781
(361) (6,029) 256 4,275
6,896 115,163 (2,759) (46,075)
336 5,611 471 7,866
13,444 224,515 6,398 106,847
13,297 222,060 6,170 103,039
192,714 3,218,324 183,368 3,062,246
182,171 3,042,256 175,165 2,925,256
10,543 176,068 8,203 136,990
192,714 3,218,324 183,368 3,062,246
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12 31
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.12 654,378 10,928,113 813,054 13,578,002
.13 2,196,063 36,674,252 2,306,088 38,511,670
.14 426,848 7,128,362 402,280 6,718,076
.26 91,191 1,522,890 76,517 1,277,834
176,753 2,951,775 194,531 3,248,668
.15 119,062 1,988,335 104,528 1,745,618
.16 82,236 1,373,341 47,967 801,049
« ) .17 8,935,195 149,217,757 8,294,744 138,522,225
.18 3,476,033 58,049,751 2,605,847 43,517,645
1,078,533 18,011,501 750,685 12,536,440
1,790,790 29,906,193 1,424,463 23,788,532
606,710 10,132,057 430,699 7,192,673
.19 10,843 181,078 14,379 240,129
.20 182,031 3,039,918 172,197 2,875,690
.21 23,281 388,793 18,653 311,505
.34 22,246 371,508 25,043 418,218
.35 237,937 3,973,548 - -
.22 181,500 3,031,050 175,554 2,931,752
16,815,597 280,820,470 15,251,382 254,698,079
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.24 1,764,320 29,464,144 1,780,247 29,730,125
.25 415,709 6,942,340 348,271 5,816,126
.26 91,331 1,525,228 76,607 1,279,337
.27 447,944 7,480,665 225,330 3,763,011
.16 69,160 1,154,972 40,734 680,258
.28 11,729,171 195,877,156 10,885,223 181,783,224
11,389,260 190,200,642 10,567,736 176,481,191

339,911 5,676,514 317,487 5,302,033

.29 282,929 4,724,914 278,045 4,643,352
.30 30,281 505,693 30,447 508,465
.31 37,982 634,299 41,636 695,321
.32 4,255 71,059 4,566 76,252
.34 4,291 71,660 4,287 71,593
.35 196,850 3,287,395 - -
.36 383,769 6,408,942 352,561 5,887,769
15,457,992 258,148,466 14,067,954 234,934,832

.37. 294,388 4,916,280 288,731 4,821,808
.37, 99,714 1,665,224 71,745 1,198,142
.37. 140,098 2,339,637 130,797 2,184,310
.37. (86) (1,436) (25) (418)
A1 (2,345) (39,162) (13,671) (228,306)
.38. 111,511 1,862,234 96,105 1,604,954
.38. 179,485 2,997,400 159,341 2,660,995
.38 482,181 8,052,423 407,836 6,810,861
1,304,946 21,792,598 1,140,859 19,052,345

.39 52,659 879,405 42,569 710,902
1,357,605 22,672,004 1,183,428 19,763,248

16,815,597 280,820,470 15,251,382 254,698,079
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288,731 71,745 130,797  (13,671) 96,105 159,341 407,836 (25) 42,569 1,183,428
11 - - - 11,326 - - 170,845 - 10,543 192,714
.37.1 5,657 - 10,973 - - - - - - 16,630
.37. - 27,969 - - - - - - - 27,969
.38. - - - - 15,686 - (15,686) - - -
.38. - - - - - 20,144 (20,144) - - -

.38. - - - - - - (60,946) - (3,497) (64,443)

.37. - - - - - - - (61) - (61)
- - - - - - - - 3,077 3,077

- - (1,545) - - - - - - (1,545)

- - (127) - (280) - 276 - (33) (164)
294,388 99,714 140,098 (2,345) 111,511 179,485 482,181 (86) 52,659 1,357,605
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279,365 - 115,369 (19,241) 80,225 144,450 323,776 (28) 37,561 961,477
- - - 5,570 - - 169,595 - 8,203 183,368
9,366 - 17,974 - - - - - - 27,340
- 71,745 - - - - - - - 71,745
- - - - 15,888 - (15,888) - - -
- - - - - 14,897 (14,897) - - -

- - - - - - (54,755) - (3,234) (57,989)
- - - - - - - 3 - 3
- - - - - - - - 39 39

- - (2,546) - - - - - - (2,546)

- - - - ® ® 5 - - ©
288,731 71,745 130,797  (13,671) 96,105 159,341 407,836 (25) 42,569 1,183,428
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4,821,808 1,198,142 2,184,310  (228,306) 1,604,954 2,660,995 6,810,861 (418) 710,902 19,763,248
11 - - - 189,144 - - 2,853,112 - 176,068 3,218,324
371 94,472 - 183,249 - - - - - - 277,721
.37, - 467,082 - - - - - - - 467,082
.38. - - - - 261,956 - (261,956) - - -
.38. - - - - - 336,405 (336,405) - - -
.38. - - - - - - (1,017,798) - (58,400)  (1,076,198)
.37, - - - - - - - (1,019) - (1,019)
- - - - - - - - 51,386 51,386
- - (25,802) - - - - - - (25,802)
- - (2,121) - (4,676) - 4,609 - (551) (2,739)
2015 12 31

4,916,280 1,665,224 2,339,637 (39,162) 1,862,234 2,997,400 8,052,423 (1,436) 879,405 22,672,004
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4,665,396 - 1,926,662 (321,325) 1,339,758 2,412,315 5,407,059 (468) 627,269 16,056,666
- - - 93,019 - - 2,832,237 - 136,990 3,062,246
156,412 - 300,166 - - - - - - 456,578
- 1,198,142 - - - - - - - 1,198,142
- - - - 265,330 - (265,330) - - -
- - - - - 248,780 (248,780) - - -

- - - - - - 914,409 - (54,008) (968,416)
- - - - - - - 50 - 50
- - - - - - - - 651 651

- - (42,518) - - - - - - (42,518)

- - - - (134) (100) 84 - - (150)
4,822,810 1,198,142 2,184,310  (228,306) 1,604,954 2,660,995 6,810,861 (418) 710,902 19,763,248
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12 31

2015 2014
231,571 3,867,236 231,478 3,865,683
59,274 989,876 48,381 807,963
12,850 214,595 12,775 213,343
2,758 46,059 2,788 46,560
(788) (13,160) (199) (3,323)
(2,026) (33,834) (684) (11,423)
(2,334) (38,978) (1,319) (22,027)
(105,279)  (1,758,159) (83,847)  (1,400,245)
(483) (8,066) (458) (7,649)
(5,765) (96,276) (1,795) (29,977)
10,909 182,180 10,125 169,088
(1,329) (22,194) (879) (14,679)
126,827 2,118,011 (121,015)  (2,020,951)
(31,746) (530, 158) (77,077)  (1,287,186)
17,484 291,983 (1,814) (30,294)
(27,772) (463,792) (22,668) (378,556)
(833,615)  (13,921,371) (901,980)  (15,063,066)
(122,913)  (2,052,647) (9,102) (152,003)
(12,809) (213,910) 228,623 3,818,004
67,444 1,126,315 147,332 2,460,444
225,136 3,759,771 (113,935)  (1,902,715)
1,028,905 17,182,714 787,437 13,150,198
(166) @,772) 877 14,646
91,644 1,530,455 51,070 852,869
727,777 12,153,876 184,114 3,074,704
(55,683) (929,906) (57,196) (955,173)
672,094 11,223,970 126,918 2,119,531
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12 31
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12,580 210,086 9,624 160,721
7,416 123,847 1,078 18,003
663 11,072 851 14,212
94,085 1,571,220 78,472 1,310,482
1,276,488 21,317,350 910,115 15,198,921
(3.390) (56,613) (260) (4,342)
(36,942) (616,931) (35,108) (586,304)
(2,108,179)  (35,206,589)  (1,165,371) (19,461,696)
757,279 12,646,559 (200,599)  (3,350,003)
109,991 1,836,850 173,256 2,893,375
27,969 467,082 71,745 1,198,142
3,077 51,386 39 651
(93,643)  (1,563,838) (94,603)  (1,579,870)
(11,445) (191,132) (8,896) (148,563)
(60,946)  (1,017,798) (54,755) (914,409)
(3,497) (58,400) (3,234) (54,008)
(221) (3,691) 3 50
( (28,715) (479,541) 83,555 1,395,369
0 0
17,827 297,711 (12,289) (205,226)
(96,073)  (1,604,419) (2,415) (40,331)
1,148,151 19,174,122 1,150,566 19,214,452
.41 1,052,078 17,569,703 1,148,151 19,174,122
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12 31
2015 2014
435,062 428,572
@ 108,651 86,210
29,543 32,779
41,800 55,119
615,056 602,680
(221,288) (215,019)
(53,050) (55,428)
(12,068) (11,131)
(286, 406) (281,578)
0 328,650 321,102
( 1,387 947
@
0 611,519
(2014 600,190 273,306 (2014 272,684 )
(
12 31
2015 2014
24,481 19,973
24,215 21,567
16,541 16,112
11,888 14,815
7,388 7,610
5,757 8,835
3,677 3,426
6,958 6,200
100,905 98,538
(8,495) (7,298)
92,410 91,240
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696
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( 2 80,324 77,889
() 40,671 39,284
26,734 26,224
13,218 13,214
10,531 7,265
3,592 3,635
5,723 5,455
4,608 4,822
185,401 177,788
(1) 2015 12 31 214
(2014 199 ) 47 (2014 46 )
7,104 11,770
(2014 6,596
11,453 )
( )
12 31
2015 2014
54,462 53,857
2,919 2,443
202 288
3,280 2,984
6,587 6,272
2,060 1,862
413 447
163 157
223 201
5,428 4,978
1,911 1,925
7 20
2,669 2,455
80,324 77,889
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® - 448 112 58 618
@ - 448 107 58 613
#) - 202 75 27 304
(6] - - - - -
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€) - - - - -
(6] - - - - -
@eE) - - - - _
(O1O) - - - - -
450 - - - 450
400 - - - 400
500 - - - 500
500 - - - 500
400 - - - 400
(O] - 448 129 58 635
@ - 684 113 238 1,035
O] - 637 100 228 965
50 ® - - - 50
50 ® - - - 50
50 ® - - - 50
®) 97 - - - 97
®) 150 - - - 150
2,647 2,867 636 667 6,817
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@ -O 39 16 20 46 46 167
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@ - @ 151 28 76 177 177 609
@ - - - - - - -
@ - - - - - - -
@ - - - - - - -
@ - - - - - - -
@ - - - - - - -
@ - - - - - - -
@ - - - - - - -
450 - - - - - 450
400 - - - - - 400
500 - - - - - 500
500 - - - - - 500
400 - - - - - 400
@ - 459 120 239 536 539 1,893
@ - 409 105 227 473 475 1,689
O] - 383 101 216 442 444 1,586
50 ® - - - - - 50
50 ® - - - - - 50
50 ® - - - - - 50
180 - - - - - 180
259 - - - - - 259
2,839 2,888 667 1,512 3,364 3,376 14,646
(1) 2015 2014 12 31
(2) 2015 2014 12 31
A
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2015 12 31
2014 12 31 2015 28
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(5,012) -
165,833 169,595
293,722 280,009
0.56 0.61
12 31
2015 2014
288,371 279,365
5,018 655
@n (11)
293,722 280,009
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11

(
12 31
2015 2014
165,833 169,595
47 1,120
165,880 170,715
293,722 280,009
640 13,861
294,362 293,870
0.56 0.58
(
12 31
2015 2014
(161) (234)
- 1
(161) (233)
14 5
147) (228)
14,096 12,334
(3,674) (3,532)
(4,972) (426)
1,123 54
6,573 8,430
1,498 276
5 (20)
(1,864) -
(361) 256
6,765 (2,583)
«C ) 131 (176)
6,896 (2,759)
336 471
13,444 6,398
13,297 6,170
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2014

2015 12 31
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oOoOooodn

( )
1,652 (21,542) 649 (19,241)
8,050 (2,851) 371 5,570
9,702 (24,393) 1,020 (13,671)
7,278 4,345 (297) 11,326
16,980 (20,048) 723 (2,345)
( )
12 31
2015 2014
73,371 85,123
538,501 697,158
1,377 505
41,063 29,863
66 405
654,378 813,054
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(€D PBOC
20.0 5.0 2014 12 31
PBOC
(@) PBOC
©)
14
@
€Y

5.0
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)
12 31
2015 2014
1,580,456 1,727,805
132,833 158,224
482,774 420,059
2,196,063 2,306,088
2015 12 31 PBOC
17.0 2014 12 31
)
12 31
2015 2014
118,664 130,015
214,495 182,046
93,881 90,414
- 12
427,040 402,487
(192) (207)
426,848 402,280
158 173
0.04 0.04
)
12 31
2015 2014
33,500 30,932
41,452 50,935
151 1,300
75,103 83,167
1,527 20,002
76,630 103,169
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15
( )
12 31
2015 2014
5,151 2,104
6,301 9,036
19,122 12,130
4,694 5,946
12,646 13,260
506 365
2,138 2,868
3,446 3,636
54,004 49,345
3,547 1,457
7,471 14,168
65,022 64,970
390 356
102 1,444
2,291 2,295
4,216 7,345
2,305 61
25,016 17,711
11,540 3,728
45,860 32,940
2,005 754
€)) 4,218 4,144
1,867 1,720
54,040 39,558
@G 119,062 104,528
31,921 24,120
) 53,690 50,365
33,451 30,043
119,062 104,528
(1) 2015 2014 12 31

202/504



(2) 2015 12 31
MOF

(3) 2015 12 31

*

16

16.

@

2014 12

€Y)

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)

OooooOodd
PBOC
( )
12 31
2015 2014
5,541 2,459
0.0 4.2 1.95  4.54
17,200
31 6,615
( )
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
4,516,512 67.447  (55,366) 2,784,008 32,106 (29,101)

225,919 1,727 (1.710) 215,372

4,526 (849)

4,742,431 69,174 (57,076) 2,999,380

36,632 (29,950)

1,051,031 5,235 (5.802) 666,049 4,521 (4,730)
- - - 31 - -

2,512 4 @ 3,503 3 3)
1,053,543 5,239 (5,803) 669,583 4,524 (4,733)
9,855 441 (279) 14,573 627 (680)
189,905 7,382 (6,002) 176,856 6,184 (5,371)

5,995,734 82,236  (69,160) 3,860,392

47,967  (40,734)
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16.
( )
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
7,225 - (993) 5,968 - (466)
73,721 1,461 (1.014) 60,534 1,800 (890)
@ 80,946 1,461 (2,007) 66,502 1,800 (1,356)
1,017 42 (80) 1,467 8 (30)
0) 1,017 42 (80) 1,467 8 (30)
81,963 1,503 (2,087) 67,969 1,808 (1,386)
@
12 31
2015 2014
C )
(89) (1,701)
317 1,985
228 284
@
2015 12 31 26 2014 64
2015 2014 12 31
2015 2014 12 31
©)
2015 12 31 1,023 2014 27
2015 2014 12 31
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17 (
17.
( )
12 31
2015 2014
6,105,959 5,820,128
263,953 225,468
6,369,912 6,045,596
2,045,787 1,694,275
268,923 268,026
451,238 475,378
2,765,948 2,437,679
9,135,860 8,483,275
(60,791) (49,239)
(139,874) (139,292)
(200, 665) (188,531)
« ) 8,935,195 8,294,744
17.
17.
( )
@
(€))
2015 12 31
9,005,623 39,563 90,674 130,237 9,135,860 1.43
(117,530) (22,344) (60,791) (83,135) (200, 662)
( ) 888,00 17,219 29,883 47,102 8,935,195
2014 12 31
8,383,486 29,113 70,676 99,789 8,483,275 1.18
(122,887) (16,405) (49,239) (65,644) (188,531)
() 260,59 12,708 21,437 34,145 8,294,744
@

@
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17.
( )
12 31
2015 2014

49,239 139,292 188,531 39,202 128,847 168,049

36,419 67,358 103,777 31,674 52,380 84,054

(6,355)  (41,550) (47,905)  (8,353)  (29,095)  (37,448)

(19,551) (25,646) (45,197)  (13,493) (12,238) (25,731)

1,186 136 1,322 660 94 754

(529) (800)  (1,329) (390) (489) (879)

382 1,084 1,466 (61) (207) (268)

12 31 60,791 139,874 200,665 49,239 139,292 188,531

17.
( )
12 31
2015 2014

152,682 35,849 188,531 136,978 31,071 168,049

89,871 13,906 103,777 74,257 9,797 84,054

(47,704) (201)  (47,905)  (37,290) (158)  (37,448)

(36,210)  (8,987) (45,197) (21,120)  (4,611) (25,731)

1,279 43 1,322 685 69 754

(961) (368)  (1,329) (587) (292) (879)

1,423 43 1,466 (241) Q@7 (268)

12 31 160,380 40,285 200,665 152,682 35,849 188,531

206/504
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( )
12 31
2015 2014
198,333 81,134
22,245 12,470
153,831 126,212
153,622 93,622
129,027 152,974
189,310 85,522
18,020 17,065
106,867 106,078
58,587 37,061
1,029,842 712,138
30,209 26,548
18,482 11,999
1,078,533 750,685
1,117,213 758,291
37,548 28,009
276,054 278,686
70,272 68,254
128,292 147,379
84,913 94,310
20,002 21,904
23,361 11,529
33,239 16,319
1,790,984 1,424,681
(194) (218)
1,790,790 1,424,463
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ooooOoog
)
12 31
2015 2014
160,000 160,000
42,500 42,500
52,571 36,250
63,034 31,561
324 -
11,957 6,323
2 2
8 17
330,396 276,653
278,068 154,110
(1,754) (64)
606,710 430,699
3,476,033 2,605,847
)
12 31
2015 2014
47,203 34,704
639,331 430,376
343,308 247,058
5,775 4,573
162 362
42,754 33,612
26,561 16,368
1,552,348 1,229,194
211,881 178,901
606,710 430,699
3,476,033 2,605,847
79,539 55,645
2,191,841 1,659,932
1,204,653 890,270
3,476,033 2,605,847
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OooooOodd
( )
12 31
2015 2014
26,561 26,791 16,368 16,612
1,552,348 1,593,092 1,229,194 1,233,453
(1) 2015 12 31
1,410 4,864 2014 12 31 1,924 5,203
(2) 2015 7,513 2014 39,330
®) 1999 2000
2000 160,000 2.25 10
2010 12 31
2020 30 [2004] 87
MOF
MOF
(4) 1998 18 MOF 2028 18 42,500
7.20 2004 12
2.25
) MOF
2015 12
31 2,507 2014 12 31 3,571
©)
(7) 2015 12 31 MOF PBOC
( )
12 31
2015 2014
955,457 697,973
0.00 5.41 1.80 5.31
() 2015 12 31 118,251 2014 12 31 86,944
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12 31

BOC

£

2015 12 31

.42,
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)
12 31
2015 2014
14,379 13,368
3,390 260
(9,762) (394)
2,334 1,319
(180) (393)
682 219
10,843 14,379
)
12 31
2015 2014
3,759 2,981
1,306 -
1,120 1,060
753 761
614 -
472 403
360 259
323 285
317 316
249 238
1,570 8,076
10,843 14,379
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OooooOodd
20
(
12 31
2015 94,323 62,216 26,061 68,398 250,998
446 5,736 13,607 10,848 30,637
( 21) 557 - ®) - 554
8,194 816 (10,875) 1,865 -
(1,943) 2.775) (125) (14,031) (18,874)
870 295 435 4,223 5,823
2015 12 31 102,447 66,288 29,100 71,303 269,138
2015 (26.189) (44,373) - (7.043) (77.605)
(3.015) (7.456) - (2.390) (12.861)
713 2,567 - 2,313 5,593
.21) 27 - - - 27
(194) (206) - (435) (835)
2015 12 31 (28,658) (49,468) - (7,555) (85, 681)
2015 (749) - (245) (202) (1,196)
%) - - (285) (309)
5 - 24 62 91
- - - 12) (12)
2015 12 31 (768) - (221) 37 (1,426)
2015 67,385 17,843 25,816 61,153 172,197
2015 12 31 73,021 16,820 28,879 63,311 182,031
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OooooOodd
( )
12 31
2014 86,599 58,785 23,040 62,964 231,388
1,848 6,809 11,096 13,153 32,906
« )
1,287 - 2 - 1,285
( 21) , @ ,
( ) 5,644 451 (7,998) 1,903 -
(764) (3,816) (76) (9,851) (14,507)
(291) (13) 1 229 74)
2014 12 31 94,323 62,216 26,061 68,398 250,998
2014 (24,067) (40,486) - (6,660) (71,213)
(2,834) (7,592) - (2,349) (12,775)
654 3,701 - 1,990 6,345
( .21) 21 - - - 21
37 4 - (24) 17
2014 12 31 (26,189) (44,373) - (7,043) (77,605)
2014 (757) - (245) (205) (1,207)
- - - (114) (114)
8 - - 118 126
- - - ) &)
2014 12 31 (749) - (245) (202) (1,196)
2014 61,775 18,299 22,795 56,099 158,968
2014 12 31 67,385 17,843 25,816 61,153 172,197
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oOoOooodn
2015 12 31 BOC
Pte. 655 2014 12 31 640
2015 12 31 BOC Pte.
62,974 2014 12 31 60,721
2015 12 31 BOC
Pte. 41,622 2014 12 31 46,602
.30
2015 12 31
( )
12 31
2015 2014
50 2,916 3,840
10 50 8,505 7,978
10 14 3
11,435 11,821
50 1,934 2,004
10 50 56,269 51,223
10 3,383 2,337
61,586 55,564

73,021 67,385
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21
)
12 31
2015 2014
18,653 20,271
4,263 533
« ) .20 (581) (1,306)
(339) (1,461)
620 546
660 70
12 31 23,281 18,653
BOCHK
BOC 2015 12 31
BOCHK BOC
9,334 11,965 2014 12 31 8,593
8,000 2015 12 31
)
12 31
2015 2014
50 3,566 3,343
10 50 6,504 5,911
10 - -
10,070 9,254
50 4,790 671
10 50 7.523 7,672
10 898 1,056
13,211 9,399
23,281 18,653

214/504
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@

©]
(©)

®)
©)

@

12 31

&)

@

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn

( )
12 31
2015 2014
77,354 76,814
76,706 72,220
8,104 8,563
5,750 4,654
2,949 3,506
2,449 1,953
2,070 2,289
6,118 5,555
181,500 175,554
( )
12 31
2015 2014
46,202 35,452
24,309 27,943
6,843 13,419
77,354 76,814
( )
12 31
2015 2014
76,814 62,820
613,255 601,139
(612,715) (587,145)
77,354 76,814
( )
12 31
2015 2014
80,560 74,641
(3.854) (2,421)
76,706 72,220
( )
12 31
2015 2014
73,523 (943) 68,964 (336)
2,436 (1,077) 1,094 (451)
4,601 (1,834) 4,583 (1,634)
80,560 (3.854) 74,641 (2,421)
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12

12

12

12

12

31

31

31

31

31

50

10 50

10

2006

BOC Pte.
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oOoOooodn

)
12 31
2015 2014
140 230
6,992 7,627
972 706
8,104 8,563
)
12 31
2015 2014
9,479 7,872
2,128 1,670
@5) (64)
37 1
11,629 9,479
(4,825) (3,893)
(1,032) (966)
8 35
(30) @
(5.879) (4,825)
4,654 3,979
5,750 4,654
)
12 31
2015 2014
1,953 1,982
386 -
- (36)
110 7
2,449 1,953
241 1,564
)
12 31
2015 2014




1,352 1,306

533 159

832 1,834

2,717 3,299

(647) (1,010)

2,070 2,289

2015 12 31 580 2014 520
2015 12 31
23
2015 2015

12 31
207 3 (18) - - 192
® 188,531 103,777 (47,905)  (45,204) 1,466 200,665
.18 7,127 125 (126) (1,299) 447 6,274
218 - (35) - 11 194
64 2,161 “71) - - 1,754
1,196 285 - () 12 1,426
1,010 - (200) (174) 11 647
15 - - - - 15
2,421 2,414 (988) (43) 50 3,854
1,206 253 @ (55) 46 1,449
201,995 109,018 (49.744)  (46,842) 2,043 216,470

2014 2014

12 31
195 86 (55) (19) - 207
) 168,049 84,054 (37,448)  (25,856) (268) 188,531
.18 7,013 761 (184) (496) 33 7,127
246 - (29) - 1 218
65 - - - @ 64
1,207 114 - (126) 1 1,196
1,129 81 94) (107) 1 1,010
22 - - Q) 15
2,110 756 (539) 93 2,421
328 882 ) - - 1,206
180, 364 86,734 (38,353)  (26,518) (232) 201,995

o
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24
( )
12 31
2015 2014
535,209 515,188
1,022,792 918,510
183,973 261,237
22,346 85,312
1,764,320 1,780,247
25
(
12 31
2015 2014
160,533 142,443
255,176 205,828
415,709 348,271
26
BOCHK
BOCHK
27
(
12 31
2015 2014
271,387 83,696
107,482 41,561
53,721 78,545
15,354 21,528
&) 447,944 225,330
)
(
12 31
2015 2014
0} 183,498 37,061
O] .40.
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28
( )
12 31
2015 2014
3,130,624 2,663,173
2,092,841 1,847,870
5,223,465 4,511,043
3,037,783 3,013,812
2,841,372 2,709,995
5,879,155 5,723,807
230,793 278,576
(&) 55,847 54,310
( ) 11,389,260 10,567,736
274,799 234,187
65,112 83,300
( )@ 339,911 317,487
® 11,729,171 10,885,223
€Y
2015 12 31 31 38
0.15 7.92 2014 12 31 0.15 7.92
@
2015 2014 12 31
®3) 2015 12 31 338,385

2014 12 31 450,746
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29
( )
12 31
2015 2014
2005
(O] 2005 18 2020 5.18 - 9,000
2009
@ 2009 2024 4.00 24,000 24,000
2010 O 2010 2025 11 4.68 24,930 24,930
BOCHK 2010 2010 11 2020 11 5.55 15,921 15,192
2011 ® 2011 17 2026 19 5.30 32,000 32,000
2012
® 2012 11 27 2022 11 29 4.70 5,000 5,000
2012
® 2012 11 27 2027 11 29 4.99 18,000 18,000
® 119,851 128,122
Tier
2014 ® 2014 2024 11 5.80 29,971 29,968
2014 @ 2014 11 13 2024 11 13 5.00 19,365 18,237
® 49,336 48,205
2010 © 2010 2016 - 14,917
BOCHK @10 67,670 50,657
an 20,104 14,887
(12 12,673 19,261
100,447 84,805
@3) 13,295 1,996
as) 282,929 278,045
(1) 2005 18 15
5.18 2015
(2) 2009 15 4.00
2019
3.00
(3) 2010 15 4.68
2020 11
3.00
(4) 2011 17 15 5.30
10
5.30
() 2012 11 27 10
4.70
4.70
15 4.99
10
4.99
(6) CBRC PBOC 2014 300 Tier
10 5.80
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Ogoooood
(7) CBRC PBOC 2014 11 13 30
Tier 10 5.00
(€)) Tier
(©) 2010 400 A A
CBRC
2015
2015 13
( )
12 31
2015 2014
14,917 38,597
32 915
O] (14,923) (24,595)
(26) -
12 31 - 14,917
(i) 2015 12 31 14,820,428,000 2014 24,540,517,000
A 5,656,643,241 2014 9,366,595,563 .37
(10) 2011 2015 2016 2025
(¢ND) 2012 2015 2016
2030
12) 2013 2015
2016 2023
(13) 2014 2015 2015 12 31
13 100
2015 12 31 13,295 2016
(14) 2015 2014 12 31
30
BOC Pte.
.20
2015 12 31 11 11 0.36
2.45 2014 12 31 0.23 2.74
2015 2014 12 31

221/504
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)
12 31
2015 2014

31,563 34,858

5,996 6,176
395 430
292 306
(264) (134)

37,982 41,636




32
2015 12 31 2003 12 31
2,635
2014 12 31 1,991
12 31
)
2015 2014 12 31
33
2005 11
25

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)

OooooOodd
2014 12 31 2,575 1,620
( )
12 31
2015 2014
4,566 4,815
150 201
213 317
(674) (767)
4,255 4,566
12 31
2015 2014
2.83 3.64
2.60 3.41
6.0 4.0 6.0 4.0
8.0 4.0 8.0 4.0
8.0 8.0
60 60
50 55 50 55

(China Life Insurance Mortality Table)(

223/504
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DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)

oOoOooodn

3.
( )
12 31
2015 2014
C ) C )
81,700 22,246 93,289 25,043
(22,035) (4,291) (23,574) (4,287)
59,665 17,955 69,715 20,756
34.
( )
12 31
2015 2014
C ) C )
121,017 30,437 116,577 29,242
19,125 4,781 20,305 5,076
27,946 6,922 18,981 4,745
1,629 290 202 53
12,493 2,329 4,252 1,007
182,210 44,759 160,317 40,123
(37,615) (9,404) (22,709) (5,677)
(20, 402) (5,045) (9,879) (2,262)
(14,917) 2,575) (11,880) (2,041)
(10, 447) (2,048) (10,824) (2,109)
(39,164) (7,732) (35,310) (7,278)
(122,545) (26,804) (90,602) (19,367)
59,665 17,955 69,715 20,756
2015 12 31 70,336
(2014 12 31 53,296 ) .22.

224/504



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)

OooooOodd
34.
( )
12 31
2015 2014

20,756 19,543

« ) . an 4,579
« ) (2,546) (3.497)

(178) 131

12 31 17,955 20,756

3.
( )
12 31
2015 2014

1,195 6,281
(1,550) (255)
(295) (215)
573 (1,232)

an 4,579

35
2015 MOF BOCHK(Holdings) BOCHK
BOCHK

Cinda Financial Holdings Co., Limited ( Cinda Financial )(
Company Limited ( )

2015 12 31

225/504

)

China Cinda (HK) Holdings

2015
12 31

13,679
13,433
18,214
138,292
44,267
10,052

237,937

3,118
2,522
184,957
6,253

196,850

228
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OooooOodd
36
(
12 31
2015 2014
® 174,256 163,228
72,867 58,218
8,242 8,275
37,193 35,029
) 26,711 26,158
7,099 8,104
7,012 7,224
©) 3,362 2,616
O] 1,617 5,776
® 45,410 37,933
383,769 352,561
(€Y)
(
12 31
2015 2014
155, 652 141,708
11,099 15,441
7,505 6,079
174,256 163,228
(
12 31
2015 2014
163,228 132,052
286,406 281,578
(275,378) (250,402)
12 31 174,256 163,228
@
(
2015 2015
12 31
22,147 54,462 (54,693) 21,916
- 2,919 (2,919) -
697 3,280 (3,089) 888
134 6,587 (6,563) 158
24 2,060 (2,062) 22
7 413 (413) 7
1 163 (163) 1
2 223 (223) 2
30 5,428 (5,408) 50
2,865 1,911 (1,407) 3,369
12 7 (6) 13
239 2,669 (2,623) 285
0 26,158 80,122 (79,569) 26,711

226/504



®
(i) 2015 2014 12 31
(©)
.40.
12 31
®

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)

OooooOodd
( )
2014 2014
12 31
21,666 53,857 (53,376) 22,147
- 2,443 (2,443) -
614 2,984 (2,901) 697
114 6,272 (6,252) 134
1 1,862 (1,839) 24
4 447 (444) 7
1 157 (157) 1
2 201 (201) 2
33 4,978 (4,981) 30
2,315 1,925 (1,375) 2,865
12 20 (20) 12
167 2,455 (2,383) 239
24,929 77,601 (76,372) 26,158
( )
12 31
2015 2014
860 606
2,502 2,010
3,362 2,616
12 31
2015 2014
2,616 2,139
807 624
(61) (147)
3,362 2,616
2015 12 31
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
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37
37.

2015 12 31

2015

2015 12 31

A

37.

37.

29.69

37.

2015 12 31

2014

2014

2015

@

@

®)

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)

ooooooo
BOC Pte.
( )
12 31
2015 2014
75 68
75 69
226 69
178 375
554 581
(53) (54)
501 527
A H
( (
1.00 ) 1.00 )
205,108,871,605 83,622,276,395 288,731,148,000
.29 5,656,643,241 - 5,656,643,241
210,765,514,846 83,622,276,395 294,387,791,241
( )
12 31
2015 2014
139,921 128,948
177 1,849
140,098 130,797
2015 12 31
2014 12 31 7.22
( )
2015 2015 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) )
399.4 39,782 - - - - 399.4 39,782
320.0 31,963 - - - - 320.0 31,963
- - 280.0 27,969 - - 280.0 27,969
719.4 71,745 280.0 27,969 - - 999.4 99,714
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CBRC

@

CBRC

®

CBRC

38
38.

2016 30
15,220

38.

MOF [2012]

2016 30
2015 12 31

20

2014

2014 10 23 399.4
100
6.75
2019 10 23
2014 11 21 320
100 320
2019 11 21
2015 13 280
100 280
2020 13
CBRC
10
50
25
2015 12 31
15,628
2015 12 31
19,005 2014
BOC
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399.4
18.07
6.0
5.5
Tier
10
1.5
14,177
BOCHK



6,651

38.
2014 12 31
2016
31
51,518
2015 28
2016 19
5.5%
39
BOC
40
40.
2015 12 31

860

2016

(2014

2015

12

14

31

6,190

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)

OooooOodd
2014 12 31 BOCHK
55,934 2015 17
2015 12 31 2015 12
0.175 2014 0.19
5,012
1,540
( )
12 31
2015 2014
45,539 39,077
4,658 2,303
2,462 1,189
52,659 42,569
2015 12 31
606 ) .36
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40.

40.

40.
()

¢ )

40.

2015 12 31
2014 12 31 11
BOC
2015 12 31
6,213
30,220 2014 12 31
MOF

24,094

Pte.

30,115
28,134
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DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)

oOoOooodn

12 31
2015 2014
325,025 126,995
2,052 3,227
327,077 130,222
2015 12 31
(2014 12 31
12 31
2015 2014
64,492 57,149
2,652 37,895
721 712
23 28
148 1,916
- 232
68,036 97,932
12 31
2015 2014
6,313 5,852
4,864 4,706
3,675 3,591
7,498 7,947
22,350 22,096
7,001 2014 12 31
2014 12 31 27,043

MOF



40.

40.

2015 12 31
2014 12

o

@

®

€Y)
2014 12 31

@

®

2015 12 31

31 37,810

2015 12 31
258,134

CBRC
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44,698

)
12 31
2015 2014
88,629 82,431
744,650 633,338
1,077,070 1,148,535
558,141 479,685
386,725 484,243
169,876 248,158
121,720 145,593
63,222 68,228
3,210,033 3,290,211
313,131
)
12 31
2015 2014
1,045,835 1,293,082

2014 12 31



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn

41
( )
12 31
2015 2014
217,599 342,087
586,733 556,498
185,606 195,094
62,140 54,472
1,052,078 1,148,151
42
42.1 CIC 2007 29 15,500 cIc
cIc
cIcC
42.
)
828,209
64.02
64.02
71093296-1
()
( )
12 31
2015 2014
26,442 35,001
75,811 38,940
(84,309) (47,499)
12 31 17,944 26,442
2015 12 31 6,471
2014 12 31 5,831
30

¢ )

233/504



42.

42.
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EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)

)
12 31
2015 2014
35,668 59,807
122,169 58,583
389,968 284,151
2,542 446
10,533 11,192
(299,098) (273,142)
(205,400) (22,470)
(2.631) (707)
(14,182) -
2,553 2,944
0.00 5.70 0.00  8.20
0.00  6.20 0.04  6.80
0.00 6.38 0.54  8.40
0.66  6.40 0.77 7.28
0.00  6.25 0.00  6.51
0.00  9.50 0.10  8.89
0.00  0.30
)
12 31
2015 2014
593 714
(8,975) (4,008)
- 120
2,261 1,406

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)

ooOooooo
(D) (@D)
BOC 73665036-4 37.14  37.14 2,500
( )
NA 80.00 w 0.0025
71782747-8 20.00  20.00 100
56456896-1 40.00  40.00 1,940
MA2MRFTW-5 46.83  46.83 NA
NA 19.50 [6)) 0.01
55967948-0 33.69  33.69 NA
( )
79478975-1 12.65 w 1,000 Jee
77076550-1 10.36 6] 3,050
&l 76573427-6 12.35 (©) 165
@
42.
2015 2014 12 31
42.
2015 2014 12 31
2015 2014 12 31
( )
12 31
2015 2014
O 10 27
1 1
11 28
(1) 2015 12 31
2015
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42.
CBRC CSRC
2015 12 31
61 (2014 12 31 77 ) 18 (2014 12 31
16 )
42.8
( )
12 31
2015 2014
32,415 29,291
64,707 55,215
(58,889) (115, 285)
(52,888) (32,499)
) (@D)
®
BOCHK 2001 12 34,806 100.00 100.00
BOCI(#) 1998 10 3,539 100.00 100.00
BOCG 1992 23 3,749 100.00 100.00
BOCG 1993 18 34,052 100.00 100.00
1942 1,000 50.31 50.31
BOCUK 2007 24 250 100.00 100.00
BOC 2005 4,535 100.00  100.00
BOCHK @) 2001 12 52,864 66.06 66.06
BOCHK(®(4) 1964 10 16 43,043 66.06 100.00
(O] 1948 3,145 66.06 100.00
(©]0)] 1947 24 300 46.57 70.49
1980 480 66.06 100.00
(O] 1997 12 200 76.43 100.00
BOC 1993 11 25 608 100.00  100.00
@
(2) BOCHK
®) 66.06 BOCHK 70.49
) 66.06  66.06  46.57 100 BOCHK
BOCI 54
34
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BOCHK
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EDINETOOOO

DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)

2015 12 31 2015 12 31

( )

BOCHK
544,487 38,541 24,710 63,251 32,050 (24,741) 615,056
(262,336) (13,441) (18,072) (31,513) (17,298) 24,741  (286,406)
282,151 25,100 6,638 31,738 14,761 - 328,650
78,445 12,984 6,782 19,766 4,978 (2,284) 100,905
(3.225)  (3,470)  (1,567)  (5,037)  (1,676) 1,443 (8,495)
75,220 9,514 5,215 14,729 3,302 841 92,410
¢ ) 8,942 887 (80) 807 (289) - 9,460
3,487 1,103 1,077 2,270 8 - 5,765
) 13,819 12,246 11,717 23,963 129 (284) 37,627
383,619 48,940 24,567 73,507 17,911 (1,125) 473,912
) (150,393)  (20,857) (10,513) (31,370)  (4,763) 1,125  (185,401)
(56,409)  (1,252) (843)  (2,095) (770) - (59,274)
176,817 26,831 13,211 40,042 12,378 - 229,237
- 1 2,333 2,334 - - 2,334
176,817 26,832 15,544 42,376 12,378 - 231,571
(52,154)
179,417
13,053,114 1,946,338 1,053,777 3,000,115 1,819,844 (1,068,319) 16,804,754
- 51 10,792 10,843 - - 10,843
13,053,114 1,946,389 1,064,569 3,010,958 1,819,844 (1,068,319) 16,815,597
® 99,138 22,463 101,458 123,921 4,702 (161) 227,600
11,970,984 1,811,943 972,123 2,784,066 1,770,859 (1,067,917) 15,457,992
¢ (13,701) 2,287 10,328 12,615 1,086 - -
446 38 982 1,020 (625) (841) -
11,030 1,040 24,619 25,659 209 - 36,898
11,540 837 2,901 3,828 240 - 15,608
2,900,919 238,142 136,096 374,238 356,650  (430,774) 3,210,033
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OooooOodd
2014 12 31 2014 12 31
( )
BOCHK

536,899 39,180 26,915 66,095 36,904  (37,218) 602,680
(266,494)  (13,285)  (19,343) (32,628)  (19,674) 37,218  (281,578)
270,405 25,895 7,572 33,467 17,230 - 321,102
79,909 10,552 5,486 16,038 4,670 (2,079) 98,538
(2,701)  (3,077)  (1,203)  (4,280)  (1,637) 1,320 (7.298)
77,208 7,475 4,283 11,758 3,033 (759) 91,240
¢ )y 8,107 1,077 962 2,039 953 - 11,099
218 646 943 1,589 (12) - 1,795
® 13,436 7,576 10,140 17,716 187 47) 31,002
369,374 42,669 23,900 66,569 21,391 (1,006) 456,328
® (147,149)  (16,934)  (10,056)  (26,990)  (4,655) 1,006  (177,788)
(43,940) (832)  (2,018)  (2.850)  (1,591) - (48,381)
178,285 24,903 11,826 36,729 15,145 - 230,159
- 1 1,318 1,319 - - 1,319
178,285 24,904 13,144 38,048 15,145 - 231,478
(54,280)
177,198
12,071,129 1,693,707 1,007,565 2,701,272 1,843,435 (1,378,833) 15,237,003
- 46 14,333 14,379 - - 14,379
12,071,129 1,693,753 1,021,898 2,715,651 1,843,435 (1,378,833) 15,251,382
@ 99,043 21,731 86,536 108,267 4,956 (161) 212,105
11,125,104 1,578,712 943,151 2,521,863 1,799,659 (1,378,672) 14,067,954
¢ ) (26,168) 4,086 15,467 19,553 6,615 - -
245 76 869 945 (431) (759) -
13,528 811 20,624 21,435 290 - 35,253
11,620 859 2,839 3,698 245 - 15,563
3,252,579 186,419 120,720 307,139 288,371  (557,878) 3,290,211

(€))

@
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2015 12 31 2015 12 31
( )
338,078 186,931 141,272 1,228 2,166 942  (55,561) 615,056
(171,106)  (97,287) (70,820)  (315) (11) (2.,428) 55,561  (286,406)
C ) 166,972 89,644 70,452 913 2,155  (1,486) - 328,650
41,428 41,356 14,738 4,326 - 658  (1,601) 100,905
(2.943)  (2,948) (753) (1,205) (1,834) (G2 1,220 (8.495)
38,485 38,408 13,985 3,121  (1.834) 626 (381) 92,410
¢ ) 76 573 9,493 306 (582)  (419) 13 9,460
¢ ) 10 519 3,711 295 413 757 - 5,765
688 6,508 1,263 307 16,968 13,878  (1,985) 37,627

206,231 135,652 98,964 4,942 17,120 13,356  (2.353) 473,912
(73.563)  (70,594)  (18,850) (2.758) (15.914) (6.075) 2,353  (185,401)

¢ (42,153) (14,362)  (1,793) 60 67)  (959) - (59,274)
90,515 50,696 78,321 2,244 1,139 6,322 - 229,237

- - - 844 @) 1,533 (39) 2,334

90,515 50,696 78,321 3,088 1,135 7,855 (39) 231,571

(52,154)

179,417

7,185,768 2,960,341 6,300,439 74,058 106,706 279,010 (101,568) 16,804,754

- - - 3,888 - 7,015 (60) 10,843

7,185,768 2,960,341 6,300,439 77,946 106,706 286,025 (101,628) 16,815,597

7,907,454 5,232,341 2,078,706 64,366 93,485 183,047 (101,407) 15,457,992

¢ ) (18,528) 54,247  (35,228) 166 116 @773) - -
495 781 [6H) - (1,207) 313 (381) -

3,371 3,738 178 125 104 29,382 - 36,898

5,046 6,178 1,168 68 92 3,056 - 15,608

2,559,433 650,600 - - - - - 3,210,033
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2014 12 31 2014 12 31
( )
342,900 177,949 135,031 1,362 2,140 732 (57,434) 602,680
(181,584)  (91,575)  (63,097)  (442) - (2,314) 57,434  (281,578)
« ) 161,316 86,374 71,934 920 2,140  (1,582) - 321,102
49,861 35,257 11,147 3,298 - 496 (1,521) 98,538
(2,743)  (2,371) (658)  (877) (1,804) (28) 1,183 (7,298)
47,118 32,886 10,489 2,421  (1,804) 468 (338) 91,240
¢ ) 859 493 8,965 790 @ (19) 12 11,099
¢ ) 3 401 255 89 191 856 - 1,795
616 6,096 1,495 238 13,247 11,436  (2,036) 31,002
209,912 126,250 93,138 4,458 13,773 11,159  (2,362) 456,328
(73,960)  (67,514)  (17,774) (2.474) (12,504) (5,921) 2,359  (177,788)
(36,907)  (9,630) (336)  (335) (10) (1,163) - (48,381)
99,045 49,106 75,028 1,649 1,259 4,075 (3) 230,159
- - - 382 5) 939 3 1,319
99,045 49,106 75,028 2,031 1,254 5,014 - 231,478
(54,280)
177,198
6,681,512 2,532,905 5,705,555 91,622 86,076 251,585 (112,252) 15,237,003
- - - 3,101 - 11,336 (58) 14,379
6,681,512 2,532,905 5,705,555 94,723 86,076 262,921 (112,310) 15,251,382
7,261,202 4,691,732 1,900,406 83,882 75,015 167,807 (112,090) 14,067,954
¢ ) (23,561) 55,628  (31,493) 301 124 (999) - -
10 191 - - (1,166) 1,303 (338) -
4,065 4,497 215 61 75 26,340 - 35,253
5,046 6,339 1,082 71 57 2,968 - 15,563
2,724,474 565,737 - - - - - 3,290,211
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2015

31

45

31

(2014

31

12 31

554

8,597

25,550

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)

OooooOodd
( )
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
5,170 4,942 10,246 10,195
2014 12 31
2015 12 31 858 (2014 12
)
2015 12 31
1,107,079 (2014 12 31 846,947 ) 2015 12
(2014 7,966 )
2015 12 31
19,300
)
2015 12 31 (2014 12 31 )
2015 12
12,892 (2014 12,713 )

.44 2015 12 31
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OooooOodd
277,800 (2014 12 31
160,900 )
2015 12 31
( )

2015 12 31
4,832 15,853 - - 20,685 20,702
- - - 100 100 100
- 243 - 270,886 271,129 271,129
- 26,837 6,353 116 33,306 33,306

2014 12 31
1,209 10,042 - - 11,251 11,289
- - - 170 170 170
- - - 120,012 120,012 120,012
- 11,907 11,311 55 23,273 23,273

243/504



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)

OooooOodd
46
( )

2015 12 31
32,710 - 32,710 (19,513) (834) 12,363
851 - 851 (851) - -
9,308 (6,934) 2,374 - - 2,374
42,869 (6,934) 35,935 (20,364) (834) 14,737

2014 12 31
21,502 - 21,502 (10,808) (1,654) 9,040
11,671 (9,140) 2,531 - - 2,531
33,173 (9,140) 24,033 (10,808) (1,654) 11,571

( )

2015 12 31
43,965 - 43,965 (19,931) (7.535) 16,499
4,636 - 4,636 (4,636) - -
7,690 (6,934) 756 - - 756
56,291 (6,934) 49,357 (24,567) (7.535) 17,255

2014 12 31
21,580 - 21,580 (11,182) (1,028) 9,370
2,960 - 2,960 (2,960) - -
9,362 (9,140) 222 - - 222
33,902 (9,140) 24,762 (14,142) (1,028) 9,592

1SDA
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47.

(TIAN Guoli)

2016

30

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn

( )
12 31

2015 2014
649,628 731,409
2,089,759 2,211,837
425,192 405,101
5,777 4,908
173,540 191,625
56,129 44,035
58,178 26,433
8,027,160 7,377,812
2,993,194 2,225,804
688,981 445,465
1,710,303 1,355,313
593,910 425,026
94,354 94,705
60 56
85,685 85,772
1,951 2,036
24,085 26,277
101,986 109,547
14,786,678 13,537,357
1,746,218 1,814,414
364,428 299,656
5,917 4,999
479,216 233,987
48,344 29,127
10,403,693 9,565,329
10,089,331 9,279,854
314,362 285,475
233,986 233,383
34,455 38,222
4,255 4,566
101 121
254,157 243,402
13,574,770 12,467,206
294,388 288,731
99,714 71,745
138,832 129,404
7,104 (346)
109,215 93,868
172,029 152,633
390,626 334,116
1,211,908 1,070,151
14,786,678 13,537,357

(CHEN Siqing)
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47.
( )
2015 288,731 71,745 129,404 (346) 93,868 152,633 334,116 1,070,151
- - - 7,450 - - 152,199 159,649
5,657 - 10,973 - - - - 16,630
- 27,969 - - - - - 27,969
- - - - 15,347 - (15,347) -
_ - - - - 19,396  (19,396) -
- - - - - - (60,946)  (60,946)
- - (1,545) - - - - (1,545)
2015 12 31 204,388 99,714 138,832 7,104 109,215 172,029 390,626 1,211,908
2014 279,365 - 113,976  (6,472) 78,219 138,425 262,447 865,960
- - - 6,126 - - 156,281 162,407
9,366 - 17,974 - - - - 27,340
- 71,745 - - - - - 71,745
_ _ - - 15,649 - (15,649) -
_ - - - - 14,212 (14,212) -
- - - - - - (54,755)  (54,755)
- - (2,546) - - - - (2,546)
- - - - - 4) 4 -
2014 12 31 288,731 71,745 129,404 (346) 93,868 152,633 334,116 1,070,151
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( )
12 31

2015 2014
581,007 727,931
2,196,063 2,306,088
426,848 402,280
91,191 76,517
104,082 86,429
82,236 47,967
8,935,195 8,294,744
1,032,004 713,603
1,790,790 1,424,463
606,710 430,699
147,441 142,392
15,993,567 14,653,113
1,077,070 1,148,535
2,132,963 2,141,676
3,210,033 3,290,211
19,203,600 17,943,324

2015
2014 12 31
2015 12 31 46.53 2014 12 31

46.23 18.37 2014 12 31 14.77
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( )
12 31
2015 2014
(@) (@)
7,199,094 78.80 6,605,773 77.87
1,100,615 12.05 1,085,928 12.80
836,151 9.15 791,574 9.33
9,135,860 100.00 8,483,275 100.00
12 31
2015 2014
(@) )
1,158,592 16.09 1,042,449 15.78
484,432 6.73 457,802 6.93
2,863,049 39.77 2,685,603 40.66
1,768,388 24.57 1,597,434 24.18
924,633 12.84 822,485 12.45
7,199,094 100.00 6,605,773 100.00
( )
2015 12 31
734,829 127,512 194,426 1,056,767
4,065,532 632,015 615,598 5,313,145
2,398,733 341,088 26,127 2,765,948
7,199,094 1,100,615 836,151 9,135,860
2014 12 31
713,054 148,191 255,968 1,117,213
3,808,411 606,550 513,422 4,928,383
2,084,308 331,187 22,184 2,437,679

6,605,773 1,085,928 791,574 8,483,275
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DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)

oOoOooodn
( )
12 31
2015 2014
(@) (@)
1,684,276 18.43 1,690,267 19.92
1,318,028 14.43 1,270,883 14.98
892,207 9.77 825,423 9.73
760,511 8.32 714,573 8.42
442,536 4.84 413,033 4.87
371,581 4.07 356,991 4.21
332,835 3.64 230,508 2.72
184,112 2.01 170,358 2.01
168,631 1.85 189,017 2.23
110,242 1.21 89,024 1.05
104,953 1.15 95,519 1.13
6,369,912 69.72 6,045,596 71.27
2,045,787 22.39 1,694,275 19.97
268,923 2.95 268,026 3.16
451,238 4.94 475,378 5.60
2,765,948 30.28 2,437,679 28.73
9,135,860 100.00 8,483,275 100.00
12 31
2015 2014
(@) (@)
1,401,271 19.47 1,385,487 20.97
859,541 11.94 821,011 12.43
779,443 10.83 707,646 10.71
462,914 6.43 470,149 7.12
397,511 5.52 372,713 5.64
227,805 3.16 201,333 3.05
209,285 2.91 112,005 1.70
161,428 2.24 147,512 2.23
168,608 2.34 188,983 2.86
104,719 1.45 85,707 1.30
27,836 0.39 28,919 0.44
4,800,361 66.68 4,521,465 68.45
1,779,310 24.72 1,444,715 21.87
256,204 3.56 256,049 3.87
363,219 5.04 383,544 5.81
2,398,733 33.32 2,084,308 31.55

7,199,094 100.00 6,605,773 100.00
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oOoOooodn
( )
12 31
2015 2014
(@) (@)
2,727,927 29.86 2,650,613 31.25
1,867,312 20.44 1,625,428 19.16
3,548,200 38.84 3,158,716 37.23
992,421 10.86 1,048,518 12.36
9,135,860 100.00 8,483,275 100.00
12 31
2015 2014
(@) (@)
1,925,265 26.74 1,831,113 27.72
1,583,108 21.99 1,368,779 20.72
2,992,839 41.57 2,708,384 41.00
697,882 9.70 697,497 10.56
7,199,094 100.00 6,605,773 100.00
( )
12 31
2015 2014 2015 2014
6,229,020 5,950,539 4,665,423 4,430,716
35,316 12,928 31,746 11,184
105,576 82,129 103,192 79,565
6,369,912 6,045,596 4,800,361 4,521,465
2,713,972 2,391,737 2,351,401 2,043,175
27,315 28,282 22,889 23,641
24,661 17,660 24,443 17,492
2,765,948 2,437,679 2,398,733 2,084,308
9,135,860 8,483,275 7,199,094 6,605,773
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oOoOooodn
CBRC
( )
12 31
2015 2014
6,052,761 176,259 6,229,020 5,787,588 162,951 5,950,539
2,712,922 1,050 2,713,972 2,391,091 646 2,391,737
8,765,683 177,309 8,942,992 8,178,679 163,597 8,342,276
12 31
2015 2014
4,497,469 167,954 4,665,423 4,276,206 154,510 4,430,716
2,351,299 102 2,351,401 2,043,055 120 2,043,175
6,848,768 168,056 7,016,824 6,319,261 154,630 6,473,891
CBRC
( )
2015 12 31
27,271 7,727 318 35,316
14,925 12,361 29 27,315
42,196 20,088 347 62,631
2014 12 31
10,310 2,441 177 12,928
17,857 10,341 84 28,282
28,167 12,782 261 41,210
2015 12 31
23,924 7,589 233 31,746
10,953 11,936 - 22,889
34,877 19,525 233 54,635
2014 12 31
8,798 2,236 150 11,184
13,775 9,866 - 23,641
22,573 12,102 150 34,825
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)

EDINETOOOO

DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)

12 31
2015 2014
) ) ) ()
127,635 98.00 1.77 97,057 97.26 1.47
1,482 1.14 0.13 1,827 1.83 0.17
1,120 0.86 0.13 905 0.91 0.11
130,237 100.00 1.43 99,789 100.00 1.18
12 31
2015 2014
D) ) ) (D)
20,363 15.95 1.76 15,675 16.15 1.50
8,081 6.33 1.67 5,507 5.67 1.20
54,508 42.71 1.90 44,754 46.11 1.67
29,970 23.48 1.69 20,974 21.61 1.31
14,713 11.53 1.59 10,147 10.46 1.23
127,635 100.00 1.77 97,057 100.00 1.47
12 31
2015 2014
) ) ) D)
105,576 81.06 1.66 82,129 82.30 1.36
24,661 18.94 0.89 17,660 17.70 0.72
130,237 100.00 1.43 99,789 100.00 1.18
12 31
2015 2014
) ) D) (D)
103,192 80.85 2.15 79,565 81.98 1.76
24,443 19.15 1.02 17,492 18.02 0.84
127,635 100.00 1.77 97,057 100.00 1.47
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(
12 31
2015 2014

) ) Q) )
44,385 34.08 3.17 34,541 34.61 2.49
35,561 27.30 4.14 27,925 27.98 3.40
7,878 6.05 1.01 8,291 8.31 1.17
4,205 3.23 0.91 2,149 2.15 0.46
3,427 2.63 0.86 3,106 3.11 0.83
3,337 2.56 1.46 1,103 1.11 0.55
136 0.10 0.06 250 0.25 0.22
3,150 2.42 1.95 1,407 1.41 0.95
282 0.22 0.17 198 0.20 0.10
299 0.23 0.29 312 0.31 0.36
532 0.41 1.01 283 0.28 0.98
103,192 79.23 2.15 79,565 79.72 1.76
7,118 5.47 0.40 5,045 5.06 0.35
8,636 6.63 3.37 5,277 5.29 2.06
8,689 6.67 2.39 7,170 7.19 1.87
24,443 18.77 1.02 17,492 17.54 0.84
127,635 98.00 1.77 97,057 97.26 1.47
2,602 2.00 0.13 2,732 2.74 0.15
130,237 100.00 1.43 99,789 100.00 1.18

(

2015 12 31
127,635 (59.279) (22.227) 46,129
1,482 (752) (78) 652
1,120 (760) (39) 321
130,237 (60,791) (22,344) 47,102
2014 12 31
97,057 (47,582) (16,305) 33,170
1,827 (1,102) “n 678
905 (555) (53) 297
99,789 (49,239) (16,405) 34,145
.17.
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oOoOooodn

( )
12 31
2015 2014
73,143 56,416
32,433 25,713
105,576 82,129
24,894 18,451
( )
12 31
2015 2014
72,103 54,696
31,089 24,869
103,192 79,565
24,041 17,502
2015 2014 12 31
2015 2014 12 31 90
( )
2015 12 31
90 91 361
360
17,438 13,626 6,740 2,713 40,517
19,002 27,470 9,287 4,328 60,087
34,465 19,904 10,135 5,347 69,851
1,513 4,380 2,260 419 8,572

72,418 65,380 28,422 12,807 179,027
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DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)

2014 12 31
90 91 361
360
15,946 7,360 3,038 3,018 29,362
13,988 13,760 8,593 2,167 38,508
24,553 14,713 7,483 5,128 51,877
3,904 1,119 583 583 6,189
58,391 36,952 19,697 10,896 125,936
2015 12 31
90 91 361
360
16,410 13,479 6,586 2,664 39,139
16,501 27,455 9,268 3,900 57,124
30,140 19,691 10,040 5,337 65,208
1,045 4,236 2,175 413 7,869
64,096 64,861 28,069 12,314 169,340
2014 12 31
90 91 361
360
14,843 7,157 2,874 2,962 27,836
13,323 13,654 8,517 2,139 37,633
20,199 14,596 7,003 5,116 46,914
3,050 892 168 569 4,679
51,415 36,299 18,562 10,786 117,062
( )
12 31
2015 2014
169,340 117,062
5,882 7,296
3,805 1,578
179,027 125,936
1.96 1.48
(72.418) (58,391)
106,609 67,545
(49, 286) (29,886)
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OooooOodd
2015 12 31
.12
.14 2015 12 31
A
( )
( )
2015 12 31
AAA AA A A
- - 1,409,744 1,731 - 1,411,475
62,293 - - - - 62,293
- - 41,654 399,634 - 411,288
62,090 100 735 137,062 92,991 292,978
144,391 - 12,142 112,319 9,867 278,719
160,000 - - - - 160,000
428,774 100 1,464,275 650,746 102,858 2,646,753
- 193,524 24,256 68,372 3,346 289,498
849 22,734 21,779 5,172 - 50,534
7,042 4,614 45,818 73,998 25,795 157,267
10,974 27,423 15,888 35,616 16,875 106,776
18,865 248,295 107,741 183,158 46,016 604,075
(e 447,639 248,395 1,572,016 833,904 148,874 3,250,828
2014 12 31
AAA AA A A
- - 889,823 2,931 - 892,754
42,979 - - - - 42,979
- - 55,491 364,887 - 420,378
42,889 498 516 111,845 51,858 207,606
230,144 - 16,624 74,238 13,218 334,224
160,000 - - - - 160,000
476,012 498 962,454 553,901 65,076 2,057,941
- 52,504 132,344 5,457 2,849 193,154
699 25,028 14,556 5,334 - 45,617
2,017 5,583 51,478 64,896 14,081 138,055
9,430 15,840 3,247 21,617 10,574 60,708
12,146 98,955 201,625 97,304 27,504 437,534
(e 488,158 99,453 1,164,079 651,205 92,580 2,495,475
@ 2015
12 31 1,410
194 2014 12 31 1,924 218 2015 12 31
1,314 296
2014 12 31 3,256 370
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¢ )

ooooooo
CCR
CBRC
CCR
CVA
CCP
CCR
( )
12 31
2015 2014
74,872 29,431
2,506 2,776
365 524
3,547 3,128
81,290 35,859
CVA 45,389 26,620
CCpP 1,208 2,038
127,887 64,517
.22
VaR

VaR
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ooooooo
VaR BOCHK
BOCI BOCHK BOCI 99
VaR
VaR VaR
VaR
VaR VaR
VaR
2015 2014 12 31 VaR
( )
12 31
2015 2014
VaR
6.98 13.32 3.44 4.50 7.43 1.65
3.86 8.41 1.81 9.41 14.28 3.50
0.30 0.81 0.09 0.09 0.37 0.03
0.71 1.32 0.06 0.44 1.32 0.01
VaR 7.91 14.41 4.09 10.24 14.93 5.37
2015 2014 12 31 VaR
BOCHK BOCI
( )
12 31
2015 2014
BOCHK
VaR( )
2.67 4.85 1.65 3.13 5.09 2.11
1.70 2.62 1.13 1.75 2.51 1.24
0.02 0.05 0.00 0.04 0.09 0.01
0.00 0.02 0.00 0.03 0.17 0.00
BOCHK 3.27 4.95 2.30 3.09 4.52 2.09
VaR
BOCI VaR( )
1.35 2.29 0.50 0.95 1.97 0.31
0.95 1.76 0.66 1.09 1.54 0.67
0.08 0.32 0.04 0.18 0.61 0.04
BOCI VaR 2.33 3.74 1.31 1.42 2.62 0.97

( ) 2015 2014 12 31 BOCHK VaR
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( ) BocI VaR

VaR

VaR VaR

¢ )

25
( )
12 31
2015 2014
25 (2,566) (1,171)
25 2,566 1,171
25

12 10,716 2014 9,532
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DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)

oOoOooodn
( )
2015 12 31
12
124,019 91,767 361,286 1,827 - 75,479 654,378
2,064,120 - - - - 131,943 2,196,063
158,286 71,528 173,974 23,060 - - 426,848
8,972 13,959 20,211 30,615 30,325 14,980 119,062
- - - - - 82,236 82,236
2,271,591 1,900,358 4,337,626 93,349 59,740 272,531 8,935,195
64,132 151,607 167,734 455,700 192,482 46,878 1,078,533
46,486 91,150 301,202 819,218 532,734 - 1,790,790
39,338 53,237 204,940 206,918 102,277 - 606,710
135,688 35,564 39,997 21,372 443 4,873 237,937
6,006 1,907 588 - - 679,344 687,845
4,918,638 2,411,077 5,607,558 1,652,059 918,001 1,308,264 16,815,597
1,170,766 60,558 221,521 129,352 - 182,123 1,764,320
230,608 80,054 83,282 19,335 - 2,430 415,709
237,435 181,274 27,917 1,318 - - 447,944
- - - - - 69,160 69,160
6,529,728 1,221,139 2,225,183 1,581,239 3,628 168,254 11,729,171
5,828 9,235 32,987 126,217 108,662 - 282,929
115,324 31,314 33,242 4,999 16 11,955 196,850
9,250 3,689 2,960 12,116 17,017 506,877 551,909
8,298,939 1,587,263 2,627,092 1,874,576 129,323 940,799 15,457,992
(3.380,301) 823,814 2,980,466 (222,517) 788,678 367,465 1,357,605
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ooOoooOoo
( )
2014 12 31
12
364,984 169,796 191,207 1,565 - 85,502 813,054
2,152,838 - - - - 153,250 2,306,088
164,596 99,775 128,637 9,272 - - 402,280
9,472 12,238 17,299 32,662 14,638 18,219 104,528
_ _ - - - 47,967 47,967
2,125,565 1,846,482 3,991,102 57,124 45,998 228,473 8,294,744
65,596 97,646 149,386 259,841 140,631 37,585 750,685
32,645 61,129 218,051 744,993 367,645 - 1,424,463
11,977 49,983 92,634 47,604 228,501 - 430,699
5,117 6,638 4,175 - - 660,944 676,874
4,932,790 2,343,687 4,792,491 1,153,061 797,413 1,231,940 15,251,382
1,557,680 53,525 61,690 59,769 26,021 21,562 1,780,247
129,603 105,721 97,741 10,307 - 4,899 348,271
111,424 43,924 51,424 18,553 - 5 225,330
- - - - - 40,734 40,734
5,879,818 1,290,696 2,237,125 1,328,283 11,797 137,504 10,885,223
12,264 35,473 16,477 100,137 113,694 - 278,045
13,473 19,988 9,562 1,117 858 465,106 510,104
7,704,262 1,549,327 2,474,019 1,518,166 152,370 669,810 14,067,954
(2,771,472) 794,360 2,318,472 (365,105) 645,043 562,130 1,183,428
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BOCHK
VaR
( )
2015 2014 2015 2014
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
(654) (503) (280) (236)
472 416 (1,471) (1,230)
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ooooood
2015 2014 12 31
(
2015 12 31
547,998 64,079 17,314 6,457 7,234 2,374 8,922 654,378
1,719,641 344,446 13,189 20,454 28,358 44,901 25,074 2,196,063
273,947 82,142 30,764 2,908 32 2,655 34,400 426,848
46,844 52,709 18,831 580 17 81 - 119,062
29,044 2,213 35,320 438 312 11,200 3,709 82,236
6,840,062 1,147,024 631,308 140,075 9,256 24,824 142,646 8,935,195
576,382 261,381 114,358 12,222 65,685 2,647 45,858 1,078,533
1,618,055 160,191 5,702 117 647 584 5,494 1,790,790
591,781 2,978 2 - - - 11,949 606,710
82,994 44,845 102,090 3,614 235 694 3,465 237,937
269,996 114,845 109,632 2,057 2,809 1,793 186,713 687,845
12,596,744 2,276,853 1,078,510 188,922 114,585 91,753 468,230 16,815,507
1,002,165 510,671 21,686 32,645 16,113 6,443 174,507 1,764,320
232,832 170,901 9,909 - - 2,067 - 415,709
289,664 112,002 13,527 22,310 1,940 4,522 3,979 447,944
6,718 14,438 32,383 498 144 10,993 3,986 69,160
9,114,667 1,201,162 881,340 148,277 45,044 44,191 294,490 11,729,171
167,300 102,956 788 8,321 - - 3,564 282,929
74,740 39,000 75,136 3,900 227 535 3,303 196,850
327,837 62,504 144,082 2,463 426 2,263 12,334 551,909
11,215,923 2,213,634 1,178,851 218,423 63,894 71,014 496,253 15,457,992
1,380,821 63,219  (100,341)  (29,501) 50,691 20,739 (28,023) 1,357,605
(208,637) 22,587 181,262 36,718  (48,410) (18,568) 49,757 14,709
2,055,776 725,409 250,301 81,590 6,348 22,980 67,629 3,210,033
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Ooooooog
( )
2014 12 31
712,920 70,538 9,859 4,286 1,916 1,087 12,448 813,054
1,904,294 298,087 10,685 50,231 3,867 18,672 20,252 2,306,088
259,408 82,968 13,005 1,057 308 7,306 38,228 402,280
44,797 38,100 21,059 427 - 90 55 104,528
9,689 13,640 20,316 627 118 1,711 1,866 47,967
6,176,901 1,302,278 613,502 67,156 7,993 13,295 113,619 8,294,744
393,396 203,998 101,447 11,093 331 5,815 34,605 750,685
1,268,586 143,405 6,097 - 616 511 5,248 1,424,463
422,189 233 1,973 - - - 6,304 430,699
261,225 89,192 120,636 1,350 909 1,656 201,906 676,874
11,453,405 2,242,439 918,579 136,227 16,058 50,143 434,531 15,251,382
1,033,495 499,133 17,925 27,945 8,843 5,315 187,591 1,780,247
185,775 147,335 15,161 - - - - 348,271
118,159 82,386 14,383 2,077 3,353 2,294 2,678 225,330
2,927 13,164 14,653 891 2,099 3,353 3,647 40,734
8,584,335 976,427 799,630 168,279 38,179 63,533 254,840 10,885,223
174,698 84,086 742 9,828 1,572 5,273 1,846 278,045
298,682 62,509 129,523 2,555 881 1,295 14,659 510,104
10,398,071 1,865,040 992,017 211,575 54,927 81,063 465,261 14,067,954
1,055,334 377,399 (73,438)  (75,348) (38,869)  (30,920)  (30,730) 1,183,428
(75,751)  (249,557) 147,721 72,896 37,780 31,254 40,651 4,994
2,247,538 667,694 203,347 79,163 7,011 19,757 65,701 3,290,211

269/504



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn

2015 12 31
297
2014 12 31 247
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oOoOooodn
( )
2015 12 31
12
22 130,446 69,030 91,767 361,284 1,827 - 654,378
1,580,456 576,307 26,582 136 12,582 - - 2,196,063
- - 158,256 69,729 174,865 23,998 - 426,848
14,460 - 8,729 12,997 18,787 32,407 31,682 119,062
- 13,629 7,001 6,845 44,929 8,834 908 82,236

49,971 110,598 406,547 918,256 2,173,435 2,250,542 3,025,846 8,935,195

46,529 - 28,557 116,306 181,096 510,301 195,744 1,078,553
- - 29,719 68,270 287,726 869,988 535,087 1,790,790
- - 39,338 53,237 204,616 207,242 102,277 606,710
10,061 13,924 39,762 24,869 53,170 71,440 24,711 237,937
239,203 293,031 34,025 26,729 47,425 29,215 18,217 687,845

1,940,702 1,137,935 847,636 1,389,141 3,559,917 4,005,794 3,934,472 16,815,597

- 1,121,330 182,428 68,261 236,929 155,372 - 1,764,320
- 123,381 109,657 80,054 83,282 19,335 - 415,709
- - 237,435 181,274 27,917 1,318 - 447,944
- 8,874 7,279 7,721 33,636 9,422 2,228 69,160
- 5,310,840 1,349,408 1,211,480 2,236,700 1,606,338 14,405 11,729,171
- - 5,828 9,235 32,987 124,591 110,288 282,929
- 77,062 48,191 31,001 35,309 5,265 22 196,850
- 169,964 71,263 36,826 139,009 74,795 60,052 551,909

6,811,451 2,011,489 1,625,852 2,825,769 1,996,436 186,995 15,457,992

1,940,702 (5,673,516) (1,163,853) (236,711) 734,148 2,009,358 3,747,477 1,357,605
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oOoOooodn
( )
2014 12 31
12
- 190,770 259,717 169,796 191,206 1,565 - 813,054
1,727,805 549,386 28,897 - - - - 2,306,088
- - 164,596 99,529 128,686 9,469 - 402,280
17,670 - 9,844 11,738 17,104 33,326 14,846 104,528
- 8,559 5,542 5,753 21,443 4,185 2,485 47,967

32,171 111,458 391,002 1,000,634 2,106,643 2,050,490 2,602,346 8,294,744

37,082 - 37,339 60,324 152,721 312,691 150,528 750,685
- - 11,079 31,189 191,746 794,693 395,756 1,424,463
- - 11,977 49,983 86,774 52,664 229,301 430,699
228,158 287,218 35,126 29,822 25,947 48,146 22,457 676,874

2,042,886 1,147,391 955,119 1,458,768 2,922,270 3,307,229 3,417,719 15,251,382

- 1,286,794 184,231 53,489 107,013 120,949 27,771 1,780,247
- 111,482 23,020 105,721 97,741 10,307 - 348,271
- - 111,587 43,772 51,424 18,547 - 225,330
- 4,744 6,385 6,287 15,605 5,821 1,892 40,734
- 4,615,797 1,354,720 1,278,159 2,261,560 1,350,454 24,533 10,885,223
- - 10,861 35,473 17,710 39,788 174,213 278,045
- 144,280 69,095 33,720 140,676 65,138 57,195 510,104

- 6,163,097 1,759,899 1,556,621 2,691,729 1,611,004 285,604 14,067,954

2,042,886 (5,015,706)  (804,780) (97,853) 230,541 1,696,225 3,132,115 1,183,428
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2015 12 31
12
2 130,775 70,082 93,589 369,511 2,035 - 666,014
1,580,456 577,123 26,583 136 12,582 - - 2,196,880
- - 158,573 70,307 178,895 26,064 - 433,839
14,460 - 8,938 13,328 20,900 38,744 41,881 138,251
50,893 111,302 429,958 990,650 2,406,538 2,958,049 3,994,428 10,941,818
46,529 - 31,559 125,004 217,720 573,281 212,372 1,206,555
- - 33,406 77,370 339,288 1,022,008 616,860 2,088,932
- - 40,185 55,679 215,572 240,346 120,271 672,053
8,308 13,634 39,790 25,417 55,129 77,388 30,924 250,590
364 102,252 15,254 2,090 8,704 84 1,013 129,761
1,701,032 935,086 854,328 1,453,660 3,824,839 4,937,999 5,017,749 18,724,693
- 1,122,036 185,851 70,309 242,674 165,323 - 1,786,193
- 123,387 110,100 80,652 84,367 20,826 - 419,332
- - 238,145 182,799 28,512 1,462 - 450,918
- 5,318,884 1,390,053 1,240,530 2,319,899 1,781,907 14,918 12,066,191
- - 6,081 10,827 42,509 162,305 126,208 347,930
- 76,972 48,112 30,883 35,495 5,468 22 196,952
- 131,021 20,277 6,996 5,491 18,092 17,214 199,091
- 6,772,300 1,998,619 1,622,996 2,758,947 2,155,383 158,362 15,466,607
- 3,265 26 - (3,602) (975) (361) (1,647)

118,046 1,059,809 734,110 2,652,194 340,921 4,237 4,909,317
(118,004) (1,058,948)  (731,960) (2,646,928)  (339,347) (4,223) (4,899,410)
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2014 12 31
12

- 191,969 260,772 171,919 200,269 1,788 - 826,717
1,727,805 549,407 28,897 - - - - 2,306,109
- - 165,175 103,084 135,084 11,010 - 414,353

17,670 - 10,405 12,582 22,295 58,956 26,170 148,078

33,203 111,947 412,721 1,045,157 2,383,343 2,761,023 3,570,297 10,317,691

37,082 - 38,513 62,971 164,753 357,257 172,339 832,915
- - 11,793 33,209 222,841 915,028 463,882 1,646,753

- - 12,751 70,447 101,110 76,103 235,097 495,508
1,020 9,881 32,074 28,236 17,611 17,023 9,823 115,668

1,816,780 863,204 973,101 1,527,605 3,247,306 4,198,188 4,477,608 17,103,792

- 1,286,858 184,753 54,572 115,943 130,645 31,173 1,803,944
- 111,482 23,039 105,821 98,367 10,575 - 349,284
- - 111,954 44,127 52,635 18,573 - 227,289
- 4,615,900 1,358,487 1,286,559 2,326,005 1,474,481 25,945 11,087,377
- - 10,883 36,274 22,882 76,876 271,777 418,692
- 45,941 58,979 29,238 65,705 41,176 24,115 265,154

- 6,060,181 1,748,095 1,556,591 2,681,537 1,752,326 353,010 14,151,740

- 3,080 215 552 1,870 124 (171) 5,670

- 48,142 904,198 639,313 1,291,589 232,797 3,178 3,119,217
(48,090)  (904,868)  (639,320) (1,291,280)  (232,423) (3,171) (3,119,152)
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.40.
( )

2015 12 31
€ 1,072,470 255,368 63,582 1,391,420
1,241,276 347,950 229,387 1,818,613
2,313,746 603,318 292,969 3,210,033
6,313 13,040 2,997 22,350
17,160 47,596 3,280 68,036
2,337,219 663,954 299,246 3,300,419

2014 12 31
() 946,233 185,343 63,878 1,195,454
1,466,529 415,277 212,951 2,004,757
2,412,762 600,620 276,829 3,290,211
5,852 12,760 3,484 22,096
54,986 35,497 7,449 97,932
2,473,600 648,877 287,762 3,410,239

€Y .40.
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2015 12 31
(

2015 12 31
1,342 96,991 1,531 99,864
5,642 - - 5,642
- 4,218 - 4,218
9,338 - - 9,338
13,621 68,615 - 82,236
117,498 911,390 954 1,029,842
3,812 715 13,955 18,482
5,588 2,352 22,269 30,209
- 2,170 21,111 23,281
- (1,617) - (1,617)
- (339,911) - (339,911)
- (7,012) - (7,012)
(9,115) (60,045) - (69,160)

2014 12 31
209 81,226 850 82,285
2,211 - - 2,211
- 4,144 - 4,144
15,888 - - 15,888
11,959 36,008 - 47,967
34,702 676,457 979 712,138
2,356 314 9,329 11,999
4,663 2,616 19,269 26,548
- 2,274 16,379 18,653
- (5.,776) - (5,776)
- (317,487) - (317,487)
- (7,224) - (7,224)
(8,191) (32,543) - (40,734)
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( )

2015 850 979 9,329 19,269 16,379

- 7 16 581 474

- 3 2,852 (148) -

@3 (251) (1,852) (1,063) -

754 675 3,610 697 3,803

- (€)) - - -

«C )
- 458 - - 83
¢ ) (458)
- - - 2,933 282
2015 12 31 1,531 954 13,955 22,269 21,111
2015 12 31
- 2 (38) (36) 474
C )

2014 301 5,430 6,930 19,215 17,383

Q) 9 (253) (422) 1,052

- 40 530 (998) -

an (2,766) (1,565) (195) (2,570)

573 63 3,687 1,669 70

C )
- 1,797 - - 726
« ) (1,797)

- - - - (320)

- - - - 38

2014 12 31 850 979 9,329 19,269 16,379

2014 12 31
Q) 5 (314) (457) 381
C )
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2015
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2015 2014 12 31 2015
( )
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
676 402 1,078 768 (389) 379
( )
12 31
2015 2014 2015 2014
1,790,790 1,424,463 1,835,942 1,430,467
330,332 276,589 332,428 276,941
282,929 278,045 294,821 289,875
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( )
2015 12 31
82,146 1,753,796 - 1,835,942
- 129,812 116 129,928
- 294,821 - 294,821
( )
2014 12 31
90,276 1,340,139 52 1,430,467
- 74,386 55 74,441

23,365 266,510 - 289,875
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CBRC
Tier Tier ()
( )
2015 2014
12 31 12 31
Tier 11.10 10.61
Tier 12.07 11.35
14.06 13.87
Tier 1,197,868 1,068,706
294,388 288,731
139,572 130,116
111,207 95,630
179,416 159,291
451,585 383,213
29,016 27,329
@ (7,316) (15,604)
(15,568) (14,317)
(96) (96)
(5,369) (4,554)
(204) (131)
(86) (25)
16 10
Tier (9,829) (9,521)
Tier 1,182,300 1,054,389
Tier 103,159 72,923
99,714 71,745
3,445 1,178
Tier 1,285,459 1,127,312
Tier 212,937 250,714
Tier 153,266 166,368
45,839 67,299
13,832 17,047
1,498,396 1,378,026
10,654,081 9,934,105
o BOCG
BOC
BOCG
BOCG CBRC
@
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
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For the year ended 31 December 2003 (Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless stherwize siated)

[nterest income
Interest expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense

Net Fee and commission income
Net trading gains
Net gains on financial investments

Other operating income

Ohperating income

Operating expenses
Impairment losses on assels

Operating profit

Share of results of associates and joint ventures

Profii before income fax

[ncome tax expense
Profit for the yvear

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share

(Expressed in RMB per ordinary share)

— Bazic
— Diluted

For details of the dividends paid or proposed, please refer to Note V383,

Note

V.1
V.1

V.

V.4

V.
V.6

V.19

V.o

V.10

Year ended 31 December

T ams 2014
615,056 G012 680
(286,406) (281,578
J2R.6E0 A21.102
100,905 98,538

(405 (7,298
92,410 91,240
0 460 11,009
5,765 1,795
37,627 31,092
473912 456,328
(185301 (177,788
(39.274) (48,381
229237 230,159
2a34 1,319
23157 231478
(52,154) (54,2800
179.417 177.198
170,845 1649 505
8,572 7603
179.417 177.198
(.56 6l
056 058

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consalidated financial statements.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOMIE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

'f.mr emi.a-d 31 December

Nt 2015 2014
Profit for the year 179.417 177.198
Other comprehensive income: Vil
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial losses on defined benefit plans (161) (233)
Other 14 5
Subtotal (147) (228)

ltems thai may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
— Met fair value gans on available for sale
financial azsets 6,573 430
— Share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for

using the equity method (361) 256
— Exchange differences from the translation of
foreign operatiens 6,590 (2,759
Other 336 471
Subtotal 13 444 6,398
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 13,297 6,170
Total comprehensive income for the vear 192,71 153,368

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 182,111 175,165
Non-controlling interests 10,543 8203

192,714 183,368

The sccompanying notes form an integral part of these conzolidated Nnancial statements.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As al 31 December 2015 (Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated )

As at R .Dn.-r:g_rr.lbd-r

Mole 2015 2014

ASSETS
Cazh and due from banks and

other financial institutions V.12 654378 813054
Balances with central banks V.13 2,196,063 2,306,088
Placements with and loans to banks and

other financial institetions V.14 426,848 402,280
Government certificates of indebiedness for

bank notes ssaed V.26 a1,1o1 T6517
Precious metals 176,753 194,531
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss V.15 119,062 104,528
Deerivative financial asscls V.16 52.236 47 BT
Loans and advances to customers, net V.17 8.935,195 8,294,744
Financial investments V.18 3476033 2,605,347

— avatlable for sale 1078533 T50 685

— held w maturity 1,700,750 1 424463

— loans and receivables 66,710 430 6949
Investment in associates and joint venlures V.1g 10,843 14,379
Property and equipment V.20 182,031 172,197
Investment properties e | 23,281 18,653
Deferred income tax assets V.ia 22,246 25043
Aszets held for sale ¥.35 237,937 -
(rher assets V.2 181,500 175554
Total assels 16,815,597 15,251,382

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

As al 31 December 2015 (Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated )

As ot 31 December

Naote 2013 24
LIABILITIES
[due to banks and other financial institutions V.24 1,764,320 1,780,247
Dhie to central banks V.25 415,708 348,271
Bank notes in circulation V.26 91,331 T6.607
Placements from banks and
other financial institutions V.37 447044 228330
Derivative financial liabilities V.6 69,160 40,734
Due to customers V. 11,729.171 10, 885323
— at amortised cost 11,389 260 10,567 736
— at [air value 339911 317 487
Bonds issued V.2o 282,929 2TRAS
Other borrowings YV.A0 30,281 INA47
Current tax liabilities V.i1 AT7.082 41 634
Retirement henefit obligations V.32 4,255 4,566
Deferred income tax labalities V.34 4,291 4,287
Liabilities classified as held for sale V.35 196,850
Crther liabilities V.36 383,760 352561
Tatal liabilities 15457992 14,067 954
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to
equity holders of the Bank
Share capital V.37l 204,388 288,731
Other equity instruments V.ila 99,714 71,745
Capital reserve V.72 140,098 130,797
Treasury shares V.73 (-1 (25)
Other comprehensive income V.11 (2.345) (13.671)
Statulory reserves V.33.1 111.511 96,105
General and regulatory reserves V.ag.2 179,485 159,341
Undistributed profils V.38 482,181 407 836
1,304,946 1140859
Non-controlling interesis V.30 52,659 42 569
Total equity 1.357.603 1,183,428
Total equity and liabilities ]ﬁél Eé'.l']' ISI?.EIE»SJ.

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors en 30 March 2016,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

TIAN Guali CHEN Siging
Direcior Direcior
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2015 {Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Y ear endgd 31 December

Nole 2015 2014
Cash Mlows lrom operating activities
Profit before income tax 231,571 231 478
Adjustments:
Impairment [osses on assets 59,374 48 381
Drepreciation of property and equipment 12,850 12,775
Amortisation of intangible assets and
other assets 2,758 2788
MNet gams on disposal of property and
equipment, intangible assets and
other long-term assels (TEE) (1949
Met gains on disposal of investment
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures (2.026) (e
Share of results of associates and
Joinl vemlures (2,334) (1.319)
Interest income arising from
financtal investmenis (105.279) (B3.847)
Dividends arising from investment securities (483) (458
Net gains on de-recognition of
financial investments {5,765) (1,795)
[ntereat expense arising from bonds issued 10,905 10,125
Accreted interest on impaired loans (1,329 (879
Met changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Net decreasef(increase) in balances
with central banks 126,827 (121.015)
Met increase in duwe from and placements
with and loans to banks and
other financial instinitions (31,746) (7707
Net decreasef{increase) in precious metals 17484 (1,814
MNet increase in financial assets s fair vaiue
through profit or loss (27.772) (22.668)
Met increase in loans and advances
0 CUSEOmEers (833.615) (801,987
Met increase in other assets (122.91% (@.102)
NMet (decreaseVincrease in due to banks and
other financial instinttions (12,804 228623
Met increase in due to central banks 67 44 47,332
Net increasef{decrease) in placements from
banks and other financial institutions 225,136 (113,935)
Net increase in due to customaers 1028905 TET 437
Net (decreaseMincrease in other borrowings {166) 877
Net increase in other liabilitics 916 51.070
Cash inflow from operating activities 727,777 184,114
Income tax paid (55.683) (57,196
Net cash inflow from operating activities 672094 126,918

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 {Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Note s 014

Cash Aows from investing activities
Proceeds from dispozal of property and

equipment, intangible assets and

other long-term assets 12 580 0624
Proceeds from disposal of investment in

subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures TA4l6 1078
Dividends received 663 851
[nterest income received from

financial investments 94,085 78472
Proceeds from disposalfmaturity of

financial investments 1.276. 488 a10,115
[nerease in invesiment in subsidianes,

associates and joint ventures {3.300) (2607
Purchase of property and equipment,

intangible assets and other long-term assets (36.,942) (35,108)
Purchase of financial investments (2. 108,179 (1.165.371)
Net cash outflow from investing activitics (757.27T9) {200,599
Cash NMows fram Goancing activities
Proceeds from issuance of bonds 109,991 173,256
Proceeds from issuance of preference shares

of the Bank 27.969 T1.745
Proceeds from non-controlling shareholders

investment in subsidiaries 3077 30
Repayments of debis issued (93,643 (94,607)
Cash payments for interest on bonds issued (11.445) (8,8304)
Dividend payments to equity holders of the Bank {60.246) (34,735
Dividend payments to non-controlling

shareholders (3497) (3.234)
Other net cash flows from financing activities (221) 3
Met cash (outflowpinflow from

Ninancing aclivilies {28.715) R3555
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and

cash equivalents 17.827 (12,289)
Net decrease in cash and cash eguivalents (D073 2415
Cash and cash equivalents al beginning of year 1.148,151 1,150,566
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year V.41 1052078 1148.151

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statemenis.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

I GENERAL INFORMATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Bank of China Limited (the "Bank™), formerly known as Bank of China, a State-owned joint
stock commercial bank, was founded oa 5 February 1912, From itz formation uatil 1949, the
Bank performed various functions of a central bank, foreign exchange bank and commercial
hank specialising in trade finance. Following the founding of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC™) in 19349, the Bank was designated as a specialised foreign exchange bank.
Since 1994, the Bank has evolved into a State-owned commercial bank. In this regard, in
accordance with the Master Implementation Plan for the Joint Stock Reform approved by the
State Council of the PRC, the Bank was converted into a joint stock commercial bank on 26
August 2004 and its name was changed from Bank of China to Bank of China Limited. In
20606, the Bank listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange.

The Bank is licensed as a financial institution by the China Banking Kegulatory Commission
(the “CBRC™) No. BODOGH111000001 and is registered as a business enterprise with the
State Administration of Indusiry and Commerce of the PRC No, 100000000001349, the
registered address is No. 1, Fuxingmen Neil Dajie, Beljing, China,

The Bank and its subsidiaries (together the “Group™) provide a full renge of corporate
banking, personal banking, treasury operations, investment banking. insurance and other
services to its customers in the Chinese mainland, Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and other
major international financial centres.

The Bank’s principal regulator is the CBRC, The operations in Hong Kong, Macau,
Taiwan and other countries and regions of the Group are subject to the supervision of local
regulators.

The parent company is Central Huijin Investment Limited ("Huijin™), a wholly owned
subsidiary of China Investment Corporation (“CIC"), which owned 64.02% of the ordinary
shares of the Hank as at 3] December 2015 (31 December 2014: 65.52%),

Theze consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on
3 March 2016,
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

1]

1.1

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”L In addition, the consolidated
financial statements comply with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance,

Financial assets available for sale. financial assets and financial labilities w0 fair value
through profit or loss (including denivative financial instruments) and investment propertics
are measured at their fair values in the consolidated financial statement. Assets that meet the
criteria to be classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell. Other accounting items are measured &t their historical costs.
Impairment is recognised if there is objective evidence of impairment of assets,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 1FRS reguires the use of cerlain
critical accounting estimates. [t also requires management o exercise its judgement in the
process of applving the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or arcas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
comsolidated financial statements are disclosed in Nowe 111

Standards, amendments and interpretaions effective in 2005

On 1 January 2015, the Group adopted the following new standards, amendments and
interpretations,

1A% 19 Amendments Defined Benefit Plans: Employves Contribntions
Annual Improvements to [FRSs

2010-2012 eyele and 2011-2013

eyele (issued in December 2013}

The Group adopted the IAS 19 Amendments — Defined Benefit Plans: Emplovee
Contributions in 2015, 1A% 19 Amendments require an entity to consider contributions
from emplovees or third partics when accounting for defined benefit plans. Where the
contributions are linked to service, they should be attributed to periods of serviee as a
negative benefit. These amendments clarify that, if the amount of the contribulions is
independent of the number of wvears of service, an entity is permitted to recognise such
contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the peried in which the service is rendered.
instead of allocating the contributions to the periods of service.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

1]

1.1

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of preparation ( Confinwed)
Svandards, amendmenis and interpretations effective in 2015 (Continned)

Annual Improvements to [FRSs 2010-2012 eyele and 2011-2013 eyele (issued in December
20030

IFRS 2 — Share-Based Paviment

This improvement is applied prospectively and clarifies various issues relating to the
defimtions of performance and service conditions which are vesting conditions.

IFRS 3 — Business Combirations

The amendments are applied prospectively and clasify that: (1) all contingent consideration
arrangements classified as liabilities (or assets) arising from a business combination should
be subsequently measured ot fair value through profit or loss whether or not they fall
within the scope of IFRS 9 (or IAS 39, as applicable); and {2) IFRS 3 does not apply to the
accounting for the formation of any joint arrangement,

IFRS & — Operating Segments

The amendments are applied retrospectively and clarify that: (1) an entity must disclose
the judgements made by management in applying the aggregation criteria, including
a brief description of operating segments that have been aggregated and the cconomic
characteristics used to assess whether the segments are “similar™; and (2} the reconciliation
of segment assets 0 total assets is only required to be disclosed if the reconciliation is
reported to the chief operating decision maker, similar to the required disclosure for segment
liabilities.

IAS 24 — Relared Party Diselosures

The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that a management entity (an entity
that provides key management personnel services) i a related party subject to the related
party disclosures. In addition, an entity that uses a management entity is required to disclose
the expenses incurred [or management services,

IFRE 13 — Fair Value Measuremenit
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that the portfolic exception can he

applied not only to financial assets and financial liabilities, but also to other contracts within
the scope of [FRS 9 {or TAS 39, as applicable).
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

I SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLLICIES (Continued)

1 Basis of preparation (Confinued)

L1 Seandards, amendmenis and interpretations effective in 2015 (Continned)
IAS 30— fnvestment Property

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that the guidance in I[FRS 3 is used 10
determine if the purchase of investment property is the purchase of an asset or a business
combination.

The adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations does not have any
significant impact on the operating results, financial position and comprehensive income of
the Group.

In addition, the Group has adopted the amendments to the disclosure reguirements in Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622} in current finoncial year, as a result, there are
changes to presentation and disclosure of certain information in the financial statements.

1.2 Siandards, awendments and imterpreiadions ibal are not yer effeciive and have ner been
early adapted by the Group in 2003

Effective for
annual periods
heginning on
or after

1 January 2018
1 Januwary 2016

IFRS5 9 Financial Instroments
IAS 27 Amendments Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements

IFRS 10, IAS 28 Amendments  Sale or Contribition of Azsets
Between an Investor and
s Associate or Joint Venture

Revenne from Contracts with
Customers

favestnrent Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

1 January 2016

IFRS 15 1 Janwary 20108

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and
IAS 28 Amendments

1 Januwary 2016

IAS 1 Amendments
IFRS 11 Amendments

IAS 16 and
TAS 38 Amendments

IFRS 16

IAS T Amendmients

Annual Improvements
o IFRSs 2012-2014 cycle
(issued in September 2014}

Disclosure Initiative

Accomnring for Acguisitions of
faserests in Joint Operations

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
af Depreciation and Amortisation

Leases

Starement of Cash Flow
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

1]

12

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES ¢ Continued)
Basis of preparation ( Confinwed)

Standards, amendments and interprefations thal are not yel effective and have not been
early adopied by the Group in 2005 (Comiinied )

In July 2014, the IASE issued the final version of IFRS 9 — Firamcial Instriments which
reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces 1AS 39 — Fancial
Instroments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9. The
standard introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and
hedge accounting.

1AS 27 Amendments will allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements. Entities
already applyving IFRS and electing to change o the equity method in its separate financial
statements will have o apply that change retrospectively,

The amendments to [FRS 10 and [AS 28 address an inconsistency between the requirements
i IFRS 10 and in TAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
mvestor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss when the sale or contribution between an investor and its associate or joint
venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, & gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or
los= only to the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that associabe or joint venture,

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to
revenie arising from contracts with customers. Under [FRS 15 revenue is recognised at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects t0 be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles in [FRS 15 provide & more
structured approach to measuring and recognising revenue. The new revenue standard is
applicable 1o all entities and will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements
under IFRS.

The amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and 1AS 28 address issues that have arisen in
applying the investment cntities exception under [FRS 10, The amendments to [FRS 10
clarify that the exception from presenting consolidated fingncial statements applies to
a parent entity that iz a subsidiary of an investment entity. when the investment entity
measures all of its subsidiaries at fair value. The amendments also clarify that only a
subsidiary of an invesiment entity that is not an investment entity itself and that provides
support services to the mvestmenl entity 12 consolidated. All other subsidiaries of an
investmenl entity are measured at fair value. The ameadments to TAS 28 allow the mmvestor,
when applying the equity method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by the
investment entity associate or joint venture o its interests in subsidiaries.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

1]

12

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of preparation ( Confinwed)

Standards, amendments and interprefations thal are not yel effective and have not been
early adopied by the Group in 2005 (Comiinied )

The amendments to [AS 1 include narrow-foces improvements in materiality, disaggregation
and subtotals, notes structure, disclosure of sccounting pelicies and presentation of items of
other comprehensive income arising from equity acceunted investments,

The amendment 1o IFRS 11 requires an investor to apply the principles of business
combination accounting when it acquires an interest in a joint operation thal constitutes a
“business” {as defined in IFRS 3 — Business Combinations).

The amendment 1o ITAS 16 and [AS 38 clarifies that revenue reflects a pattern of economic
benefits that are generated from operating a business rather than the economic benefits that
are consumed through use of the asset, As a result, the ratio of revenue generated o total
revenue expected to be generated cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment
and may only be used in very himited circumstances to amortise intangible assets.

IFRS 16 Leases requires lessees to recogmise assets and liabilities for most leases. For
lessors, there is little change to the existing accounting in IAS 17 Leases. The scope of the
new standard includes leases of all assets, with certain exceptions.

The amendments to [AS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that ensble users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of these new standards and amendments
on the consolidated and separate financial statements of the Group and the Bank
respectively,

Annual Improvements to [FRSs 2002-2014 cycle was issued in September 2014, The annual
improvements process was established to make noo-urgent but necessary amendments to
IFRSs. The amendments are offective from annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2016, No amendment was early adopted by the Group and no material changes to acecounting
policies were made in 2015,
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

1]

SUMMARY QF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( Continued )
Consolidation
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities {including corporates, divided parts of associates and joint
ventures, and structured entities controlled by corporates) over which the Group has control.
That is the Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, (o variable refurns
from s involvement with the entity and has the ability 1o affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible and righis arising from other coniraciual arrangements are
considered when assessing whether the Group confrols another entity. Subsidianes are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-congolidated from the date that control ceases. If the changes of the relevant facts and
circumstances resulting in the definition of contral involved in the changes of relevanmt
clements, the Group will re-evaluate whether subsidiaries are controlled,

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting fo account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
azsets transferred, the labilities incurred and the equity interests wsued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or Liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liahilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, On oan
acquisition by acguisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquires either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquirce’s net assels.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is
less than the fair value of the net assels of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the income statement. Goodwill is tested
annually for impairment and camried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. IF there is
any indication that goodwill i= impaired, recoverable amount is estimated and the difference
between carrving amount and recoverable amount is recognised as an impairment charge.
Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an
entity include the carrving amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

All intra-group assets and lLabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. Where

necessary, accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with
the policies gdopted by the Group.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

1]

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Consolidation { Continued)
Sabsidiaries (Continned)

In the Bank's statement of financial pozition. investments in subsidiarics are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from
contingent consideration amendments, but does not imclude acquisition-related costs, which
are expensed a8 incurred. The dividends or profits declared to distribute by the invested
entity shall be recognised by the Bank as the current investment income of subsidiaries.
The Group assesses at each financial reperting dave whether there is objective evidence that
imvestment 1 subsidiaries 1s impared. An impairment loss 15 recognised for the amount by
which the investment in subsidiaries’ camryving amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of the investment in subsidiaries” fair value less costs to
sell and value in use.

Associates and foint ventures

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but no control or
Joint control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 30% of the voting

rights.

Jaint ventures exist where the Group has a contractual arrangement with one or mare parties
to undertake economic activities which are subject (o joint control.

Investments in associates and joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and are
accounted for using the equity methed of accounting. The Group's “Investment in associates
and joint ventures” includes goodwill.

Unrealised gains on fransactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests in the associates and joint ventures;
unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of imparment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates and joint ventures have been
changed where necessary 1o ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The Group assesses at each financial reporting date whether there is objective evidence that
imvestments in associates and joint vemiures are impaired. Impairment losses are recognised
for the amounts by which the investments in associates and joint ventures’ carrying amounts
exceed its recoverable amounts. The recoverable amounis are the higher of investments in
associgtes and joinl ventures” Tarr value less costs 1o sell and value in use.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

1]

N

32

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Consolidation { Continued)
Transaciions with non-confrafling interesis

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with equity
owners of the Group, For purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference hetween
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carryving value of net assels of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on dispozals to non-contrelling interests
are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or sigmficant influence, any rétained mterest in
the entity is re-measured to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount recognised
in the income statement. The fair value is the initial carrving amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint ventre or financial
assel. In mddition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified 1o the income statement.

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presemiation currency

The functional currency of the operations in the Chinese mainland is the Renminbi
("RMB™), Iems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's operations
in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and other countries and regions are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates {the “functional
currency’’ ). The presentation currency of the Group is RME.

Transaciions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevarling ot the dates of the transactions, or the exchange rates that approXimate the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions are recognised in the income statement.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the financial reporting
date are ranslated at the foreign exchange rates ruling al that date. Changes in the fair value
of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as available for sale are
analysed between translation differences resuliing from changes in the amortised cost of the
security and other changes in the carrving amount of the security, Translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the income statement, and other
changes in the carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive income. Translation
differences on all other monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement,
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

1]

3.2

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES ¢ Continued)
Foreign currency translation { Continaed )
Transaciions and balances (Confinwed)

Mon-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at historical cost in foreign currencies
are translated using the foreign exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in foreign currencies are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ab the date the fair value 15 determined, Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets classified as avalable for sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Translation differences on non-monetary [inancial assets and
lhahilities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised as “Net trading gains” in the
income statement.

The results and financial positions of all the Group entities that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currepcy are translated into the presentalion cumrency as
follows:

. assets and liabilities for cach statement of financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of financial position;

. income and expenses for each incomse statement are translated at exchange rates at the
date of the transactions, or a rate that approximates the exchange rates of the date of the
transaction: and

« ol resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities, and of deposit taken and other currency instruments designated as hedges
of such investmenis are taken to other comprehensive income. When a foreign entity is
disposed. these exchange differences are recognised in the income statement, The effect
of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents is presented individually in the
statemnent of cash flows.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

1]

4.1

i)

SUMMARY QF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( Continued )
Financinl instrumenis
Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following four categories: financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, held to matrity investments, loans and receivables and
available for sale investments,

Financial habilities are classified into two categories: financial habilities: at fairr value
through profit or loss and other Ninancial liabilities.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets and financial liabilities at
initial recognition.

Financial assers and financial liabilivies ar fair value theowgh profic or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss have two sub-
categories: financial assets and financial habtlities held for trading, and those designated as
at fair value through profit or loss at inception.

A financial asset or financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or
imcurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term or if i
is part of a portioho of wentified Nnancial instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of recent actual pattern of short-term profit-making. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they are financial guarantee contracts or
designated and effective as hedging instruments.

A financial asset or financial lishility is classified at fair value through profit or loss at
inception if it meets either of the following criteria and is designated as such by management
on initial recognition:

*  the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets or
financial liabilitics or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases; or

» a group of Iinancial assets, financial liabilities or both i3 managed and s performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with a decumented risk management
or investmeni strategy, and information is provided internally on that basis 1o key
management personnel; or

. the financial instrument contains one or more embedded derivatives, unless the
embedded derivative(s) does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear, with
little or no analysis, that it wounld not be separately recorded.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

1]

4.1

(2]

(3

{4)

(3

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( Continued )

Finaneinl instruments { Continued)

Classification (Confinmed)

Held to maturity investments

Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
poyments and fixed motarities that the Group’™s management has the positive intention and
ability to hold to maturity and that do not meet the definition of loans and receivables nor
are designated as at fair value through prefit or less or as available for sale.

The Group shall not classify any financial assets as held to maturity if the entity has, during
the current financial vear or during the two preceding (inancial years, sold or reclassified
more than an insignificant amount of held (o maturity investments before materity other than
restricled circumstances such as sales or reclassifications due 1o a significant deterioration in
the issuer’s creditworthiness or industry’s regulatory requirements.

Loans and recetvables

Loans and receivables are non-denivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market, other than:

. those that the Group intends to sell immediately or in the short term, which are
classified as held for trading, and those that the Group upon initial recognition
designates as at fair value through profit or loss;

. those that the Group upon initial recognition designates as available for sale; or

*  those for which the Group may not recover substantially all of its initial investment,
other than because of credit deterioration.

Available for sale inveshnents

Available for sale investments are non-derivative financial assets that are cither designated
in this category of not classified in any of the other categories.

Chehier fimanciol liabilines

Other financial liabilities are non-derivative linancial liabilities that are not classified or
designated as financial liabilities ot fair value through profit or loss.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

1]

4.3

i

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( Continued )
Financial instruments (Contined )
Initial recognition

A financial asset or financial lighility is recognised on trade-date, the date when the Group
hecomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

For all financial assets and financial liabiliies oot carried ot fair value through profit or
loss, financial assets are initially recogmsed at fair value together with transaction costs and
financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value net of transaction costs. Financial
assels ond fnancial liabilites carred at fair value through profit or loss are mtially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.

Subsequent weasurement

Financial assets available for sale and [inancial assets and financial liabilities at farr value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Financial assets classified
as Joans and receivables and held to maturity and other financial liabilities are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(rains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss category are included in the income statement
inn the period in which they arise. Dividends on equily instruments of this category are
also recognised in the income statement when the Group's right to receive payments is
cstablished.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available for sale assets are
recognised in “Other comprehensive income™, until the financial asset is de-recognised
or impaired. At this time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in “Other
comprehensive income” is reclassified from equily (o the income statement. Inlerest on
available [or sale debt mstruments calculated using the effective interest method as well
as dividends on equity instruments of this category when the Group’s right to receive such
payments is established are recognised in the income statement.

Devermination af fair value

The fair value is the price that would be received te sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair values of quoted fnancial assets and [mancial labilities in active markets are based
on current bid prices and ask prices. as appropriate. If there is no active market, the Group
establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s
length transections, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models, and other
valuation technigues commonly used by market participants.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

1]

4.4

4.5

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( Continued )
Financial instruments (Contined )
Determination af fuir value (Continned)

The Group uses the valuation technigues commonly used by market participants to price
financial instruments and technigues which have been demonstrated to provide reliable
estimates of prices obtained in actual market transactions. The Group makes use of all
factors that market participants would consider in setting a price, and incorporates these
mnto its chosen valuation technigques and tests for validity using prices from any observable
current market transactions in the same instruments.

De-recognition af financial instruments

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired. or when the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership, or when the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all risks
or rewards of ownership of the financial asset but has not retained control of the financial
assel.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in equity through other comprehensive income is recognised in the income
statement,

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when they are extinguished — that is, when the

obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference hetween the carrying amount

of a financial liability de-recognised and the consideration paid is recognised in the income
slatemvent,
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4.6

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( Continued )
Financial instruments (Contined )
Impairment of financial assefs

The Group assesses at each financial reporting date whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of Minancial assets excluding those fair valued through profit or
loss is impaired, A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as o result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event™) and that
loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of assets is impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about the following loss events:

J significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;
* abreach of contract, such as a default or delinguency in interest or principal payments;

. the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal ressons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, a concession that the lender would not otherwise
conzider;

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptey or other financial re-
organization;

*  the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties;

*  observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated fuiure
cash flows from a group of financial assels since the initial recognition of those assets,
although the decrease cannol vet be identified with the individual financial assets in the
group, including adverse changes in the payment status of bomrowers in the group, an
increase in the unemployment rate in the geographical area of the borrowers, a decrease
in property price for the mortgages in the relevant area or national or local economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the group;

. any significant change with an adverse effect that has taken place in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment in which the issuer operates and indicates that
the cost of investmients in equily instruments may aot be recovered;
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SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES { Continued)
Financinl instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continied)

* a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an equity instrument is an
indicator of impairment in such investments where a decline in the fair value of equity
instrument below its initial cost by 30% or more; or fair value below cost for one year
or longer. An impairment is also indicated by a decline in fair value of 20% or more
below initial cost for six consecutive months or longer or where fair value is below
initial cost by 30% or moere over a short period of time (i.e.. one month): or

*  other ohjective evidence indicating impairment of the financial asset.

The Group first assesses whether ohjective evidence of impairment exists individually for
Ninancial assets that are individually significant, IT there is objective evidence of impairment.
the impairment loss is recognised in the income statement. The Group performs a collective
assessment for all other financial assets that are not individually significant or for which
impairment has not yet been identified by including the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.

Assels carried at amortised cost

Impairment loss for financial assets carried at amortised cost i measured os the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated futwre cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The original effective intercst rate is computed
at initial recognition. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. For
financial assets with variable interest rate. the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract,

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised
financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for
ohtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairnent on the basis of an instrument’s
fair value using an observable market price.

For the purposes of a collective assessiient of impairment, Mnancial assels are grouped on
the basis of similar and relevant credit risk characteristics, Those characteristics are relevant
to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the
debtors” ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being
evaluated,
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SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continied)

Aszels carried al amortised cost ( Continned)

Future cash flows in a proup of financial assels that are collectively evaluated for
impairment are estimated on the basis of historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to those 1 the group. Historical loss expenence 15 adjusted on
the basis of current chservable daia 1o reflect the effects of current conditions that did not
affect the period on which the historical loss expenence s based and to remove the effects
of conditions in the historical period that do not currently exist.

When a financial assel is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance for
impairment after all the necessary procedures have been completed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are recognised in the income statement,

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets should reflect and be
directionally consistent with changes in related observable data from period to period. The
methodology and assumptions vsed for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly
by the Group to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such
as an improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed by adjusting the allowance account and recognised in the income statement.
The reversal shall not result in a carrving amount of the financial asset that exceeds what
the amortised cost would have been had the impatrment not been recognised at the date the
impairment is reversed,

Aszers classifred as available for sale

If objective evidence of impairment exists for available for sale financial assets, the
cumulative |oss recognised in “Other comprehensive income™ is reclassified from equity to
the income statement and is measured as the difference between the acquisition cost (net of
any principal repayment and amortisation) and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial aseet previously recognised in the income statement.

If, in a subseguent period. the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for
sale incresases and the incremse can be objectively related to an event ocourring after

the impairment loss was recognised in the income statement, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.
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SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments { Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continied)

Aszers clossified as available for sale { Continned)

With respect 1o equily instruments, impairment losses recognised in the income stalement
are not subsequently reversed through the income statement. I there is objective evidence
that an impairment loss has been incurred on an unguoted equity investment that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the impairment loss
15 nol reversed.

Derivative financial insirnments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are imitially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are obtained
from guoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and
valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models, as
appropriste. Credit risk valuation adjustments are applied 1o the Group’s over-the-counter
derivatives to reflect the credit risk of the counterparties and the Group respectively. They
are dependent on expected future values of exposures for each coumerparty and default
probabilities, ele. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as
liabilities when fair value is negative,

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition is the transaction
price {i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received) unless the fair value of that
imstrument is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions
in the same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation
technigue whose variables include only data from observable markets. When such evidence
exists, the Group recognises profit or loss on the date of transaction,

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on whether the
derivative is designated and qualifies as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the
item being hedged. For derivatives not designated or qualificd as hedging instruments,
including those intended to provide effective cconomic hedges of specific interest rate and
foreign exchange risks, but do not qualify for hedge accounting, changes in the fair value of
these derivatives are recognised in “Net trading gains™ in the income statement.
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SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Finaneinl instruments { Continued)
Derivative financial instrumenis and hedge accounting {Continued)

The Group documents, at inception, the relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions, The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and
on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged mems. These
criteria should be met before a hedge can be qualified to be accounted for under hedge
accounting.

Fair value hedge

Fair value hedge is a hedge of the exposure to changes in fair value of a recognised asset
or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment, or an identified portion of such an asset,
liability or firm commitment, that is attributable to a particular risk and could affect income
statement.

The changes in fair value of hedging instruments that are designated and gualify as fair
value hedges are recorded in the income statement, together with the changes in fair value of
the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk. The net result is included as ineffectivensss
in the income statement.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge sccounting, the adjustment to the carrving
amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest method is used is amortised to

the income statement over the period to maturity. If the hedged item is de-recognised, the
unamortised carrying value adjustment is recogmised immediately in the income statement.

Cash flow hedge

Cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable
to a particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability (such as all or some future
interest payments on variahle rate debt) or a highly probahle forecast transaction that could
ultimately affect income statement.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of hedging instroments that are designated
and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in "Other comprehensive income”. The

ineflective portion i recopnised immediately in the mcome stalement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to the income statement in the same periods
when the hedged item affects the income statement.
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SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Derivative financial instrumenis and hedge accounting {Continued)
Cash flow hedge (Continned)

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or the hedge designation 15 revoked or when
a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumuletive gain or loss on
the hedging instrument existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is reclassified
to the income statement when the forecast transaction ultimately occurs. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss existing in equity is
immediately transferred to the income statement.

Net investment hedge

Net investment hedge is a hedge of a net investment in & foreign operation.

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow
hedges. Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the etffective portion of the
hedge is recognised direetly in other comprehensive income; the gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement. Gains and losses
pecumulated in equity are included in the income statement when the foreign operation is
disposed of as part of the gain or loss on the disposal.

Embedded derivaiives

An embedded derivative 15 a component of a hybrid {combined) instrument that also
includes a non-derivative host contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of the
hybrid (combined) instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative.

The Group separates embedded derivatives from the host contract and accounts for these as
derivatives, if, and only if:

. the ecconomic characteristices and risks of the e¢mbedded dernvative are not closely
related to those of the host contract:

] a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and

= the hybrid (combined) instrument is not measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the income statement.

These embedded derivatives separated from the host contract are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.
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SUMMARY QF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( Continued )
Financial instruments (Contined )
Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds comprise of the hability and equity components. The liability component,
representing the obligation to make fixed payments of principal and interest, is classified
as liability and initally recognised at the fair value, calculated using the market interest
rate of a similar liability that dees not have an equity conversion option, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing an embedded option to convert the liability into ordinary shares, 15 nitially
recognised i “Equity” as the difference between the proceeds received from the convertible
honds as a whole and the amount of the lishility component. Any directly attributable
transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of proceeds.

On conversion of the bonds inte shares, the amount transferred to Share capital s caleulated
as the par value of the shares maltiplied by the number of shares converted. The difference
between the carrying value of the related component of the converted bonds and the amount
transferred to Share capital is recognised in capital surplus under “Capital reserve”,

400 Offsetting financial instrumenis

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position when there is a current legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and there is an imtention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Precions metals and precious metals swaps

Precious metals comprise gold. silver and other precious metals. The Group retains all risks
and rewards of ownership related to precious metals deposited with the Group as precious
metals deposits, including the right 1o freely pledge or transfer, and it records the precious
metals received as an asset. A liability to return the amount of precious metals deposited is
also recognised. Precious metals that are not related to the Group’s precious metals market
making and trading activities are initially measured at acquisition cost and subsequently
measured at lower of cost and net realisable value, Precious metals that are related to the
Group’s market making and trading activities are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequent changes in fair value included in “"Net trading gains™ are recognised in the
incame statement,
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SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Precious metals and precious metals swaps (Conlinued)

Consistent with the substance of the tramsaction. if the precious metals swaps are
for financing purpose, they are accounted for as precious metals subject to collateral
agreements. Precious metals collateralised are not de-recognizsed and the related
counterparty  liability s recorded in “Placements from banks and other (financial
institutions”, If precious metal swaps are for trading purpose. they are sccounted for as
derivatives transactions,

Repurchase agreemenis, agreements 1o re-sell and securities lending

Securities and hills sold subject to repurchase agreements (“Repos™) continue to bhe
recognised, and are recorded as “Financial investments”. The corresponding obligation is
included in “Placements from banks and other financial institutions™ and “Due to central
hanks™. Securities and hills purchased under agreements to re-sell (“Reverse repos™) are not
recognised. The receivables are recorded as “Placements with and leans o banks and other
financial institutions™ or “Balances with central banks"”, as appropriate.

The difference between purchase and sale price 15 recognised as “Interest expense” or
“Interest income" in the income statement over the life of the agreements using the effective
interest method.

Securities lending transactions are generally secured, with collateral wking the form
of securities or cash, Securities lent to counterparties by the Group are recorded in the
consolidated financial statements. Securitics bommowed from counterparties by the Group
are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements of the Group. Cash collateral
received or advanced is recognised as & liability or an asset in the consclidated financial
slalemwents.

Property and equipment

The Group's ixed asgets mainly comprise buildings. equipment and motor vehicles, airerafl
and construction in progress. When the costs attributable to the land use rights cannot be
reliably measured and separated from that of the building at inception, the costs are included
in the cost of properties and buildings and recorded in “Property and equipment”.

The assets purchased or constructed are initially measured at acquisition cost or deemed

cost, as appropriate. Such initial cost incledes expenditure that is direcily attributable to the
acquizition of the assets,
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7.2

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES ¢ Continued)
Properiy and equipment (Continued )

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrving amount, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the
income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down the cost of such assets
1o their residual values over their estimated useful lives. The residual values and useful lives
of assets are reviewed. and adjusted if appropriate, at each Ninancial reporting date.

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment at each financial reporting date. Where
the carrving amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written
down immediately to its recoverahle amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the
assel’s fair value less costs o sell and value in use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by the difference between proceeds and
carrying amount, after deduction of relevant taxes and expenses. These are included in the
Imcome statement.

Buildings, equipment and motor velieles
Buildings comprise primarily branch and office premises. The estimated wszeful lives,

depreciation rate and estimated residual value rate of buildings, equipment and motor
vehicles are as follows:

Estimated Annual

Estimated residunl depreciation

Type of assels uzelul lives value rate rate
Buildings 1550 years 3 1.0%-6.5%
Equipment 3-15 years 35 6.45%-32 4%
Motor vehicles 46 years e 1612400

Afreraft
Adreralt are used in the Group™s aircrafl operating leasing business,
Aircraft are depreciated using the straight-line method over the expected useful life of 23

vears, less the vears in service at the time of purchase to an estimated residual value rate
varying from 0% to 15%.
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SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES ¢ Continued)
Properiy and equipment (Continued )
Consiruction in progress

Construction in progress consists of assets under construction or being installed and is stated
at cost. Cost includes eguipment cost, cost of construction, installation and other direct
costs, ltems classified as construction in progress are lransferred 1o property and equipment
when such assets are ready [or their intended use and the depreciation charge commences
after such assets are transferred to property and equipment.

Leases
Lease elassification

Leases of assets where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred are classified as finance leases. Title may or may not eventually be transferred.
All leases other than finance leases are classified as operating leases.

Finance leases

When the Group is a lessee under finance leases, the leased assets are capitalised initially
at the fair value of the asset or, if lower, the present valee of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in “Other habilities”, Finance charges
are charged over the term of the lease using an interest rate which reflects a constant rate of
refurm.

The Group adopts the same depreciation policy for the finance leased assets as those for
which it has title rights. If the Group can reasonably determine that a lease will transfer
ownership of the asset to the Group by the end of the lease term. related asscis are
depreciated over their useful life. [If there is no reasonable certainty that the Group can
determine that a lease will transfer ownership of the asset (o the Group by the enad of the
lease term, related assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and useful fife.

When the Group is a lessor under finance leases, the present value of the aggregation of the
minimum lease payment receivable from the lessee, unguaranteed residual value and initial
direct costs is recognised as a receivable, The difference between the receivable and the
present value of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance income. Lease income is
recognised over the term of the lease using an interest rate which reflecis a constant rate of
returm.
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SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( Continued )
Leases { Continmed )
Operating leases

When the Group is the lessee under an operating lease, rental expenses are charged to
“Orperating expenses” in the income statement on @ straight-fine basis over the period of the
lease,

When the Group i= the lessor under operating leases, the assets subject to the operating lease
are accounted for as the Group's assets. Remal income is recognised as “Other operating
meome” in the income statement on a straight-hne basis over the lease term net of any
incentives given to lessees.

Investment properiies

Investment properties. principally consisting of office buildings, are held to generate rental
income or earn capital gains or both and i= not occupied by the Group. Investment propertics
are carried at fair value and changes in fair value are recorded in the income statement,
representing the open market value and other related information determined periodically by
independent appraisers.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance, including
computer software and other intangible assets.

Computer software and other intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment, These costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives with the amortisation recognised in the income stalement.

The value of intangible assels s reviewed for impairment al each Gnancial reporting date.
Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is
written down immediately o its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an intangible asset is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use,

Repossessed nsseis

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at fair value plus related costs when they are
chtained as the compensation for the loans’ principal and interest. When there are indicators
that the recoverable amount is lower than carrying amount, the carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount.
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SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES ¢ Continued)
Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans and Defined benefit plans

In accordance with the policies of relevant state and local governments, employees
im Chinese mainland participate in various defined contribution refirement schemes
administered by local Labour and Social Security Bureaus, Operations in Chinese
mainland contribute te pension and insurance schemes administered by the local pension
and insurance agencies using applicable contribution rates stipulated in the relevant local
regulations. Upon retirement, the lecal Labour and Social Security Bureaus are responsible
for the payment of the basic retirement benefits to the retired employees. [n addition to these
hasic staff pension schemes, employees in Chinese mainland who retire after 1 January 2004
can also voluntarily participate in a defined contribution plan established by the Bank (“the
Annuity Plan™y “The Bank contributes to the Annuity Plan based on certain percentages of
the employees’ gross salaries,

All eligible employees in operations in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and other countries and
regions participate in local defined contribution schemes or defined benefit plans.

Contributions made by the Group to the retirement schemes described above are recognised
as “Operating expenses” in the income statement as incurred. Forfeited contributions by
those employess who leave the schemes prior 1o the full vesting of their contributions are
used (o reduce the existing level of contribubions or retained in the retirement schemes in
accordance with the requirements of the respective defined contribution plans,

The obligations related to the defined benefit plans are calculated by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method at each financial reporting date. The actuarial gains
or losses are recognised in “Other comprehensive income” immediately when they occur,
the gains or losses arising from amendments to pension plans are charged or credited to the
income statement immediately as "Operating expenses” when they occur,

12.2 Retirement benefit obligations

The Group pays supplemental retirement benefils to employees in Chinese mainland who
retired prior to 31 December 2003 and carly retirement benefits to those employees who
accepled an early reticement arrangement.

Supplemental retirement benefits include supplemental pension paymenis and medical
eRpense coverage.
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SUMMARY OF PRINCIFAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( Continued)

12 Employee benefits { Continued )

12.2 Retirement benefit abligations {Continued)

Early retirement benefits have heen paid to those employees who accept voluntary
retirement hefore the normal retirement date, as approved by management. The related
benefit payments are made from the date of early retirement 1o the normal retirement date.,

The hability related to the above supplemental retirement benefit obligations and early
retirement obligations existing at each financial reporting date is caleulaed by independent
actuaries using the projected unit credit method and 15 recorded as o hability under
“Retirement benefit obhligations” in the statement of financial position. The present value
of the liability is determined through discounting the estimated future cash outflows using
imterest rates of RMB treasury bonds which have terms to maturity approximating the terms
of the related liability, The actuarial gaans or losses of supplemental retirement benefit are
recognised in “Other comprehensive income” immediately when they oceur, The actuarial
gaing or losses of early retirement benefit obligations and the gains or losses arising
from amendments to retirement benefit obligations are charged or credited to the income
statement immediately as “Operating expenses” when they oceur.

12.3 Housing funds

Pursuant to local government regulations. all employees in Chinese mainland participate
in various lecal housing funds administered by local governments. Operations in Chinese
mainland contribute on a monthly basis to these funds based on certain percentages of the
salaries of the employees. These payments are recognised as “Operating expenses™ in the
ingome statement as incurred,

[2.4 Casl-setiled share-based compensation

The related cost of services received from the employees and the hability to pay for such
services are measured at fair value and recognised over the vesting period as the employees
render services. Fair value is established at the grant date, re-measured at each financial
reporting date with any changes in fair value recognised as “Operating expenses™ in the
ingome statement for the period and de-recognised when the liability is settled.

The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference 1o the
fair value of the rights granied. excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions.
Non-market conditions are included in the assumptions about the aumber of rights that are
expected to vest. Al each financial reporting date, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of rights that are expected to vest. It recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, as “Operating expenses” in the income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment 1o lehility,
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1]

12

SUMMARY OF PRINCIFAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( Continued)

Employee benefits { Continued)

2.5 Bonus plans

13

14

1d.1

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses, taking into consideration
its husiness performance and profit attributable to the Bank’s equity holders. The Group
recognises @ liability where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created o constructive obligation.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
a5 a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
enefits will be reguired to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made. The amount initially recognised as a provision should be the best
estimate of the expenditere required to settle the present obligation.

Insurance contracts
Insarance contracts classification

The Group's insurance subsidiaries issue insurance contracts thal transfer significamt
insurance risk. The Group performs a significant insurance risk test at the contract initial
recognition date. [nsurance risk is significant if, and only if, an insured event could cause an
insurer to pay significant additional benefits in any scenario, excluding scenarios that lack
commercial substance. The Group issues non-life insurance contracts, which cover casualty
and property insurance risk, and life insurance comtracts, which insure events associated
with human life (for example death, or survival) over a long duration,

The Group does not separately measure embedded derivatives that itsell meet the definition
of an insurance contract ar oplions to surrender insurance contrwls for a Dxed amount (or an
amount bazsed on a fixed amount and an interest rate),
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1]

14

SUMMARY OF PRINCIFAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( Continued)

Insurance contracis ( Continmed )

14.2 Insurance contraciz recognition and messurement

¥y

{23

Non-life insuranee contracts

Premiums on non-life insurance contracts are recognised as revenue (earned premiums)
proportionally over the period of coverage. The portion of premium received on in-force
contracts that relates to unexpired risks s the financial reporting date is reported as the
unearned premium labiliy in “Other habilities”. Claims and loss adjusiment expenses
are charged to the income staitement as “Operating expenses” when mcurred bazed on the
estimated liability for compensation owed to contract holders or third parties damaged by
the contract holders. They include direct and indirect claims settlement costs and arise from
events that have occurred up to the financial reporting date even if they have not vet been
reported o the Group,

Life insurance contracts

Premiums on life insurance contracts are recognised as reventue when they become payvable
by the contract holders. Benefits and claims are recorded as an expense when they are
incurred. A lighility for contractual henefits that are expected to be incurred in the future
is recorded when premiums are recognised. For certain long-term insurance contracts
(investment-linked long-term insurance contracis) with embedded derivatives linking
payments on the contract to units of an investment fund set up by the Group with the
consideration received from the contract holders, the lability is adjusted for all changes
in the fair value of the underlving assets, and includes a liability for contractual benefits
that are expected to be incurred in the future which &5 recorded when the premiums are
recognised.

14.3 Liahility adeguacy test

At each financial reporting date, lability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the
adequacy of the insurance contract liabilities (including unearned premium in the case of
non-life insurance contracts). In performing these tests, current best estimates of future
contractual cash flows and claims handling and administration expenses, as well as
imvestment income from the assets backing such liabilities, are used, Any deficiency is
immediately charged to the income statement and reported as “Operating expenses”, with a
provision established for losses arising from the liability adegquacy test.
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15

16

17

1%

SUMMARY QF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( Continued )
Assets and liabilities held for sale

The Group classifies non-current assets or an asset group as held for sale if their carrying
amounts are recovered principally through disposal rather than through continuing use.
Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately on the balance sheet.
Such non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Property and egquipment and
intangible assets ape not depreciated or amortised once classified as held for sale.

Treasury shares and preference shares

Where the Bank or other memhbers of the Group purchase the Bank's ordinary shares,
“Treasury shares” are recorded &t the amount of consideration paid and deducted from total
equity holders” equity until they are cancelled. sold or reissued. Where such shares are
subseguently sold or reissued, any consideration received is included in capital and reserves
attributable to equity holders of the Bank.

Preference shares issued by the Group contain no contractual obligation to deliver cash or
another financial asset; or to exchange Nnancial assets or financial liabilities with another
entity under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Group: and preference
shares issued are non-derivative instruments that will be settled in the Group's own equity
instruments, but includes no contractual obligation for the Group to deliver a variable
number of s own equity instruments. The Group classifies preference shares issued as
an equity instrument. Fees, commissions and other transaction costs of preference shares
issuance are deducted from equity. The dividends on preference shares are recognised as
profit distribution at the time of declaration.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or nof-occurrence of one oF more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group, It can also be a present
obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of chligation cannot be
measured reliably.

Financial guarantee contracis

Financial guaraotee contraclts are codtracts that require the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails 1o
make payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies to secure customer
loans, overdrafts and other banking facilitics.
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18

19

20

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES ¢ Continued)
Financinl guaranice conirncts (Continued )

Financial guarantees are initially recognised at fair value on the date the guarantee was
given. Subseguent to initial recognition, the Group's liabilities under such guarantees are
measured at the higher of the initial measurement less amortisation calculated and the best
eatimate of the expendinere required to settle any financial obligation arising at the financial
reporting date, any increase in the Liability relating to guaramess is laken to the income
statement. These estimates are determined based on experience of similar ransactions,
historical losses and by the judgement of management.

Fiduciary activilies

The Group acts as a custodian, trustee or in other fiduciary capacities, that result in its
holding or placing of assets on behall of individuals, securities investment funds, social
security funds, insurance companies, qualified foreign institutional investors, annuily
schemes and other customers. These assets are not included in the statement of financial
position of the Group, as they are not assets of the Group.

The Group also administers entrusted loans on behalf of third-pany lenders. In this regard,
the Group grants loans to bomrowers, as an intermediary, at the direction of third-party
lenders, who fund these loans. The Group has been contracted by these third-party lenders
to manage the administration and collection of these loans on their behall, The third-party
lenders determine both the underwriting criteria for and all terms of the entrusted loans,
including their purposes, amounts, interest rates, and repayment schedule. The Group
charges a commission related to its activities in connection with the entrusted loans, but
the risk of loss is borne by the third-party lenders. Entrusted loans are not recognised in the
statement of financial position of the Group.

Interest income and expense
Interest income and expense for all anterest-bearing DOnancial instruments, excepl
derivatives, are recognised within “Interest income” and “Interest expense™ in the income

statement using the effective interest method. Interest income and expense for derivatives is
recognised in “Net trading gains” in the income statement.
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20

21

22

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Interest income and expense (Confinued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter penod 1o the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When caleulating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial mstrument but does not consider future
credit losses. The caleulation includes all amounts paid or received by the Group that are an
integral part of the elfective interest rate, including transaction costs and all other premiums
or discounts.

Onee a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a
result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash Mows Tor the purpose of measuring the impairment loss,

Fee and commission income

The Group earns fee and commission income from a diverse range of services it provides to
its customers. For those services that are provided over a period of time, fee and commission
imcome are acerued over that period. For other services, fee and commission income are
recognised when the ransactions are completed.

Income taxes
Income taxes comprise current income tax and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in the

income statement except to the extent that it relates to items directly recognised in Equity. In
these cases, tax is also dircetly recognised in Equity.

221 Current income tax

Current income tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantially enacted at the financial reporting date, and any adjustment to
tax payvable in respect of previous vears.
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22

SUMMARY OF PRINCIFAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( Continued)

Income tnxes { Continued)

22.2 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated Dinancial statements, Deferred income tax s determined using tax rates and
laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the financial reporting date and
are expected o apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax lability 15 settled.

The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment allowances, revaluation of
cerfain financial assets and financial liabilities including derivative contracts, revaluation
of investment properties, depreciation of property and equipment, provisions for pension,
retirement benefits and salary payable,

“Deferred income tax assets” are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised except the deferred tax asset arises from the initial recognition of an asset or hability
in a transaciion that is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profivfitax loss),

For deductible temporary differences associated with investment in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, a deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that, and only to the extent
that, it is probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future; and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities shall be recognised for all taxable temporary differcnces, except
to the extent that the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill,
or the initial recognition of an asset or liahility in a transaction which is ot a business
combination, and at the time of the transaction, affects neither sccounting profit nor taxable
profitfitax loss).

Deferred income tax liabilities on taxable temporary differences arising from investment in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are recognised, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The tax effects of income tax losses available for carrving forward are recopnised as an asset
when it is probable that future taxable profits will be available againzt which these losses
can be utilised.
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{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
I SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( Continued )

2} Segment reporting

The Group reviews the internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. Segment information is presented on the same basis as the Group’s management
and internal reporting.

24 Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in disclosures in
current year,

[l CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group makes estimates and judgements that affect the reported amounts of assets and
lighilities within the next financial year, Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are bazed on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the cirecumstances.

The Group has taken into consideration the impact of the economic environment on the
industries and territories in which the Group operates when determining critical accounting
estimates and judgements in applying sccounting policies,

Areas susceptible to changes in critical estimates and judgements, which affect the carrying
value of assets and labilities, are set out below. [t is possible that actual results may be
materially different from the estimates and judgements referred below.

1 Impoirment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loans and advances 1o assess impairment on a periodic basis, unless
known circumstances indicate that impairment may have osccurred as of an interim date.

In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement, the
Growp makes judgements and assumptions when calculating loan impairment allowances
related to loans and advances. These allowances, which reflect the difference between the
carrying amount of a loan, or a portiolio of similar loans, and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, are assessed individually, for significant loans, and collectively, all
other loans that are not individually significant or for which impairment has not vel been
identified by including the loan in a group of loans with simalar eredit risk characteristics,
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES { Continued)

Impairment allowances on loans and advances { Continuedy

The estimate of future cash flows is most significantly related to impaired loans for which
the impairment loss is assessed individually. Factors affecting this estimate include, among
other things, the granularity of financial information related to specific borrowers, the
availability of meaningful information related to industry competitors and the relevance
of sector trends to the future performance of individual borrowers, China continues 1o
experience economic growth and these facts are not as well established as those in more
developed markets. The effect of these factors requires significant judgement 1o be applied
in the estimation of future cash flows. This s especially true 1n emerging sectors.

Significant judgement is also applied to the calculation of collectively assessed impairment
allowances. The Group makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data
indicating that there 15 a measurable decrease in the estimated futwre cazsh flows from a
portfolie of loans and advances before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan
in that portfolio. This evidence may include obzervable data indicating that there has been
an adverse change in the pavment status of borrowers in a group (e.g. payment delinquency
or default), or national or local economic caonditions that comrelate with defaulis on assets in
the Group. Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in
the portfolio when estimating expected future cash flows, The methodology and assumptions
used for estimating both the amount and tming of future cash flows are reviewed regularly
1o reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience. The Group has
considered the impact of the changes and uncertainty in the macro-economic ¢nvironments
in which the Group operates when assessing the methodology and assumptions used for loss
estimates and made adjustments where appropriate.

Fair value of derivatives and other financial instruments

The Group establishes Tair value of Ninancial instruments with reference to a quoted market
price in an active market or, if there is no active market, using valuation technigues. These
valuation technigues include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, observable prices
for similar instruments, discounted cash flow analvsis using risk-adjusted interest rates, and
commonly used market pricing models. Whenever possible these models use ohservahle
market inputs and data including, for example, interest rate yield curves, foreign currency
rates and option volatilities. The results of using wvaluation techniques are calibrated
against indusiry practice and observable current market transactions in the same or similar
inslruments,
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES { Continued)

Fair value of derivatives and other inancial instruments (Continaed )

The Group assesses assumpticons and estimates used in valuation technigues including
review of valuation model assumptions and characteristics, changes to model assumptions,
the quality of market data, whether markets are active or inactive, other fair value
adjustments not specifically captured by models and consistency of application of
techniques between reporting periods as part of its normal review and approval processes,
Valuation techniques are validated and perniodically reviewed and. where appropriate, have
been updated o reflect market conditions at the financial reporting date.

With respect to the PRC government obligations related to large-scale policy directed
financing transactions, fair valee is determined using the stated terms of the related
instrument and with reference 10 terms determined by the PRC government in similar
tranzactions engaged in or directed by the PRC government. [n this regard, there are no other
relevant market prices or vields reflecting arm’s length transactions of a comparable size and
lenar.

Impairment of available for sale investiment securities and held to maturity investment
securities

The Group follows the puidance of [AS 3% to determine when an available for sale or
held to maturity investment security is impaired and when impairment on a debt security
is reversed. This determination requires significant judgement. In making this judgement,
the Growp evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair
value of an investment is less than its cost, the extent to which changes in fair value
relate to credit events, and the financial health of and near-term business omlcok for the
investeedunderlyving portfolio, including factors such as industry and sector performance,
technological innovations, credit ratings, delinquency rates, loss coverage ratios and
counterparty risk.

Held to maturity securitics
The Group follows the guidance of 1AS 3% on classifying non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity date as held to maturity. This

classification requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates
its intention and ability to held such investments to maturity.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES { Continued)

Provisions

The Group uses judgement to assess whether the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events at each financial reporting date, and judgement is used
ton determine if it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required 1o settle the obligation, and to determine a reliable estimate of the amount of the
oblizgation and relevant disclosure in the consolidated financial statements,

Employee refirement benelii obligaiions

As deseribed in Note 11122 apnd MNote V.32, the Bank has established liabilities in
connection with benefits pavable to certain retired and carly retired employees. These
liahilities are calculated using actuarial assumptions such as discount rates, pension benefit
inflation rates, medical beaefit inflation rotes, and other factors. While management
believes that its assumptions are appropriate, differences in actual experience or changes
in assumplions may affect other comprehensive income, expenses and employves retirement
benefit obligations.

Taxes

The Group is subject to income and business taxes in numerous jurisdictions, principally in
Chinese mainland and Hong Kong. There are certain transactions and activities for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Group has made estimates for items of uncertainty and application of new tax legislation
taking into account existing tax legislation and past practice, in particular, the treatment of
supplementary PRC tax applied to results of overseas operations.

Where the final tax cutcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
estimated, such differences will impact the current income tax, deferred income tax, and
business tax in the period during which such a determination 18 made,

Impairment of non-financial asseis

Mon-financial assets are periodically reviewed for impairment and where the carrying
amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it 15 written Jdown

immediately to its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
fair value less costs to zell and value in use.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES { Continued)

Impairment of non-fnancial assels (Continued)

When estimating the value in use of aircraft held by subsidiaries, the Group estimates
expected future cash flows from the aircraft and uses a suitable discount rate to caleulate
present value. The Group obtaing valuations of aircraft from independemt appraisers for
which the principal assumptions underlying aircraft value are based on current market
transactions for similar aircraft in the same location and condition. The Group also uses
the far value of aircraft obtained from independent apprarzers in its assessment of the
recoverable amoumt of intangible assets and the goodwill anising from the purchase of the

Group's aireraft leasing subsidiary,
Judgement in assessing control over structured entities

The Group is involved with structured entities in i1s normal business course, and the Group
determines whether or not o consolidate those structured entities depending on whether the
Group has control over them. When assessing contrel over structured entities, the Group
takes consideration of power arising from rights it directly owns or indirectly owns through
subsidiaries (ncluding controlled structured entmties), variable returns, and link between

power and refurns.

The variable returns the Group is exposed o from ils involvement with structured entities
include decision makers” remuneration (such as management fees and performance-related
fees), as well a5 other benefits (such as investment income, remuneration and exposure 1o
loss from providing credit or liquidity support, and variable returns from transactions with
structured entities). When assessing whether it controls a structured entity, the Group not
only considers applicable legal or regulatory requirements, and contractual agreements, but
also other circumstances where the Group may have obligation to absorb any loss of the
structured entity.

The Group reassesses whether it contrals a structured entity if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes (0 one or more of the relevant elements of control.
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v

TAXATION

The principal income and other waxes to which the Group is subject are listed below:

Taxes Tax hasis Statutory rates

Chinese mainland

Corporate income 1ax Taxable income 5%
Business tax Business income 3%
City construction and maintenance tax Turnover Lax paid 1 9%—T%
Education surcharges Turnover tax paid 3
Local education surcharges Turnover tax paid %
Hong Keng

Hong Kong profits tax Assessable profits 16.5%
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{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
Vo ONOTES TOTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 Nefinterest income

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
Interest inconme
Loans and advances to customers 435,062 428572
Financial investments and {inancial assets
at fair value through profit or loss' 105,651 £6.210
Due from central banks 29,543 327719
[Due from and placements with and loans 1o banks
and other financial institutions 41,800 55,119
Suhtotal 615,056 G002 680
Interest expense
Due to customers {221 288) (215.019)
Due 1w and placements from banks and
other financial institutions (33,0500 (35428)
Bonds issued and other _a2068  (L131)
Subtatal (286,306) (281,578)
Met inferest income'™ 328 650 321102
Interest income acerued on impaired [inancial assels
{inchuded within interest income) 1,387 947

iy Inerest income on “Financial invesiments ond financial sssete at foir valoe throogh profit or Joss™ is
principally denived from debe secunities listed on Ching Demestic Interbank Bond Marke! and unlisted debt

securities in Hong Kong, Macan, Taiwan and other countnes and regions,

A2y Incloded swithin “Interest income™ and “Interest expense™ are RMEBG] 1519 mullion (2014: RMBGO0, 190
millionh and RMBXT3 306 million ¢2014: RMB272,684 mullion) for fimancial assets and financal Habtlitbes
that are not ol for valoe theoogh profin o loss, respectively.

A

330/504



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

v

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

Met Fee and commission ineome

Agency commissions

Bank card fees

Credit commitment fees
Settlement and clearing fees

Spread income from foreign exchange husiness

Consultancy and advisory fees

Custodian and other fiduciary service fees

Other

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expense

Net fee and commission 1ncome

Net trading gains

MNet gains frem foreign exchange and
foreign exchange products

Met (losses)gains from interest rate products

MNet gains from equity products
Net gains from commeodity products

Total™

(1y  Incloded in “Net trading gains” above for the year ended 51 December 205 are losses of RME3 985
malkion in relatton © finncial assets and fnmmcind bababines desigmted as i fr valoe through profit or

loss (20]4: losses of BM Bd ARG mullion),
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Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
24,481 19,973
24,215 21 567
16,541 16,112
11,888 14.815

7,388 7,610
5,757 K835
1677 31426
6,958 6,200

100,905 9% 538
(8,495) (7.298)
92410 91 240

Year ended 31 December

2015

10,057

(1.884)
£41
1]

9,460

2014

9.853
63l
i
A0

11,0449
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

4 (hher operating income

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
Insurance premiums™’ 16,166 12,256
Revenue from sale of precious metals products 6,130 5852
Aircraft leasing income 6,088 5,757
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures 206 (2]
Gains on disposal of property and equipment,
intangible assets and other assets £57 531
Dividend income TGS 96
Changes in fair value of investment properlics
(Note ¥W.21) 620 546
Other 4975 4,780
Total 37.627 31,042

{1y Detmls of insusance prémium income are a8 follows:

Year ended 31 December

018 2004

Life mswranee conirasts

Ciress earned premiums 19,204 13,5836

Less: gross wntten premiums ceded 1o reinsurers (8.215) {7059

Mel insunince premium income | O Sy 6637
Non-life insurance comlracts

Ciross earmed premiums 5 Rl 6,451

Less: gross wnltlen premuums ceded 1o reinsurers (70T [ w4

Mel insuninee prémiom income 5177 5619
Total Iﬁlit‘.ﬁ IIT'E'J.‘B-B
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Y

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

Operating expenses

Stall costs (Note V.6)

General operating and administrative expenses'"

Business tax and surcharges
Depreciation and amortisation
Insurance henefits and claims
Life insurance contracts
- Mon-life insurance contracts
Cost of sales of precious metals products
(ther

Total

{1y  Incladed 1 the “General operabing and admomistrative expenses™ are prncipal aaditors’ remanetation of
RMB214 million for the year ended 21 December 2005 (2014 RMB 199 million), of which RMB4T million
wag for Hong Kong, Macan, Tatwan amd other counties and reglong of the Group (2014 RMB46 millienh

Included in the “General operabng and admanistrotive expenses” ane operabing lease expenses of RMBT, 104
milkion amd premises and equipment relaled expenses (mainly comprised of property managemeent and
building maintenance ¢xpenses ) of RMBL1.T70 mallion (2004: RMB6.5%6 million and BEMEI 453 million,

respectively
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Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
80,324 77,889
40,671 39,284
26,734 26,224
13,218 13214
10,531 1,265

3.592 1,635

5.1 3435

4,608 4,822

185.401 177788
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

i Siafl cosis

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
Salary. bonus and subsidy 34462 33,857
Staflf wellare 2019 2443
Retirement benefits m2 288
Social insurance, including:
Medical 3,280 2084
Pension 6,587 6,272
Annuity 2060 1,862
Unemployment 413 447
Injury at work 163 157
Maternity imsurancs 223 201
Housing funds 5428 4078
L.abour union fee and staff education fee 1.911 1,925
Retmbursement for cancellation of labowr contract 7 20
Other 2,669 2455
Total 80,334 77.889

——— | ——————
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)
7 Directors’, supervisors’ and senior management’s emoluments

Detaals of the directors’ and supervisors” emoluments are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Coniri butions
Remumerulion Lo pension Benelils
Fiee= il schemaes in kimel Total
RAIRMS0 RAIB* 000 RAIB'O00 RN RAIR® a0
Executive direciors
TIAN Guali™ -+ A48 112 55 618
CHEN Saqng™ - A48 10T 58 613
LT Zashang"*™* N m 5 i i
Nomexecwhive direciors
FHAMNG Xiangdong'! - - - -
EHANG Qi = -
WANG Yong™ - = = 5
WANG Wei! - - - -
LIU Xiamg hwi™' = - -
L1 Joeailt® - 2 = 3 s
SN Ehijna'™ = = - - -
Tndependent direciors
CHOW Man Yiu. Faul §540 = 450
Jackson TAl A - A
Moot WELLINK SO 500
LU Zhengliet S0 - - - 00
LELING Cheuk Yan A0y - - - 40K
Snpervivars
L1 Jun™ - 448 129 ] (133
WANG Mueqizng™' 684 113 2 1035
LIU Wanming'™ - 57 10} 22 Wl
DENG Phiving 5 a0
LI Xinczhomng sgt S0
XIANG Ko S0 0
CHEN Yubua™ 97 97
MEI Xinghao™ 1580 150
2,647 2847 L] 6T 6,817
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)
T Directors’, supervisors’ and senior management’s emoluments { Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Conlritmtions
Bk topenshn  Benefits  DRCretionary bonuses®.
Fees salinies whiemis i kind Pald Deferral Tutal
RME 00 gy RME' ™ RMEBEOO)  RMEUO RMEO RMED0
Ereentire direciors
TIAN Guali® o o T I 613 15 30
11 Libvei®! A 1 1% utl 46 I 167
CHEN Saging® - 42 L 3 4 4 ()
LI Zachung" - 454 124 i 511 531 1578
WANG Yongli* 151 % i kil il 6
Non-exermtive direcion
SUN fhijun™ - - - : = E
ZHANG Nimpdong™ - - - : = E
FHANG (5 - - : « = -
WANG Yong? . - - - -
WANG We™
LIV Xianghai™
LI Lina™
Independent directors
CHOW M Yiw, Paul 450 450
Jackson TA 4 L]
Ko WELLINE L] S
LU fhengfei 50 s
LEUNG Cheuk Yan 40 - 4
Supervinars
L1 Junr™! - 50 il L] 516 i 1593
WANG Xuegimg'® 2 n 105 P 473 47 1.5g
LIV Wanming® - 3 1] N6 442 i 1586
NG Milvimg s . - - - 50
LI Ximohomg s - 5
KIANG Xi O - - - - 5
MEL Xinghao 10 0
BAG Guosng patt] 25
b7 1512 1364 3,37 14,4t

207
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Y

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

Directors”, supervisors’ and senior management’s emolumenis ( Confinued)

iy

(¥4

(k]

i+

(k3]

1)

Fer the years ended 21 December 2015 and 2014, thess non-executive directors of the Bank were not
remunerated by the Bank.

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2004, these execotive dinectors of the Bank did not receave any
fecs.

Employes sapervisors’ above compensation is padd for gerving as the supervisors of the Bank.

The total compensation packages for executive directors and supervigors for the year ended 31 December
2015 wncluding discmtonay boas have not yed been fimaliged in accondance wath relevan regalabons
of the PRC amthoritses, The amooni of the compensation not provided for kg not expected 1o have any
significant impact on the Grodp's 2015 financial stasements. The final compensation for the year ended 31
Drecember 2015 will be disclopsd in a separate announcement when desemmiined.

The compensation amounts for these directors ond supervicors Tor the year ended 31 December 2014 were
reslated based on the finaliced amounts as disclosed 1n the Bank's annoancement dated 38 Augasl 2015,

A porten of the iHscreiionary bonug payments for executive directors and Ube chairman of the board of
sopervisore are defermed for o minimuom of 3 years continpent apon the fulane performanse in accordance
with relevant regulanons of the PRC aothonbes.

L1 Zaohang ceased 1o serve a8 Executive Director and Execotive Vice President of the Bank as of 11 June
2015, SUN Ehijun ceased o serve as Non-<execotive Director of the Bank as of 21 May 2005, ME] Xingbao
censed 1o serve o8 Exlernal Supervisor of the Bank ns of I November 2013,

L1 Jucar began to serve us Nom-executive Director of the Bank o5 of 7 Seplember 20015, CHEN Yuhua
began 1o serve af Exwmal Supervisor of the Bank as of 17 Jone 2015,
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

v

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATEDR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)
Directors”, supervisors’ and senior management’s emolumenis ( Confinued)
Five Iighest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, none of them are directors or
supervisors whose emoluments are disclosed above.

The emoluments payable to the five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the yvears ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 respectively are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
Basic salaries and allowances 16 14
Diseretionary bonuses 83 70
Contributions to pension schemes and other 2 5

101 89

Emoluments of the individuals were within the following bands:

Year ended 31 December

Amounts in RMB 2015 14
13,000,001-14,000,000 1 3
14,000,601-15,000,000 1

15,0000, (401 —1 6,000,000 |
16000001 -20,000,000 2 1
30,000,001 40,000,000 1 |

The sbove five highest paid individuals” emoluments are based on best estimates of
discretionary bonuses. Discretionary bonuses include portions of payments that are deferred
1o future periods.

During the wears ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group has not paid any

emoluments to the directors, supervisors, or senior management as an inducement to join or
upan joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

338/504

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
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Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

8 Impairment losses on asseis

Loans and advances
— Individually assessed
— Collectively assessed

subtotal

Financial investments

Available for sale
Debt securities
— Other available for sale financial assets

Held to maturity

Loans and receivables

Subtotal

Other

Total™

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
30,064 23321
25,808 233,285
54872 46,0404

(H6) (183)
63 160
(L 577

(35) (29

1.690

1,654 548

1,748 1,227

59.274 48381

(1y Detaile of new allowsnces amd reversal of imparment losses on loams and advances and financial

iavestments ane disclosed in Nomes V.17 and V.33, respectively

210
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Y

9

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)
Income tax expense

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
Current income Lax

— Chinese mainland income tax 44,376 48,126
— Hong Kong profits tax 4.210 3576

— Macau, Taiwan and other couniries and
regions taxation 3,218 4,285

Adjuziments in respect of current ineome tax
of prior years 273 2872
Subtotal 52077 58,859
Deferred income tax (Note V.34) i H,ﬁ'._?‘;l'l
Total 52,154 54,280

The principal tax rates applicable to the Group are set oul in Note [V,

Provision for Chinese mainland income tax mcludes income tax based on the statutory tax
rate of 25% of the taxable income of the Bank and each of its subsidiaries established in
the Chinese mainland, and supplementary PRC tax on overseas operations as determined in
accordance with the refevant PRC income tax rules and regulations, as well as income tax
withhield by the domestic entities in relation to the taxable income originating from Chinese
mainland ohtained by the overseas entities (Note [11.T).

Taxation on profits of Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and other countries and regions has been

calculated on the estimated assessable profits in accordance with local tax regulations at the
rates of taxation prevailing in the countries or regions in which the Group operates.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
Vo ONOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
9 Income inx expense (Continued)

The tax rate on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would
arise using the basic Chinese mainland tax rate of the Bank as follows:

Year ended 31 December

20158 2014
Profit before income tax 231,57 231478
Tax calculated at the applicable statutory tax rate 57,803 51,870
Effect of different tax rates on Hong Kong, Macau,

Tatwan and other countries and regions (4,000 (3,561
Supplementary PRC tax on overseas income 3,696 1619
Income not subject to tax'™ (10.365) (79738
Items not deductible for tax purposes'™ 6,568 3704
iher y (1.129) 1621
Income tax expense 52,154 54,280

{1}y Income not gubgoct 10 tax maindy compnses inenest income from PRC treasury bonds and local government
bonads.

12y Noo-deduoctebde ilems primanly meluide Ioses resulting from wrbe-off of certadn non-performing Leans, and
muirketing and entertanment expenses 1o excess of e rebevont deducirble threshold undér the relevant PRTC
lax regalatiens.

e
o
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)
1 Earnings per share (basic and diluted)

Basic earnings per share

Basic carnings per share was computed by dividing the profit attributable to the ordinary
shareholders of the Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during

the period,
Y ear en_l_ieq 31 Di_c!eny_hr_:r
2018 2014

Prafit attributable to equity holders of the Bank 170,845 169,505
Less: dividends on preference shares declared (5.012)
Profit antributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank 165 833 1689 595
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

(in million shares) 203,722 280,009
Basic earnings per share {in RMB per share) 0.56 (.61

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (in million shares)

Year ended 31 December

2015 014

Issued ordinary shares as at 1 January 288,731 279,365
Add: weighted average number of shares from

conversion of convertible bonds 5018 655

Less: weighted average number of treasury shares (27} (11

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 293,722 2800404
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( Continued)

1 Earnings per share (basic and diluted) { Continued)
Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share was computed by dividing the adjusted profit attributable 1o the
ordinary shareholders of the Bank based on assuming conversion of all dilutive potential

shares for the vear by the adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue, The
Bank had convertible bonds as dilutive potential ordinary shares,

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
Prafit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank 165,833 1659505
Add: interest expense on convertible bonds, net of tax 47 1,120
Profit used to determine diluted earnings per share 165,880 170,715

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
(in million shares) 293,722 280,004
Add: weighted average number of ordinary
shares assuming conversion of all
dilutive shares (in million shares) 640 13,861

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for

diluted carnings per share {in million shares) 294,362 293,870
Diluted earnings per share (in KMB per share) (.56 .58
—

214
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

Ciher comprehensive income

Acerual amount of other comprehensive income:

Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Mctuarial losses on defined benefit plans
Less: pelated income tax impact

Other
Suhtotal

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss

Fair value gains on available for sale financial assets

Less: related income tax impact

Amount transferred to the income statement
Less: related income tax impact

Share of other comprehensive income of associates and
joint ventures accounted for using the equity method
Less: related income tax impact

Amount transferred to the income statement

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Less: net amount transferred 1o the income statement
from other comprehensive income

Other
Suhtotal

Total
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Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
(161) (234
: 1
(161) (233)
1:-} 5
(147) (228)
14,006 12,334
(3,674 (3.932)
(4.572) (426
1123 54
6,573 §430
1408 276
5 (2
(1.864)
(361) 256
6,763 (2383
131 (17a)
GEJ'IS (2,755
136 471
13 dad 6,398
13,267 6,170
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
Vo ONOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
11 Ohiher comprehensive income { Conlinued )

Other comprehensive income attributable to equity holders of the Bank in the conselidated
statement of financial position:

Fair value Exchange
wnins on dilferences on

available for translation
sale financial ol foreign
 hme . operaltions: Ot otal
Asat ] January 2004 1,652 (21.542) 640 (19.241)
Changes in amount
fior the previous year 5,060 {2851) kx| 5570
Asat 1 January 2005 9,702 (24,393) 1,020 (13671
Changes in amount for the year 1,278 4.H45 (297) 11,326
As af 3] December 2015 16,980 (20,0483 723 {2,345)

12 Cash and due from banks and other financial institutions

As ot 31 December

21s 2014
Cash 73,371 5,123
Due from banks in Chinese mainland 538,501 9T 158
Due from other financial institutions
in Chinese mainland 1,377 505
Due from banks in Hong Kong, Macaw, Taiwan and
other countries and regions 41,063 29,863
Due from other financial institutions in Hong Kong,
Macau, Tatwan and other countries and regions By A5
Total 654,378 813,054

216
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

13 Balances with ceniral hanks

As al 31 December

2015 2014
Mandatory reserves™ 1,380,456 1,727,805
Surplus reserves™ 132,833 158,224
Oither™ 482774 420,059
Tetal 2.1946,063 2, 306 (8

{1y The Group places mandatory reserve fonds with the Peaples Bunk of Clidna (the “FEOC™) and the central
banks of Hong Kong, Macan, Taiwan and olher countnes and regions where il has operations. As ar 31
December 2015, mandatory neserve funds placed with the PBOC were caboulaied at 17.0% (31 December
2014 ¥00%) and 5.0% (31 December 2014: 505 of qualified RMB deposits and foreign cummency
deposite from customers of branches in Chinese manltand of ihe Bank respectvely. The mandatory neserve
funde placed with the central bank of domestic subsidianes of the Group i detesmined by ihe PBOC. The
amount of mandatory meserve funds placed with the central banks of ciher pnisdictions iz determined by
local n:gu'l.ul.].on:.

(2} This manly représented the sarplos reserve fands placed with the PROC by branches in Chinese mannland
of the Group.

{3}y This mainly represeaied balances, otber than mamdaiory reserves and surplos neserves, placed with ceniral
banks by operations in Hong Kong. Macan, Tawan and otlser countries and fegions.

217
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

14 Placements with and loans o banks and other financial insiiiutions

Placements with and loans to:

As al 31 December

Banks in Chinese mainland
Other financial institutions in Chinese mainland
Banks in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and

other countries and regions

Other financial instilutions in Hong Kong, Macau,

Taiwan and other countries and regions

Subtotal

Allowance for impairment losses

Total

Impaired placements

2015 2014
118,664 130,015
214,495 182,046
93,881 90414
- 12
427,040 402487

(192) (207)

426,848 402,280

158 173

Percentage of impaired placements to 1otal placemenis
with and loans 1o banks and other linancial mstitutions (10455 (01.045%%

iy

“PFlacements with and loans to banks and other financial instittions™ include balances arising from reverse
repo agreemsents and collateralised financing agreements. These are presented by collmeral fype o= follows:

Drebit secunities
— Crovemments
— Policy banks
— Financial institutions

Subeoial

Bills

Total

As at 31 December

2ms 2014
33500 30932
414382 50,935

151 13040
75103 RB3N6T
1527 20,002

TE.63 0 {4 165
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

15 Financial assets af fair value through profit or less

As al 31 December

2015 2014
Trading Nnancial assels
Dbt securities
Issuers in Chinese maimland
— Government 5151 2104
Paolicy banks 6,301 9034
Financial institutions 19,122 12,130
— Caorporate 4,604 5046
issvers in Hong Kong. Macau, Taiwan and
other countries and regions
— Governments 12,646 13,2610
— Public sectors and quasi-governments 506 365
— Financial institutions 2138 T BG4
Corporate 3,446 3,636
54,004 49,345
Other
Fund investments and other 3,547 1457
Equity securities T.471 14,168
Subtotal 65,0232 64,570
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)
15 Financinl sssets ol fir value through profii or loss (Continued)

As al 31 December

2015 2014
Financial assets designated as of fair value
through profit or loss
Diebt securities
Izsuers in Chinese mainland
Government 300 356
Palicy banks 102 1444
- Financial institutions 2,291 2295
Corporate 4,216 7,345
Issuers in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and
other countries and regions
— Governments 2ans 61
Financial institutions 25,016 17,711
Corpotate 11,540 3,728
45,860 32040
Oher
Fund investments 2,095 754
Loans't 4218 4,144
Equity securities 1867 1,720
Subtotal 34,040 39 558
Total™' 119.062 EEHE"IEE
Analysed as follows:
Listed in Hong Kong 31,921 24,120
Listed outside Hong Kong! 53,690 50,365
Unlisted 33.451 30,043
Total 119,062 104528

_—

220
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Y

16

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

Financinl assefs ai fir value through profii or loss (Continued)

{1y There was no significant change during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 and cumulatively, in
the fair value of the loans thai was aitnbotable to changes in ibe credit nsk of the loans.

2y Az at 51 December 2015, the Group held bonds issued by the Mimstry of Finance of ibe PRC (the “MOF*)

angd bhalls 1ssued h:r the PEOC included in “Financml ass¢ts at fair valoe through pq’prn o1 boss™ with the
carrying valoe and the related coupon rale range on such bonds and bills as follows:

A al 3 December

2005 2004
Carrymng valoe 5541 2459
Coapon rake range 0L005—<4.20% 1.95%<4 54%

(3} Asal 3] December 2015, included in the Groop's "Rnancial assete ai fur value through profit or boss™ were
certificates of deposat held of RMB17,200 million (31 December 2014: RMEBES,615 millwom)

{4y Debt securites traded on the China Domestic Inderbank Bond Market are included in “Liswed onside Hong

Kong™,
Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group enters into foreign currency exchange rate, interest rate, equity, eredit or precious
metals and other commaodity related derivative financial instruments for trading, hedging,
asset and liability management and on behalf of customers.

The contractuslfmotional amounts and fair values of derivative instruments held by the
Group are set out in the following tables. The contractualinotional amounts of financial
instruments provide a basis for comparison with the fair values of instruments recognised
on the statement of financial position but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future
cash flows involved or the current fair value of the instruments and, therefore, do not
indicate the Group's exposure to eredit or market risks. The derivative instruments become
favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest
rates, foreign exchange rates, credit spreads, or eguityfcommodity prices relative 1o their
terms. The sggregate fair values of Derivative Ninancial assets and habilities can (luctuate
significantly from time to time.

i e ]
£
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( Continued)
16 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting ( Continued)

6.1 Devivative financial instruments

Asal M December 2008 Asat M Decomber Hil4
Coslractual! Comtractual!
notional Fair value nolisaal Far vabse
amsunl Assels  Lishilities amun| Amals  Liabilities
Exclinge rase derivaives
Cumency forwad and swips, md
CTE-CUMTEICY imerest File saapd ™ 4516512 &1 447 35308 2N 33106 101y
Cumency oplions nsam () (LT ke L e 452 By
Subbotal 4. T42431 174 (57074 2050 b3l (R
Imneresn rate dermalives
Imberest rale swaps 106 1831 5235 {380 LT 4521 [ENE]
Enberesl rale oftans - = £
Ingerest rate furures i i il 350 3 i3}
Subbotal 163543 51 {5803) (0,553 4524 (4733}
Equity dervatives 555 Hl (Rt 14573 627 1.1
Commodity derivatives md othe 1385006 1382 (LA ] 618 (3ATH
Total SIM hE ] & il 1#‘? 16y 3 M}:N}. 47961 ETS‘-H

1y These exchange rate derivatives pnmarily include foreign exchange ransachons with costomers; foreign
exchange imnsactions 1o manage foreign comency exchange meks ansing from customers: and foreign
cumency exchange wansachons entered into as pan of the asset and lishility management snd fumbing

Tequineme s,

L
ot
L3
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{ Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise sated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)
16 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting ( Continued)

16,2 Hedge aecounting

Incleded in the derivative financial instruments above are those designated as hedging
instruments by the Group as follows:

Az al 3] December 2015 Ag al 3 December 2004
Coatractual! Comtractual!
potional Fair vale olional Fair value
amoanl MAsms Lisbilitles amiunl Asmels LlabHithes
Drerparioves desigmaned & hadging
wlrumess m fiar vabie hedpes
Crosg-Cumency nbieted nb swaps 135 - ] 5068 - (L]
Interest rake swaps 7312 1441 11014} LIRS 15K {590
Subtoral™ o 461 {2007 w650k 1,500 (13565
[erivatives desigated & hedging
instruments m cxsh Bow hedges
Cross-umeandy mbsred rike swaps LoT 42 (8 LAuT & 1]
Subtotal™ 1ot 42 (8) 1467 B [EL]
Total R1963 1503 JLI0ET E1.068 [ (1385}
223
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( Continued)
16 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting ( Continued)

6.2 Hedge wecounting (Cortimued)

{1} Fur volos hedges
The Group mees cross-cumency inlenest fale swaps and inlerest male swaps 1o bedpe against changes in fadr
valme of bonds iesued amd debt mecuniies available for gale ansing from changes in foreign exchange rabes

and intorest wabes.

Gans or losses on fair valoe hedges are s Follows:

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
Net gainsilosses) om
— hedging instruments ] (1,700
— hedged f4ems n7 1985
InefTectivensss recopnisad in Net tmdding gins 2R 24

2y Cashflow hedges

The Groap uses cross-Comency imiercsl rate swaps o hedpe againg exposune 1o cash flow vansbility
primarily from foreign exchange mtes and intenest mie risks of placement mansacions,

For the year ended 31 December 2015, a met gaan from cash fMlow hedges of RME26 million was recognised
in “CHher comprehensve income™ {200 nel gain of EMBSE million ), and there wos no ineffectiveness for
the years ended 31 December 20013 and 3014,

There were no transactions for which cash flow hedge accounting had to be ceqsed in the year ended 31
December 2015 or 2014 as a result of the highly probable cash Mows pe longer being expeciad 1o ocour,

i3p  Net investmenl hedges

The Groap's consolidated statement of fnancial postion is afected by exchange differences between
the funcltional correncies of respectve holding compames and functwonal comencies of ther brimches
and sobsdianes. The Growp bedpes such exchange exposures only in limied circumstances, Hedging &2
unidertaken osng deposits aked in the sme cumensie: as the foncdonal correncies of related branches and
sababdianes which are accoanted for as bedges of certain nel investment in forsign operations.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, a net loss from the hedging instrament of RMEB1,023 mallion was
recognised in “(ther comprehensive income”™ on net imvestment hedges (2014: net gain of RMB2T million},
and there was no ineffectiveness in the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,

24
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

17 Loans and advances to cusiomers, nel

17.1 Analysis of leans and advances fo cusiomers

As at 31 December

2015 2014
Corporate loans and advances
— Loans and advances 6,105,959 5,820,128
Discounted hills 263,953 2125468
Subtotal 65,369,912 6,045 5%
Personal loans
Mortgages 2045787 1,694,275
- Credit cards 268,923 268,026
— (her 451,238 475378
Subtotal 2765948 2437670
Total loans and advances Q.135 860 B.483.275
Less: allowance for impairment |psses
Individually assessed (60,791 (49,2393
Collectively assessed (139.874) (1392492}
Total allowance for impairment losses (2006651 (188.531)
Loans and advances to customers, net #.03%5.165 §.294 744

I7.2 Analysis of loans and advances to customers by geographical area, industry, collateral type
and analysis of overdue loans and advances to custemers by collateral type 15 presented in

MNote V].3.5.

7
B
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( Continued)
17 Loans and advances to customers, net { Continued)

I7.3 Analysis af loans and advances to customers by collective and individual allowance
assessments [ Continwed)

i1y Loane snd sdvances for which allowance is collectively assersed consist of loans and advances which have
nol been specifically wdentified as impained.

(2} ldentified impaited loans and advances are loans for which objecive evidence of impairment exigis and
whish Bave been tdentified as bearmg an impairment loss amd assessed ether:

* indivadually (incleding mainly significant corporate loans and advances over a cenain ameunt which
are impaired);, or

. collectively {porifolios of individually insignificant homogenous loans which share similar credst nisk
chamclenstes, including magnicont corporae loans and sdvances and personal Foans which are
i nedd ).

227
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{ Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
Vo ONOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 Loans and advances to customers, net { Continued)

I7.4 Reconciliation of alfowance for impairment losses on loans and advances fo customers by
individual and collective assessmenis

Yeear emded 31 December

R Iold
Inlividluslly  Collectividy Individually  Collectively
s ansessi] iwsis] sl
alowance  aBowance Total  allwance  allowance Tedal
Az ] Jamey 49,239 139,293 188,531 3802 128,847 168,048
Iroipameent Josses bor the year BA19 17,558 103,377 ILATY X380 05
Reversal (6,355) (41,550 (47,905) 18,353} {29005 {(3TAHE)
Writsem ofF and tramfer ot (19,551} (25, 046) (45,197) {13,403} {12.238) (25.750%
Transfer in
— Raxpovery of oo and
abvances writhen ofl 1,156 136 g 60 “ ™
— Upnwind of dliscoun on alkowance (52 [ECLE] {132%) {300) {4851 {579
— Exchange differences 382 1084 1,466 (61 (X7} {28y
As o 31 December 0,791 130,874 HAES 45.23% 139,292 158,531

17.5 Reconciliation of allowance account for impairment fosses on loans and advances o
casiomers by custenrer type

Year ended 31 Decenaber

) 2015 ) 014
Corporate  Personal Total  Corporate  Personal Tatal
As o | Janoagy 152,682 35,540 188531 136,978 31471 168, 04%
Impairment losses for the year 508N 13,506 1737 Ta.87 L 54,154
Revitrssl {47,704) {201} (47,5415 (37.20H) 1158} (37448
Written off aml transfer ol (36,2000 [8,987) (45,197 (21,130 (4611} (25,731}
Tranafer in
— Recovery of loans and
advances wllen off 1,370 43 1332 35 [ 54
Unwind of discoust on allowance {9613 {368) (1344 {387) {202} [h-al]
— Exchaspe differences ) 1423 43 A6 41 (27) {268}
As o 31 December J il 3 A02%5 HHLEAS Laliss Jaman 18557
223
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

18 Financial invesimenis

As al 31 December

2015 2014
Investment securities available for sale
Dbt securities
Issuers in Chinese maintand
— Government 198,333 81,134
— Public sectors and quasi-governments 11,245 12470
— Policy banks 153,831 126,212
— Financial institutions 153,622 03622
— Carporate 129,027 152974
Issuers in Hong Kong, Macan, Tarwan and
other countries and regions
— (Governments 189,310 83522
— Public sectors and quasi- governments 18,020 17,065
— Financial institutions 106,867 106,078
— Corporate 58587 37061
14029842 T12,138
Equity securities 30,200 26548
Fund investments and other lﬁiﬁg ll_*]f?
Total investment securities available for sale'™ 1078533 750,685
[Debt securities held (o maturity
Issuers in Chinesce maintand
— Government 1117213 758,291
— Public sectors and quasi-governments 37,548 28008
— Policy banks 276,054 ITR ARG
— Financial institutions 70,272 68,254
— Caorporate 128,292 147,379
Issuers in Hong Kong, Macan, Taiwan and
other countries and regions
— Giovernmints 24013 Q4 310
— Public sectors and quasi- governments 20,003 21,504
— Financial institutions 23,361 11,529
— Corporate 33,230 16,319
1,790,984 1,424,681
Allowance for impairment losses (15t} (218
Total debt securities held to maturity'’ 1,790,790 1,424 463

29
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

18 Financial invesimenis { Continued)

As al 31 December

2015 2014
Financial investments classified as
loans and receivables
Diebt securities
Izsuers in Chinese mainland
China Qrient™ 140,000 10,0400
Special Purpose Treasury Bond™ 42,500 42 500
- Financial institutions 525N 36,250
Certificate and Saving-type Treasury Bonds and
other® 63,034 315361
Issuers in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and
other countries and regions
— Governments 14 =
Public sectors and quasi-governments 11,957 6,323
Financial institutions 2 2
— Corporate 8 17
Subtotal of debt securities investments 350,306 276,653
Investment trusts, assel management plans and other'® 2TR D68 154,110
Allowance for impairment losses (1,754) (64
Total financial investments classified as
loans and receivables ﬁ!'.lli,_']"] f] 430,699
Total financial investments™® 3476,033 2,605,847

230

359/504

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

18 Financial invesimenis { Continued)

Analysed as follows:

Investment securilies availahle for sale
Dbt securitics

Listed in Hong Kong

Listed ouside Hong Kong

Unlisted

Equity, fund and other
— Listed in Hong Kong
— Listed outside Hong Kong
— Unlisted

[ebt securities held fo maturity
- Listed in Hong Kong
Listed outside Hong Kong
- Unlisted

Financial investments classificd as
loans and receivahles
Unlisted

Total

Listed in Hong Kong
Listed outside Hong Kong
Unlisted

Total

360/504

As al 31 December

2015 2014
47,203 34,704
639,331 430,374
343,308 24T 058
5,775 4573

162 362
42754 33512
26,561 16,368
1.552,348 1,229,194
211,881 178501
606,710 430,604
3.476,033 2.605 847
79,530 55,645
2,191,841 1.659.932
1,204,633 890,270
3,476,033 2,605,847
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

18 Financial invesiments { Continued)

As al 31 December

2015 2014
Carrying Market Carrying Market
value value value value
Debt securitics held to maturity
— Listed in Hong Kong 26,561 16,191 16,368 16,612
Listed oumside Hong Kong 1,552,348 1.503.002 1220194 1,233453

{1y The Group's sccumulated tmpairment charge on debe securities, eqidty and alther avadlable for sale held as
at 31 Deceniber 23015 amounted o BEMBE1LA10 million and RMES 564 million, respectvely (31 December
2004 RMB1.924 milbion and RMES 203 nullion, respéectvely ).

{2y In 2015, ihe Groop reclassified cenain debt securities with a iolal carrying valee of RMBT. 513 nullion from
“Investment secunties avalable for sale” o “Investment securities held to maturity™ im regponse be o change
in imbenien of management (2014: RMB39.230 millien),

iy The Bank transfemed certun won-performing assels fo China Orient Asel Management Corporation
(“China Ooent™) o 1999 and 2000, On | Jaly 2000, China Onent issoed o ten-year bond (“Onent Bomnd™)
with a par vadue of RMB 160,000 nullion and urerest rabe of 2.25% 10 the Bank as consderation. Dunng the
year ended 31 December 2010, the matomty of this bond waz extended to 30 June 2020 with the other wmms
unchanged. The MOF shall continse to provide funding suepport for the principall and intesest of the Onent
Hond held by the Bank pursuant 1o Caijin [2004] No. 87 Nonee of the MOF Reparding Relevanl Taaiies
Relating to the Principal and Interest of Debt Securities of Finandal Asser Maragement Companies Held
by Bank af China and Chire Corstricrion Bank,

@) On I8 Angust (998, o Special Porpose Treasury Bond wos issued by the MOF with o par voloe of
RMBa2 500 millon maturng on 18 Angist 2028, This bond was ongimally seeed with an annsal conpon
rale of 7209 and 1 compon rale was restroctared 1o 2.25% per annuim from | Decembar 2004,

13 'The Bank onderwrites certain Treasury bonds rssoed by the MOF and undenakes the role of a dwisirbulor of
iheee Treasury bonds through i1e branch nerwork eaming commizzion incoms on bondz sold, The invesiors
of these bonds have a right 1o redeem the bonde at any ame prior to mamniy and the Bank is commitied
o medeem these Treasury bonds, The balance of theee bonde held by the Bank s at 31 December 2015
arnounted o RMB2ZS07 million (31 December 2004 RMB3 571 nullion).

(6)  This mepresents ihe Group's investimenls in investment tnssts and asset management plans which were
manmagesd by trist companies or secunbes companies, The anderdying asels of these invesinment tnasts and
aszed management plans mainly congist of beneficial mghiz in financial assets e, of which other banks
bear the payment obiigations im the fotore.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

v

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

18 Financial invesimenis { Continued)

it

1]

Asat 31 December 2015, the Groop held bomds issoed by the MOF and bills ssued by the PEOC incloded
in financial invesmments with the camying value and the related coupon mie range on such bonds and hills as

follows;
Az 331 Deconher
2008 2014
Carrying valoe 853457 697973
Conpon fuke mnge =54 1 T LBO%=-5.31%

Incloded in the Groop’s financial investments were certificates of depogit held ameanting 1o RMBLIE251
milkion a5 at 31 December 2005 (3] December 2004 RMBSE6.544 million ),

Invesiment in associates and joint venlures

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
As a1 January 14,379 13,368
Additions 3,300 260
Dhispesals (9,762} (344
Share of resulls, net of tax 2,334 1,319
Dividends received (180 {393
Exchange differences and ather (1] 219
As at 31 December 10,843 14379

—e ——eec

233
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

v

19

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( Continued)
Investment in associntes nnd joint ventures (Continued )
Investment in associates and joint ventures of the Group comprise of ordinary shares of

unlisted companies. The carrying amount by principal investees was as follows. Further
details are disclosed in Note V.42.4,

As al 31 December

215 2014
BOC International (China) Limited 3,759 2081
iraceful Field Worldwide Lid. 1306
CGN Phase [ Private Equity Fund Company Limited 1,120 1,060
Guangdong Small and Medium Enterprises Equity
Investmient Fund Company Limited 753 161
Cinda & BOC (Anhui) Investment Limited Partnership 614 -
Hong Kong Bora Holdings Limited 472 03
Zhejiang Lheshang Investment Fund Limited Partnership 360 250
ICC Financial Company Limited 13 285
Hubei Province Guarantee Group Co., Lid, 17 316
Guangdong Haomel Aluminum Company Limited 240 238
Other 1.570 £076
Total 10,843 14,379

As at 3] December 2013, the ability of associates and joint ventures to transfer funds to the
Group is not restricted.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

2 Properiy and equipment

Cosd

Asar | Junuary 2005

Additzons

Transfer fromioh investment properiies
Note V21D

Constnaction in progress massfer inf{out)

Deductions

Exchasge differesces

As at 31 December 2015

Aecumulated depreciation
Asat | January 205
Adldstions

Deductsons

Transfer 1o imvedment properties (Note V.21)

Exchange differemoes

Asar 31 December 2003

Allowance for impairment lasses
Asat | January 205

Additsons

Dechuctions

Exchange differesces

Asat 31 December 2005

Ned book value
Asat | January 205

Asat 31 December 2003

Year eaded 31 Docembeer
Exquipment
amid motor  Construcion

Huildings vehichs  in progres Aircrafl Total
M3 62216 26,041 HE308 230,908
446 LN 13,6417 10848 0,637

557 - {3) - 554
AL Blh [10875) 1565 -
(1,543) 2,775 {125) (140310 (13,874}
&0 i 435 41233 B3
12447 66,285 25,100 71303 264,134
{26,189) {1373 - (7.0d3) (17603}
(3015) (7436 - (2,390 (12861}
Ti3 2567 2 1313 5,503

b - - - i)
{194} {2060 - {438 {835}
(25.658) {40 468) (7.555) (83681}
{749 - {245) {202) {1,196}
{244 - - {2E5) 1309

1 4 62 al
{12 (1%

{T68) - (221) 4373 {1426}

67,385 17,843 25816 £, 153 175197

73,02
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

v

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

20 Properiy and equipment ( Continued)

Year ended 31 Docomber
Exquipment
amd motor  Construction
Huildings vehichs  in progres Aircrafl Total

Cosd
Asar ] January 2004 86.5% BT 23040 62064 131388
Additzons L2 6,500 11,096 13153 31006
Transfer fromioh investment properiies

Note V21D 1,257 - 2 - 1,283
Constnaction in progress massfer inf{out) 5.6 431 (7,598} 19113 -
Disposals {Tesd (3,816 {T6) (%851} {14507}
Exchasge differeaces (240} (13 ! 22 (T4}
As al 31 December 2004 323 62116 26,061 F8 30 250,058
Aecumulated depredatisn
Asat | January 2014 {24.067) {40,436 - {660 71213}
[Mepreciation charge (2534) (7592 - (2,340 (12,775}
Disposals %4 370 - 1,540 6,345
Transfer 1o invedment properties (Nowe V.21) b4 - - i
Exchange differcaes k) 4 - (24 17
As ar 31 Decernber 2004 (26,1 RS} {H3T5) (7,043) (77605}
Allowance for impairment loasses
Asat | January 2004 {757} - {245) {2005) (L2}
Irmpasnment losses - (1143 {114}
Disposals i 13 126
Exchasge differeaces il i}
Asat 3] Decemnber 2014 {745 - (245 (202) {1196}
Ned book value
Asaln | Junuary 2014 61,775 18,259 23,798 S5,k | 35,064
Asat 31 December 2004 £7,385 17,843 25216 inISE IT"EIQ’.‘

236

365/504

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Y

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

20 Properiy and equipment ( Continued)

As at 31 December 2013, the net book amount of aireraft owned by BOC Aviation Pre. Ltd.,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Growp, acquired under finance lease arrangements was

EMEBEGSS million (31 December 2014 RMB60 million).

Az at 31 December 2013, the net book amount of aireraft leased out by BOC Aviation Pre.
Lid., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. under operating leases was RMBG62.974
million (31 December 2014 RMBA0O, 721 million).

As at 31 December 2015, the net book amount of aireraft owned by BOC Awviation Pre.
Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, that has been pledged for loan facilities was
RMB41,622 million (31 December 2014 RMB46,602 million) (Mote V.30),

According o the relevant the PRC laws and regulations, afler conversion into a joinl stock
limited liability company, the Bank is required to re-register its property and equipment
under the name of Bank of China Limited. As at 31 December 2013, the process of re-
registration has not been completed. However, this registration process does not affect the
rights of Bank of China Limited to these assets.

The carrving value of buildings is analysed based on the remaining terms of the lecases as
follows:

As al 31 December

2015 2014
Held in Hong Kong
of long-term lease {over 50 yvears) 2916 3,840
on medivm-term lease (10-50 years) £.505 TO78
on short-term lease (less than 10 years) 14 3
Subtotal 11,435 11,821
Held outside Hong Kong
on leng-term leasc {over 50 years) 1,934 2 00
on medium-term lease (10-50 years) 56,269 51,223
on shori-term lease (less than 10 years) 3383 1337
Subtotal 61,586 55 504
Total 73,021 67,385

257
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Y

21

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

Investmeni properiies

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
As an 1 January 18,653 20,271
Addutions 4,263 533
Transfer to property and equipment, net (Note V.20) (581} (1.304)
Deductions (334) (14613
Fair value changes (Note V.4) G0 546
Exchange differences (EleN] 70
As at 31 December 33i28] IEIﬁEE

The Group’s investment properties are located in active real estate markets, and external
nppraisers make reasonable estimation of fair value using markel prices of the same or

similar properties and other related information from the real estate market,

Investment properties are mainly held by BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited (“BOCHE
(Holdings¥") and BOC Group Investment Limited, subsidiaries of the Group. The carrying
value of investment properties held by BOCHE (Holdings) and BOC Group Investrment
Limuted as a1 31 December 2015 amounted 10 RMB2.334 million and RMBI1 1,965 million,
respectively (31 December 2014: RMBE.593 million and RMBE.000 million), The valuation
of these investmenl properties as ol 31 December 2015 were principally performed by either
Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited or Knight Frank Petty Limited based on

open market price and other related information.
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21

22

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

Investment properiies (Continued)

The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based on the remaining terms of the

leases as follows:

Held in Hong Kong
on long-term lease (over 50 years)
on medium-term lease (10-50 years)
on short-term lease (less than 10 years)

Subtotal

Held cutside Hong Kong
on long-term lease {over 50 years)
on medium-term lease (10-50 years)
on short-term lease (less than 10 years)

Subtotal

Total

Oher assels

Interest receivable™

Accounts receivable and prepayments’™
Land use rights™

Intangihle assets™

Long-term deferred expense
Goodwill™

Repossessed assets™

Other

Total

239
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Az at 31 December

is 2014
3,566 3,343
6,504 5011
10,070 9,254
4,700 671
71523 1672
BOR 1056
13,211 9,399
EEiIEi 131&53
As at 31 December
2018 2014
77,354 T6.814
76,706 72220
8,104 £.563
5,750 4,654
2949 3 5006
2,449 1.953
2070 2259
6,118 5,555
181,500 175,554
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo O NOTES TOTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
22 (hher assets (Confinued)

(1) Inierest recedvable

As al 31 December

20E 2004
Financinl investments and financial aswets ol fauir valoe throogh
profil or loks 46,202 35452
Loans and advances o costomers 2480 20043
Due from and placements with and loans (o banke,
other financial insmtwtions and central banks [ 13.40%
Total 77854 '.'{lél-'l

The movements of intereel receivable are as follows:

iy endul I% Deectriice

s 04
As at | Jenoary T6814 62520
Acerued during ihe year 613,255 SO0, 134
Received diring the year B12.715) (587, 145)
Az at 3] December 77354 To.814

(I} Accoans receivable and prepaymenis

As al ."_I Decembeer

ns 014
Accounts receavable and prepaymenis ROSED 74,641
Impairment allowance i 3_.35}_11 1_:’.:I_ZI ]
Nt valpe TH, 706 T2 2

Acconnts recervable and prepayments muunly include ieme in the process of cleanng and settlement. The
analyas of the aging of sccounts receivable and prepayments s as follows:

As at 31 Decembser

2015 2004
Impairment Impairment
Balance ullowanee Balanee albowmnee
Within 1 year 1513 (T3 GG (336)
Fromn 1 year 1o 3 yeans T A436 (1,077 1 0g {4351)
Over 3 years 4,601 (1,834) 4,585 (1,68)
Total BoS60 L3R5 74641 JaZin

240
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Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

22 (hher assets (Confinued)

{3y Land use rights

The camrying valve of land use nghts iz analysed based on the emaining tenms of the leases ag follows:

Held oulside Hopg Kong
on lomg-term lease (over 50 years)
o medimmn- e lease (1050 years)
on short-term lenss {liess than 10 years)

Tatal

4y Inangible assez

Casi

Az at | Januery
Addinons:
Dreductions
Exchange defferences

Asat 3] December

Accumulated amartisalion
Asat | Janoary

Adddinsons

Deductions:

Exchange differences

Az at ] December

Allowanee for impairmeni losses
Asat | Janoary

Addinons

Dreductions

Exchange differences

Mg ot 3] December

Nel boak value
Asat | Janaary

Az mt 3] Decembeér

41
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Arar ) Deconine

2% 014
144 230
6592 1.627
972 06
5104 B563
Year ended 31 December
s 04
AT 7872
2128 1,670
(E5) (64)
a7 |
11,529 BATY
{4 BI5) (31,8030
(1,083 {9656)
B i3
K] (1)
(5874) (4,825)
4,654 3979
5. 750 4,654
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

22 (hher assets (Confinued)

%) Goodwill
Year enied 31 December

ms 2014
Az at | Janoary 1.953 1.982
Additzon through acquisition of sbsidianies £
Decrense resulting from disposal of subsidiories - (36)
Exchange differences B 1 Il‘i ) '-r
Asat 3] December 2440 !E‘:Iﬁ‘!

The goodwill mainly arose [rom the acquiginon of BOC Aviagon Pre. Lol in 2006 amounting 1o USD241
muliion (equivalent o RMB1 564 million ).

16} Repoepessnd asseis

The Group oblained repossessed asets by iaking possession of collaseral held as secunty. Such nepossessed

miwels are aw follows

As al 31 December

25 204
Comimercial propenies 1352 1306
Residennal propenies 533 159
Oiker 832 1534
Subacial a7 3259
Allow ance for im palmment L] (1,000
Repossessed assels, et 2070 1289

The total book value of repossesied asvets disposed of dunng the year ended 31 December 2015 smounted
1o RMBSSD million (29004 RMBS20 millicny. The Group plans to dispose of the repossessed assels held at
31 December 2005 by sucuon, bidding or transfer,
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

23 Impairment allowanee

Deerense
Wiite-ll
As ol annl As st 31
1 Jamusry transfer  Exchange  December
W15 Adilitions Reversal ol alifferences iz
I mpastmen allowaice
Flasemenis with and kxans
0 bagrks and other
lercac i3] instilLHn aom 3 {15 192
Loans amd advanees 10 custosmers 7 188,531 13,37 (47,905 (45,204 1466 it
Fananc wl invesiments
available for zale (Mote V_IE) 0 135 (126) {1,209 aal 6314
held 1o malurity 218 {35 1} 14
— loine ] ieceivables i L161 (S]] - - L7
— Froperty and equipment 1,196 85 - 167} 12 142
— Fepissessad wsels 100 - {200 {174 1] 47
— Ll wse mights 15 - - - - 15
— Adoouns receivible
andl pripayments 2421 1414 (988 143 1l X
— Ciher 1,206 53 {n {35) 44 L4
Todal e 108 (49,744) (46,84%) p 26470
E— T — e — - — — ——
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Y

23

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

Impairment allowance {Continued)

I mpastmen allowaice
Flasemenis with and kxans
0 bagrks and other
lieanc tal instiluons

Loans amd advanees 10 custosmers 7

Fananc wl invesiments
availahle for zabe (Mote V.IE)
held 1o malurity
— loine ] ieceivables
— Fropenty and equipment
— Repisissed wwets
— Ll wse mights
— Adoouns receivible
il prepayments
— (xher

Todal

(1) Incloded within “Write-off and transfer out” on loans and advances to customers afe amoun relating to
loams and advanpces writlen-off, ransfermed oul. necovery of loane and advances watien-off and onwind of

digcount on allowance,

Deerense

Wiite-ll
As ol annl As st 31
1 Jamusry transfer  Exchange  December
Ml Adilitions Reversal ol alifferences bUIE]
195 1 {53 {19 i)
168,049 B0 (37,448) (25,838) {265 155531
1613 761 {184 {40 3 T
246 2% I 28
] - - - {l 2]
1,207 114 - {126 I L1946
1,12 i {94 1107} | 1o
n - - {7 15
110 756 {330 ) I 4
B 882 4 - 1306
180,364 55,754 (38,353 (26.518) (B3l ML
E— e — ——
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

24 Duwe to banks and other financial institutions

Due 1o:
Banks in Chinese mainland
Other financial institutions in Chinese mainland
Banks in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan
and other countries and regions
Other financial institutions in Hong Kong, Macau,
Taiwan and other countries and regions

Total

25 Dae to central banks

Foreign exchange deposits

Cther

Total

26 Government certificates of indebtedness for bank notes izsued and bank notes in

circulation

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited (“BOCHK") and Bank of China Macau Branch are
note issuing banks for Hong Kong Dollar and Macaw Pataca notes in Hong Kong and
Macau, respectively. Under local regulations, these two entities are required to place
deposits with the Hong Rong and Macau governments, respectively to secure the currency

nodes in circulation.

Bank notes in circulation represent the liabilities in respect of Hong Kong Dollar notes
and Macou Pataca notes in circulation, issued respectively by BOCHEK and Bank of China

Macau Branch.

45
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As at 31 December

2015 2014
535200 515,188
1022792 918,510
183,973 261,237
22346 83312
1,764,300 1,780,247
As at 31 December
2015 2014
140,533 142343
255,176 205,828
415,708 348271
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

v

27

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

Placemenis rom banks and other linancial institutions

As at 31 December

2015 2014
Placements from:
Banks in Chinese mainland 271,387 23,606
Other financial institutions in Chinese mainland 107,482 41,561
Banks in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and
other countries and regions 3.1 78,545
Other financial institutions in Hong Kong, Macau,
Taiwan and other countries and regions 15,354 21,528
Total 447 944 225,330

iy Incloded i “Placements from banks and other Fnancial insGistions” are amounts feceived from
coanlerparties under reparchase agreements and collaseral agreements as follows:

As ot 3 December

20158 2014
Repurchase debl secunbies © imdm *"-'i'lﬁ

(i Dbt seconiter used as collateral under nepurchase sgreements were principally government bonds
and were included im the amount daeclosed under Note V 40.7

246
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v

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

28 Due o cusiomers

Al amortised cost
Demand deposits
— Corporate deposits
Personal deposits

Subtotal
Time deposits
Corporate deposiis
- Personal deposiis

Subtotal

“ertificates of deposit
Other deposits

Total due to customers at amortised cost

Al fair value
Structured deposits
— Corporate deposits
— Personal deposits

Total due to customers at fair value ™

Total due to customers

As at 31 December

01E 2014
3.130,624 2,663,173
2002 841 1,847,870
5.223 465 4511043
3,037,783 3,013,812
2.841.372 2,709,995
5.879,155 5723807

230,793 218,576
35,847 54,310
11,389,260 10,567 756
274,799 234,187
65,112 £3,300
339,911 317 487

11,729,171

247

376/504

10,885,223

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

2% Duoe to costomers { Continued)

iy

(k4]

3}

Incladed in other deposits nre special porpose fundings, which represent long-tem fundings provided
in multiple currencies from foreign governments and'or enties in the form of export credit, foreign
government and other substdized credit. These special purpose fundings ame pormally wvsed 1o fnance
propects with a special commercial purpass i the PRC e determined by the foreign governments or entilies
and the Group is obhged 10 repay these fundings when they fall doe.

As at 3] December 2015, the remaining matanty of special purpose fundings ranges from 31 days o 38
years, The interest-beanng special purpose Tundings bear floating amd fixed interest rates ranging from
E15% o 7.92% (3] December 2004: 3153% 1o 792% . These lemms are consisient with those relaled
development loans granted io costomerns,

Due to castomers measared al far valoe ofe stroctured deposits destgnaled o af fur value throagh profil o
Lo at incephion.

There were o significant changes in the Group's credit sk and therefone there were no significant gaies of
losses attributable to changes in the Groop's credil nsk for the sbovementioned stroctured deposite duning
b years ended 31 December 2005 and 2014,

Due to customers incloded margin deposits for secunty received by the Droup as ot 31 December 2005 of
RMB318 385 millon ¢ 31 December 2014: RMB450.746 milion).

243
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

29 Bonds issued

As al 31 Decembaer
Anmizal
Matarity Imderest
Tasue dale dlate i 15 4
Subonlinated bonds sl
2005 BME Dbt Seurilies 18 February 4 March
Secomd Tranche ™ s LIKY] 518% - pILL]
2000 RME Debt Securities & July £ Juky
st Tranche ® X ikt A0 24000 000
20000 RME Dbt Secusities ™ % March 11 Meach
.11 L1k 4.65% 4,950 .03
2000 115 Dhodlar Suboedinated 11 Februsey 11 Februsey
nodiss e by BOCHE Xil H 5.55% 15,921 15192
011 RME Debt Securities = 17 May 15 May
A1 A 530 32000 30
012 BME Debt Secumilaes 1 Novemher 22 November
Farst Tranche ™ X2 pi144 4.7 5000 500
2012 BMB Dbt Securities 27 November 13 Nowember
Sogond Tranche ™ iz v 1] 4.0 18 0y 13000
Subiotad ™ 118,851 130
Tier 2 capital bonds issued
2014 BME Diebt Securities * B Augua 11 August
il ) ity 580 bRl 20068
2014 U8 Diodlar Debrt Socmities ™ 13 Mowember 13 Nowember
X4 R S00% 19,365 15237
Subiotal ™ 49,550 45105
Convertibde bopds sl
2000 BB Comverible Bond ® 2 Juse 2 hue Seepeup
k10 i kel pale - 14907
Other bomds kaed
1S Dol Dett Securities ™ 67,670 0657
RME Debt Securities ™ 20,104 14,587
(it 02 12673 19,261
Sublotal 100,447 305
Inderbank negoishle
certificabes of deposit 1’ 13,205 1,55
Tekal beoids wisnied =V 1100 TR
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Y

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

Bonds issued { Continued)

i

(¥4

[

14}

%)

i)

(7

&

The fixed mie portion of the second ranche of the subordinated bonds issuedd cn 18 Febronry 2005 has a
maturaty of 15 years, wiih a fived conpon rale of 5.18%, pud snnually, The Group has early redeemed all of
ihe bonds at face value on & March 2015,

The fixed rate portion of the first tranche of the subordinated Bonds isved on & July 2006 kas a matarity of
13 years, with a foted conpon raw of 4.00%, paid annsally. The Group has thse opiton 10 early redeem all
of the bonds at foce value on 8 July 2009, IT the Group does not exercise this option, the coupon rate of the
bonds for the remaimng 5-year period shall be the onginal conpon rate plus 3,007%. and shall remain fexed
unizl the matarity dase.

The subordinasted bonds izened on 9 March 2010, have a matrity of 15 years, with a fixed conpon rale of
4.68%, padd annoafly. The Groop bas the oplion o redsem all of the bonds at face valve on 11 Mareh 2020,
If the Group does nol exercise thig option, the conpon rie of the bonds for the third §-year penod shall be
the oniginal conpon rate plua 3006, and shall remain fixed unnl the matonty dake.

The subordinated bonds wsued on 17 May 201 1, have a matanty of 15 years, with a fixed coupon rate of
5.30%. paid annoally, The Groop iz entitled to redeem all the subordinated bonde on the tenth anniversary.
If the Group does nd exercise thie oplion, the coupon mite of the bonds for the remamning 5-year pcnnd
sholl pemain fixed of 530%,

Two subordinaed bonds imwved on 27 NMovember 2012 1n the domestic interbank bond marker. The first
sobordinaled bond has & matarty of 10 years, with & fixed coupon mbe of 4.70%, pad annaally. The
Groop e entithed 1o redeem these bonds on the fifth anniversary, If the Groop does noed exercise this oplion,
the coupon rate of the bonds for the remaining 3-year penod shall eman fixed o 4, 70%. The second
subordinated bond has o matunity of 15 years, with a fixed conpon rate of 4.9%7%, pad anneally. The Group
15 entitled 10 redeem all these bonids on the tenth anmaversary, I the Group does not exercise (thie option, the
coupon mte of the bonds for the remadming 5-year period shall remain fixed af 4.99%.

Pursaant 1o the approval by ibe CBRC and ihe PEOC, the Groop issued der 2 capital bonds in an amount of
RMEB30 ballson un the domestic interbank bond marked on 8 Auvgost 2004, The bomds have a matunty of 10
years, with @ fixed coupon rate of 5.80%. The Group i entided 1o redeem the bomts a1 the énd of the flth

year,

Pursuant to the approval by the CERC, the PBOC and the Namonal Development and Reform Commisnion,
the Growp isrued tier 2 capital bonde in an ameunt of USDA kdllion in offshore markets on 13 November
2014, The bonds have o matonty of 10 years, with o fixed coopon mte of 5.005%.

Subordinated bonds and ter 2 capital bonds ase subosdinated eo all other clams on the assets of the Group,
excepl those of the equty halders.

230
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

29 Bonds issued (Continued )

Ll

110y

(R}

112}

13y

(EY]

Pursoant o the approval by nelevant PRC amhonitses, the Bank assued A-share convertible bonds with o
total prncipal amount of RME40 billion on 2 Joe 2000, Upon satisfacdon for the first tme of condibonal
redempion provisions of the Converdble Bonds sccordimg 1o the Prospecing of Baak of Chira Lisdted
or Prblic Offering of A-Share Corvertible Corporale Bords, and with the approval of the CBRC. ithe
Bank redeemied all of the Convertible Bonds regietered after the close of the market om 6 March 2005 {the
redemption record date). The Convertible Bonds were delssied from Shanghai Steck Exchange as of 13
March 20135,

The movements of linbility component of convertible bonds are as folleows:

Year emled 31 December

2015 2014
Asat | Janoary 14917 38AT
Aceretion iz ai5
Amoants converted to shares ¥ (14,923 (24,595)
Redemption 126) -
As at 3] December = 14,907

{1p  Convertsble bonds with a pnecipal amount of RMBI4B20428 000 (2014: RMBE24, 540,517,000
were converied indo 3,696,642, 24] shares (20014; 9 366 595 565 shanes) Wl‘l.lrurj.' A shames during the
year ended 31 December 2015(Note ¥V 37,11

LIS Dollar Dbt Secunities ane izsued in Hong Kong snd Eorope berween 2511 and 20015 by the Group,
which due dates ranges from 2006 4o 2025,

RMB Dbt Securities are issoed in Hong Kong, Eurepe and other Asia-Pacific regione between 1002 and
2015 by the Groap, which die dotes ranges [rom 3016 1o 2030

Other Debt Securities excluding BEMB and US dollar are issued in Hong Kong, Burope, Africa and other
Ama-Pacific regions between 2003 and 2015 by the Groop. The dese dates ranges from 2016 o 2623,

The RME interbank pegonable certificases of deposit issued by the Groop in 20014 matused in 2005, Feo
the year ended 31 December 2013, the Groop ssved 13 ranches of RMB interbank negonable certficanes
of deposit a1 discount in the domestic mterbank bond market, with face valoe of RMBI0D per certificate of
deposit, The owsianding balance aw 0t 31 December 200 5 was RME13,295 mullion, which matares in 2016,

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group did not defoall on any principal. inderest or
redemplion smounts with respect 1o iis bonds issmed.

2al
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v

20

31

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATEDR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Chher borrowings

These other borrowings relate to the financing of the aircraft leasing business of BOC
Aviation Pre, Lid., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. These other horrowings are
secured by ils aircrafl (Note V. 207,

As at 31 December 2015, these other borrowings had a maturity ranging from 11 days to 11
vears and bore floating and fixed interest rates ranging from 0.36% to 2.45% (31 December

200 4: 0,230 1o 2.74%),

During the yvears ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group did not default on any
principal, interest of redemption amounts with respect to its other borrowings.

Current tax liabilities

As al 31 December

2015 2014
Corporate Income Tax 31363 34858
Business Tax 5,996 6,176
City Construction and Maintenance Tax 395 430
Education Surcharges 202 kL
Yalue-added Tax and ather [264) (134
Total 37982 41,636
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Y

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

32 Retirement benefit obligations

As at 31 December 2015, the actuwarial liabilities existing in refation to the retirement benefit
ohligations for emplovees who retired prior to 31 December 2003 and the carly retirement
obligations for emplovees who carly retired were RMB2.635 million (31 December 2014
EMB2 575 million) and BEMBL.G20 million (31 December 2014 RMBEIS91 million)
respectively, using the projected unit eredit method.

The movements of the net liabilities recognised in the statements of financial position are as
follows:

Year ended 31 December

Pl B 2014
As at 1 January 4,566 4815
Interest cost 150 2N
Met actuarial loss recognised in the year 3 317
Renefits paid (674 (7671
As at 31 December 4,255 4,566

Primary assumptions used:

As ul 31 December

2015 2014
Discount rate
— Maormal retiree 2.83% 3.64%
— Early retiree 2600 3415
Pension benefit inflation rate
— Normal retiree 6. 054 0% 6.0 -4 05
— Early retiree 2004 00 806 -4 0%
Medical bepefit inflation rate £.0% £.0%
Retiring age
— Male &0 il
- Female 30035 0455

Assumptions regarding [uture mortality experience are based on the China Life Insurance
Mortality Table {published historical statistics in China).

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, there was oo significant change in employee retirement
benefit obligations that was attributable to changes in actuarial assumptions.

253
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Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( Continued)
33 Share appreciation rights plan

In Movember 2003, the Bank's Board of Directors and equity holders approved and adopted
a Share Appreciation Rights Flan under which eligible participants including directors,
supervisors, management and other personnel designated by the Board, will be granted share
apprecistion rights. up ta 25% of which will be exercisable each year beginning on the third
anniversary date from the date of grant. The share appreciation rights will be valid for seven
vears from the date of grant. Eligible participants will be entitled to receive an amount equal
to the difference, if any, between the average closing market price of the Bank's H shares in
the ten days prior to the date of grant and the average closing market price of the Bank's H
shares in the 12 months prior to the date of exercise as adjusted for any change in the Bank's
equity, The plan provides cash-settled share-based payment only and accordingly, no shares
will be issued under the share appreciation rights plan.

Mo share appreciation rights were granted since the inception of the plan.

34 Deferred income taxes

3d4.1 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offsel current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes

are related to the same [scal authorty, The table below includes the deferred income tax
azsets and liabilities of the Group after offsetting qualifying amounts and related temporary

differences.

Asat 31 December

15 I E
Deferred Deferred
Temporary  tax assets! Temporary  lax assets/
difference  iliahilities)  difference  (liahilities)

Dreferred income tax wesels 81,700 22246 93,280 25063
Deeferred income tax lisbilities (22,035) 4.291)  (23574) (4,28T)
Net 50,665 17,955 60.71% 20,756

254
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Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( Continued)
34 Delerred income taxes { Continued )

342 Deferred income tax assetsfliahilities and related temporary differences, hefore offsetting
qualifying amounts, are attributable 1o the following items:

Asal 31 December
2015 I

Deferred Beferred
Temporary  lox assels/  Temporary  tax assets
difference  (lishilities)  dilference  (linhilities)

Deferred income tax asseis

Astel impairment allowances 121,017 3,437 116,577 20,242
Pension, retirement benefils
and salary pavable 19,125 4,781 20305 3076

Fair value changes of financial instruments

at Farr valwe through profit or loss and

derivative Nnancial instruments 21946 6,922 18,981 4,743
Fair value changes of available for sale

investment securities credited o

other comprehensive income 1,629 200 202 53
Chiver temporary differences 12,493 2329 4,252 1,007
Subtotal 182,210 44,759 160,317 40,123

Deferred income tax liabilitics
Fair value changes of financial instruments

at Faar value through profil or loss and

derivative Mnancial instruments {37.615) (5.404) (22.709) (5.677)
Fair value changes of available for sale

mvestment securities charged to

other comprehensive mcome {20.402) {5,045) (9870 (2,262}
Deepreciation of property and equipment {14.917) (2,375) {11,880 (20:41)
Revaluation of property and

investment propertics {10447y (2 (48) (10.824) (2,109
Orther temporary differences (39,164 (1.732) (35,3000 (7.278)
Subtotal (122545)  (268M) (906020  (1936T)
Net 50,663 17,955 69,715 20,756

Az ot 31 December 2015, deferred tax liabilitics relating to temporary differences of
BEMBET0,336 million associoted with the Group’s investments in subsidiaries have not been
recognised (31 December 2014: RMBS3,296 million). Refer to Note [1.22.2.
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Vo ONOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
34 Deferred income faxes | Conlinued)

4.3 The movements of the deferred income tax account are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

218 2014
As at 1 January 20,756 19,543
Creditedf(charged) to the income statement {Note ¥V.9) (7 4,579
Creditedf(charged) to other comprehensive income (2,546) (3,497
Orther (178) 131
As at 31 December 17,955 20,756

4.4 The deferred income tax crediticharge in the income staement comprises the following
temporary differences:

Year ended 31 December

2018 2014

Assel impairment allowances 1.195 6,281
Fair value changes of financial instruments at fair

value through profit or loss and derivative

financial instruments {1.330) (233)
Pension, retirement benefits and salary payable (205 (215
Oither temporary differences 573 (1.232)
Total (771 4,579
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Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( Continued)
35 Asseils and liabilities held for sale

In 2015, the MOF has in principle approved the hank for the undertaking of the disposal
of 1009 interest in Nanvang Commercial Bank held by BOCHK, a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of BOCHE (Holdings), BOCHK entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement
with Cinda Financial Holdings Co., Limited (“Cinda Financial”) {as buyer) and China Cinda
(HE) Holdings Company Limited (as buyer's guarantor) in relation to the proposed sale
and purchase of all the issued shares of Manyang Commercial Bank. The bank classifies
the assets group of all the assets and habilities of Nanyang Commercial Bank as assets and
liabilities held for sale.

The major classes of assets held for sale and liabilities classified as held for sale as at 31
December 2015 are as follows:

Az al
31 December 2013

Assets held for sale

Cash and due from banks and other financial institutions 13,679
Balances with central banks 13433
Placements with and loans 1o banks and other financial institutions 18,214
Loans and advances to customers, net 138,292
Financial investments 44,267
Other asseis 10,052
Total 237937

Linbilities classified as held for sale

Due 1o banks and other Nnancial institutions 3,118
Placements from banks and other financial institutions 2522
Due to customers 154,857
Oiher Liabilities 6,253
Total 196,850

—

Cumulative income recognised in other comprehensive income

LEv )
Lo ]
o

relating to assets held for sale

257
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Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

36 Ovher liabilities
As al 31 December

2015 2014
Interest payable 'V 174,256 163,228
Insurance liabilities
— Life insurance contracts T2 RET 58218
— Maon-life insurance coniracts £.242 8,275
Items in the process of ¢learance and settlement 37,193 35029
Salary and welfare payvables ' 26,711 26,158
Deferred Income 7,009 8104
Short position in debt securities 7.012 1224
Pravision 3362 2616
Placements from banks and other financial institutions
at fair value ™ 1.617 5776
Onther ™ 45410 37,053
Tetal 383,768 332561

1y Interest payable

As ot 31 December

2015 i

Due 1o castomsers 155652 141,708
Do 1o aimd placemenis from banks

and other hinancal instilobone 1 1.0 15 441

Bonde issned and oiber 71505 & 0TS

Tatal 174.256 163,228

foe——

The mevements of intercst payable are & follows:

Year emled 31 Decomber

2015 2004

Asat | Janoary 163,228 132 082
Accroed during the year IR 206 281578
Pand durimg the vear {278 ATR) {250, 407)
Az at 3] December 174356 163,228
S ———— —————

258
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Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

36 Ovher Liabilities (Continued )

(k4

Salary and welfare payshles

Salary, bonss and subsidy
StafT welfame
Social insurance. incloding:

Medical
Pension
Aannuity

Unemployment
Injary at work
Masemily insurance
Howsing fomds
Labour nmon fee and
st T education fee
Reimbursement for cancellanon
of labour contract

Chiber

Total ©

Sulary, bonus and subsidy
Staff welfare
Social insotande, pssluding:

Medical
Pepgion
Annmiiy

Unemploynient
Injory at work
Matermity insurance
Housing funds
Labowr umion fee nnd
st [ edocation fee
Rermmbursemean for cancellalon
of labour ¢onlmact

Chiber

Total ™

{1y

There was o overdoe payment for staff salory and welfare payables az at 31 December 2005 and

014,

As al Asal
1 January 11 December
2018 Accrual Paymeni 2018
22,147 54462 (5 3 2986
2919 {2.919)

k) 3280 {3.089) RER
[ES] 6587 {6.563) 158
4 2060 (2062} 22
7 413 413 T
| 163 {163} I
2 223 (223 |
an 5428 15.408) 50
1E63 1911 {1.407) 3369
12 7 (G} I3

235 24669 (26253 2
26,158 B0,122 [T9.569) 26,711
Asal Asal
1 January 31 December
04 Acerual Paymenit 204
21666 53857 (33.376) 32,0147

2443 12443)

Gl 1051 {1901} 697
114 6,272 {6,252 134
| 1862 {1,839) 3
4 447 1444 ) T
1 157 {157) |
2 201 (200 2
3 45978 (4581 1]
2315 1925 {1375) 2865
12 i} (20 12
167 1453 125835, 2390
24,529 TT.601 (76,372 26,158
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Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

36 Ovher Liabilities (Continued )

i3y Provigon

Allowance For litigation losses (Moie V.40,1)
ber

Total

The movenent of the provigion was as follows;

Az at | Janoary
Provision for the year, nel
Uitdieed duning ihe year

Az at 3] Docember

As al 31 December

2015 2004
8ol 06

2502 2,00

62 2616

Year ended 31 Decembier

i) 2014

2006 2,139
807 624
1610 (147h

3462 2616

(4)  Placements from banks anid other financial mstiutions at fair valse

Certain financial Babilities related 10 placements from banks and other financial instituions have been
mabched with denvatives as pant of & docamented nsk manageneen snlegy 10 miligae morkel nsk. By
designoting these financinl linhilities o foar valoe throogh profit or losg, the movement in thear fur valoes 1=
recorded i tbe income saement. Az a1 31 December 2015, the fadr valwe of the financial lrabilides related
o placements from banks and other fimancial instimtions was approximately the sane s the amoant that
the Group would be comracually required to pay 1o the holders. There were no sgnificant changes in the
Girowp's credit sk and therefore the amounts of changes in far valoe of the abovementioned placements
from banks and other financial inetiteieons that wene ainbutable to changes in credin risk wene considensd
nol significant duning the years ended 31 December 2615 and 2004,
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Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

36 Ovher Liabilities (Continued )
%y Diher

Oiber inclmdes finance lease payments which age principally rebased 1o atrcraft held by BOOC Avianon Pre.
Lad. under finance bease

Az al 31 Decomber

2015 2004
Within 1 year (inclosave ) 5 G4
1 year to 2 yeass {(inclasive) 75 G
2 years 1o 3 years (inclonve) 226 G4
Over 3 years 178 375
Total miminuism rental payvments 554 581
Unrecogmsed finance charge 153) (34}
Finance lense payments, mel 501 527

37 Share capital, capital reserve, treasury sharves and other equity instruments
371 Share capital

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the movements of the Bank's share capital were as

follows:
LUimit: Share
Domestic listed  Owverseas listed
A shares, H shares,
par value par value
RMELOG RMELGM
per share per share Total
Az at 1 January 20135 205,108 871,605 B3622.276.305 DS T3, 148,000
Increase as a result of conversion
of convertible bonds (Note V.29) 5,656.643,241 - 3.056,643.241
Az at 31 December 2015 200, T05514.846 3622076305 204 38T 791240

All A and H shares rank par passu with the same rights and benefits.
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Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

37 Share capital, capital reserve, treasury  shares and  other  equity  instromenis

(Continued)
J7.2 Capital reserve

As ol 31 December

2015 2014
Share premium 139,921 128,048
Other capital reserve 177 1,244
Total 140,008 130,797

37.3 Treasury shares

A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group holds certain listed shares of the Bank in relation
to its derivative and arbitrage business. These shares are trealed as treasury shares, a
deduction from equity holders’ equity, Gains and losses on sale or redemption of the
ireasury shares are credited or charged 1o equity. The total aumber of reasury shares as at 31
December 2015 was approximately 2069 million (31 December 2014: approximately 7.22
millien).
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Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

37 Share capital, capital reserve, treasury  shares and  other  equity  instromenis

{Continued

7.4 thlrer equity instrmments

For the vear ended 31 December 2015, the movements of the Bank's other equity
instruments were as follows:

Asal Asal
1 January 2015 I e remse e rease 3 December X015
Quantily Quuntity Quantity Quantity

imillion Carrying (million Carrying (million Carrying {million Carrying
shares)  amount  shares)  amounl  shares) amownt  sharesy  amouni

Prelerence

Shares
204 Ofishore

Preference

Sheres 399.4 39,782 - - - - 3994 39,782
204 Domestie

Preference

Shares @ 3200 0 31963 - - - = 3200 31563
2015 Domesiie

Preference

Shares™ - 2800 27069 2800 17969
Total 7194 T1.745 28000 27.969 - - 9994 99,714
(1} Purswani o the approvale by the relevant authorities in Chana. the Bank issued the US Dollar setiled non-

cumidative CHifshore Preference Shares in the aggregate par valee of RMB39.94 billicn on 23 October
2014. Each Oifehore Preference Share las a par valve of RME 100 and 35994 mullien Offshone Prefesence
Shoger were issued in total, The initial annual dividend rate is 6.75% and is subsequently subjpect to reset per
agreement, but in po case shall excesd 18,075, Dividends are calculated on the basis of KMB bat paid oat
i LS Dwollars per a fixed exchange rate.

The COffshore Preference Shares have no matunty date. However, subject to the sansfacton of rhe
redempuon conditions and having obtained the pnor approval of the CBRC. all or part of the (MTelwore
Preference Shanes may be redecmed at the discretion of the Bank on 23 October 2019 or on any dividend
payment dabe thereafier st the redempuion price which iz the suan of the par valwe of the Offshore Prefetence
Sheares and the dividends declared bor not yet distmbusted, a2 caleulated on the basiz of RMB bot paid out in
115 Dollars per a fixed exchange mbe,
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Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

37 Share capital, capital reserve, treasury  shares and  other  equity  instromenis

{Continued

J7d thlrer equeity instraments (Comtinged )

(2} Purswanl o the approvale by relevant anthonties in China, the Bank jssned 6.0% non-c emnlative Doinestic
Preference Shares on 21 November 2004, in the aggregate par valoe of RMB3I ballion. Each Domesiic
Preference Shase has a par valoe of RME 10 and 2 total number of 320 million Domesic Preference Shanes
e aesed]

The Domestc Preference Shares have no matority dase, However, subject to the satsfaction of the
redemmption condinons and having obtained the prior approval of the CBRC, the Bank may redeem afl or
pan of the Domestic Preference Shares on 21 November 2019 or any dividend payment date thereafier of
its choosing at the redempiion prce which 18 the sum of the par valve of the Domestic Preference Share and
the dividends declared but not yet dismbuied

i3y Pursnant 1o the approvals by rebevant sathonitics in China, the Bank isued 5.5% non-comnlative Domestic
Preferemce Shares on I3 March 2015, in the aggregate par valoe of BMB28 hllion, Exch Domestic
Preference Shore hos a par valoe of BMEB I and o total rumber of 280 muillion Domestic Preference Shames
were dssned.

The Domestic Preference Shares have no maiunty dase, Howewver, subject 1o the satefaction of the
redemption condions amd having obtained the prior approval of the CBRC, the Bank may medeem all or
pan of the Domestic Preference Shares on 13 March 2020 or any dvidend paymeni date thereafter of itz
choosing at the redemption price which is the sum of the par value of the Domestc Prefenence Share and
ithe dividends declared but not yet distnbuied

Save for such dividend at the agreed dividend payout ratio, the holders of the abowve
preference shares shall not be entitled to share in the distribution of the remaining profits
of the Bank together with the helders of the ordinary shares. The dividends on preference
shares are non-cumulative. The Bank shall be cntitled to cancel any dividend on the
preference shares, and such cancellation shall not be decmed a default. However, the
Bank shall not distribute profits to the holders of ordinary shares until resumption of full
payment of dividends on the preference shares, Upon the cccurrence of a trigger event for
the compulsery conversion of preference shares imto ordinary shares per agreement, the
Bank shall report to the CBRC for review and determination and the Bank will convert the
preference shares into ordinary shares in whole or in part,

Capital raised from the issuance of the above preference shares, after deduction of

transaction costs, was wholly used to replenish the Bank's additional tier | capital and o
increase its capital adequacy ratio.

393/504



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn

BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( Continued)
3% Statutory reserves, general and regulatory reserves and undistributed profits
J8.1 Statutory reserves

Under relevant PRC laws, the Bank is required to transfer 109% of its net profit to a non-
distributable statutory surplus reserves. Appropriation to the statutory surplus reserves may
cease when the balance of such reserves has reached 309 of the share capital. Subject to the
approval of the equity holders, the statutory surplus reserves can be used for replenishing
the accumulated losses or increasing the Bank's share capital. The statutory surplus reserves
amount used to increase the share capital is limited to a level where the balance of the
statutory surplus reserves after such capitalisation is not less than 25% of the share capital.

In sccordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors dated 30 March 2016, the Bank
appropriated 10% of the net profit for the yvear ended 31 December 2015 to the statutory
surplus reserves, amounting to RMB15 220 mullion (2014: RMB15.628 nullion).

In addition, some operations in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and other countries and regions
are required to transfer certain percentages of their net profits to the stalwory surplus
reserves as stipulated by local banking authorities.

I8, 2 General and regulatory reserves

Purspant to Caijin [2012] No. 20 Requirentenmts on Impairment Allowance for Financial
Institutions (“Requirement”), issued by the MOF, in addition to the impairment allowance,
the Bank establishes a general reserve within the equity holders’ equity through the
appropriation of profit 10 address unidentified potential impairment losses, The general
reserve as a distribution of profits, is parl of the owner’s rights and interests, should not be
les= than 1.5% of the aggrepate amount of risk assets as defined by the Requirement, and the
minimum threshold can be accumulated over a period of no more than five years.

In accordance with a resolution dated 30 March 2016 and on the basis of the Bank’s profit
for the vear ended 31 December 2015, the Board of Dircctors of the Bank approved the
appropriation of RMBI9.005 million (2014: RMBI14,177T million) to the general reserve for
the year ended 31 December 2015,

The regulatory reserve mainly refers to the reserve amount set aside by BOC Hong Kong
(Group) Limited (“BOCHE Group™), a subsidiary of the Group, for general banking risks,
imcluding future losses or other unforeseeable risks. As at 31 December 2015 and 2014,
the reserve amounts set aside by BOCHEK Group was RMBG.651 million and RMBG, 190
million. respectively.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

38 Statutory reserves, general and  regulatory  reserves and  undistributed  profiis
{Continued

J8.3 Dividendy
Dividends for Ordinary Shares

An ordinary share dividend of EMB55.%33 million in respect of the profit for the vear cnded
31 December 2014 was approved by the equity holders of the Bank at the Annual General
Meeting held on 17 June 2305 and was distributed during the vear.

An ordinary share dividend of RMBO.175 per share in respect of profit for the vear ended 31
December 2015 (2014: RMBO.19 per share), amounting o a total dividend of RMBS1 518
million based on the number of shares issued as at 31 December 2015 will be proposed for
approval at the Annual General Mecting to be held on 7 June 2016, The dividend payable is
not reflected in liahilities of the financial statements.

Dividends for Preference Shares

The dividend distribution of Offshore Preference Shares and Domestic Preference Shares
{First Tranche), amounting to RMB5.012 million in total was approved by the Board of
Directors of the Bank at the Board Meeting held on 28 August 2015 and was distributed
during the year.

The dividend distribution of Domestic Preference Shares (Second Tranche) was approved
by the Board of Directors of the Bank at the Board meeting held on 19 January 2016,
The annual dividend rate is 3.5% for the Domestic Preference Shares (Second Tranche)
amounting to BMB1.540 million in total and the dividend was paid on 14 March 2016, The
dividend payable is not reflected in liabilities of the financial siatements.

39 Non-controlling interests

MNon-controlling interests of the subsidiaries of the Group are as follows:

As ot 31 December

) 3 2014
BOC Hong Kong (Group) Limited 45,530 30077
Tai Fung Bank Limited 4,658 233
Other 2462 1,189
Total 52,639 42,569
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

40 Contingent liabilifies and commitments

4.1 Legal proceedings and arbitrations

As at 31 December 2015, the Group was involved 1n certain litigation and arbitration cases
in the regular course of its business. In addition, in terms of the range and scale of its
international operations, the Group may face a variety of legal proceedings within different
jurisdictions, including issues related 1o anti-money laundering. As at 31 December 2015,
provisions of RMBEG0 million (31 December 2014 RMBG06 million) were made based on
court judgements or the advice of counsel (Note ¥V .36). After consulting legal professionals,
senior management of the Growp believes that at the current stage these legal proceedings
and arbitrations will not have a material impact on the financial position or operations of the
Giroup.

.2 Assets pledged

Assets pledged by the Group as collateral for placement, repurchase, short positions,
derivative transactions with other banks and financial institutions and for local statutory
requirements are sel forth in the table below. These transactions are conducted under
standard and normal business terms.

As at 31 December

215 2014
[eht securities 325,025 1260405
Bills 2052 3,227
Total 327.077 130,222

4.3 Collateral accepied

The Group accepts securitics collateral that are permitted to sell or re-pledge in connection
with reverse repurchase and derivatives agreements with banks and other (financial
institutions. As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of collateral received from banks and
other financial institutions accepled by the Group amounted o RMB24.094 million (31
December 2004: RMEBG.650 million). As st 3] December 2015, the Group had not sold
or re-pledged such collateral accepted which the Group had an obligation to return (31
December 2004: RME1L1 million). These transactions are conducted under standard terms in
the normal course of business,
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Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)
40 Contingent liabilities and commitments {Continued )

.4 Capital commitiments

As atl 31 December

21E 2014

Property and equipment

Contracted but not provided for 64,482 57149

Authorised but not contracted for 2652 37,305
Intangible assets

Contracted but not provided for m 712

Authorised but not contracted for 23 28
Investment properties

Contracted bt not provided for 148 1816

Authorised but not contracted for - 232
Tetal 68,036 Q1032

4.5 Operating leases
(f) Operating leaze conmitnients — As lessee

[Tnder irrevocable operating lease contracts, the future minimum lease payments that should
he paid by the Group are summarised as follows:

Asatl 31 December

s 014
Within | year 6,313 3,852
Between 1 and 2 vears 4 564 4,706
Between 2 and 3 years 3,675 3,591
Ower 3 years 74598 7047
Total 22,350 22006

268
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40

4.5

(2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)
Contingeni liabilities and commitments { Coniinued)

Operating leases (Comtinued)

Operating lease conmitments — As lessor

The Group acts as lessor in operating leases principally through aircraft leasing undertaken
by its subsidiary BOC Aviation Pte. Ltd. Under irrevecable operating lease contracts, as
at 31 December 2015, the minimum lease payments which will be received by the Group
under the operating leases for existing amreraft and aircraft yet to be delivered amounted
to RMBT.001 million not later than one wear (31 December 2014: RMB&.213 million).
EME3I0,115 million later than one year and not later than five years (31 December 2014
EMB27.043 million) and EMB30,220 million later than five years (31 December 2014:
EMEBZ2E,134 million).

Treasury bonds redemption commitnents

The Bank is entrusted by the MOF to underwrite certain Treasury bonds. The investors of
these Treasury bonds have a right to redeem the bonds at any time prior to maturity and the
Bank is committed to redeem these Treasury bonds. The MOF will not provide funding for
the early redemption of these Treasury bonds on a back-to-back basis bul will pay imtenest
and repay the principal at maturity. The redemption price is the principal value of the bonds
plus unpaid interest in accordance with the early redemption arrangement.

As at 31 December 2015, the outstanding principal value of the Treasury bonds sold by the
Bank under obligamion to redeem prior to maturity amounted to RMB44,698 million (31
December 2014: EMB37.810 million). The original maturities of these Treasury bonds vary
from 3 10 5 vears and management expects the amount of redemption before the matrity
dates of these bonds through the Bank will net be matenial.
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Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

40 Contingent liabilities and commitments {Continued )

407 Credit commitinenis

As atl 31 December

21E 2014

Loan commitments
with an original maturity of less than 1 year HE.620 82431
with an original maturity of 1 year or over Td4,650 33,338
Leners of guarantee issued & 1077070 L 148 535
Undrawn credit card limits 558,141 479 685
Bank bill acceptance 386,725 454,243
Accepted bill of exchange under letters of credit 169,876 248,158
Letters of credit issued 121,720 145 503
Oiher 63,322 68228
Total 3,210,033 3,290,211

iy

i3

Loan commitments represent undrwn loan facihides agreed and granted o costomere. Unconditionally
revocable loan commuitments are nof included in logn commitments, As & 31 December 2015, the
upcondiionally revocable loan commitmenis of the Groop amoeunted to EMB313, 03] milion (3] December
2014: RMBI5E, 134 moillson).

Leteers of goaramlee ssved mainly inclede financial goaraniees and perfommance guorantees. Thess
obligations on tke Group to make payment are dependent on the oaicoms of a fabure event.

Risk-weighted aseets for credit nsk of credil commimmenis

The msk-weighied assets for credit nisk of ithe Growp were calcnlaied in accordance with ihe Capiial Kules
for Commercial Banks { Provisional] and other relevant regulations promulgaied by the CBRC under the
wilvanced capital messarement approaches. The mmounts are determined by the creditworthiness of the
counterpartics, the matunty chamctenstics of each type of contract and other factors

Az al 3 December

015 M4
Credil conmmatinents 145835 1,293,082
| %

270
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Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

40 Contingent liabilities and commitments {Continued )

4.8 Underwriting obligations

As at 31 December 2015, there was no firm commitment in underwriting securities of the

Group (31 December 2004: Nil).

41  Note to the consolidated statement of cash MAows

Faor the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
comprise the following balances with an original maturity of less than three months:

As at 31 December

201E

Cash and due from banks and other financial institutions 217,599

Balances with central banks 586,733
Placements with and loans to banks and

other Ninancial institutions 185,606

Short term bills and notes 62,140

Total 1.052,078

204

342,087
556,498

195094
54472

1,148,151

42 Related party transactions

42.1 CIC was established on 29 September 2007 with registered capital of RMBEI1 550
billicn, CIC is a wholly State-owned company engaging in foreign currency investment
management, The Group iz subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC

government through CIC and 1ts wholly owned subsidiary, Huijin.

The Group enters into banking transactions with CIC in the normal course of its business at

commercial terms.

271
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)
42 Relaied party transactions (Continued)

42.2 Transactions with Huifin and companies under Huijin

(1) General infonnarion of Hujin

Central Huijin Investment Ld.

l.egal representative DING Xuedong

Registered capital EMBE2E,20% million

Location of registration Betjing

Capital shares in the Bank 6 (025

Voting rights in the Bank 64025

Nature Whally State-owned company

Principal activities Investment in major State-owned financial

institutions on behalf of the State Council;
other related businesses approved
by the State Council,

Mational organisation code TI93290-1

(2} Transactions with Huijin

The Group enters inte banking transactions with Huijin in the normal course of its business
atl commercial terms.

e to Huijin

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014

As at 1 January 26,442 35,001
Received during the year 75,811 38 040
Repaid during the vear (84.309) (47 4993
As at 31 December 17,944 26442
— —

401/504



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Y

42

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

Related party transactions ( Continued )

42.2 Transactions with Huifin and companies under Huijin (Conting ed)

(2

i3

Transactions with Heijin ( Contingied}
Bonds issued by Huijin

As at 31 December 2015, the Group held government backed bonds issued by Huijin in the
carrying value of RMB6.471 million (31 December 2014: RMB5.5331 million) which were
classified as held to maturity and available for sale. These bonds have maturity of not more
than 30 vears and bear fixed interest rates, payable annually. Purchasing of these bonds was
ifi the ordinary course of business of the Group, complying with requirements of related
regulations and corporate governance.

Tranzactions with companies under Fuijin

Companies under Huijin include its equity interests in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates in certain other bank and non-bank entities in the PRC. The Group enters into
banking transactions with these companies in the normal course of business al commercial
terms which include mainly purchase and sale of debt securities, moaey mackel transactions
and derivative transactions.

The Group's outstanding balances and related interest rate ranges with these companies were
as follows:

Asatl 31 December

015 2014

[ue from banks and other financial institutions 35,668 59,807
Placements with and loans 1o banks and

other financial institutions 122,169 58583
Financial assets at fair valee through profit or loss

and financial investments 389,968 284,151
Derivative Ninancial assets 2,542 EE I
Loans and advances to customers 10,533 11,192
Due to banks and other financial institutions (209 (K8 (273,147
Placements from banks and

other financial institutions (205 4000 (22,4700
Derivative financial Labilities (2,631) (707
Due 1 customers (14,182)
Credit commitments 2,033 2044

3
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Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

42 Related pariy transactions (Confinued)

42.2 Transactions with Huifin and companies under Huijin (Conting ed)

(2} Tramsactions with companies uader Huigm ( Continned)

Interest rate ranges
Due from banks and other financial institutions
Placements with and loans to banks and

As at 31 December

2018

000%-5.70%:

2014

LO0%-8.20%

other financial institutions 000%-620% O.045%-6_80%
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

and financial investments 000406 38% (L54%-8.400%
Loans and advances to customers LO6%-0.40%  0.7T%-T.28%
Due 1o banks and other financial institutions 00%-6.25% 0.00%-6.51%
Placements ffom banks and

other financial institutions 0,00%-9.50% 0.10%-8.80%

Due to customers

EDINETOOOO
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42,3 Transactions with govermment authorities, agencies, affiliates and otler State-controlled
enfities

The State Council of the PRC government directly and indirectly controls a significant
number of entities through its government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other State-
conteolled entities. The Group enters into extensive banking transactions with these entities
it the normal course of business al commercial terms.

Tranzactions conducted with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other State-
controlled entities include purchase and redemption of investment securities issued by
government ageacies. underwriting and distribution of Treasury bonds issued by government
agencies through the Group's branch network, foreign exchange transactions and derivative
transactions, leading, provision of credit and guarantees and deposit placing and taking.

274
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Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( Continued)

42 Relaied pariy transactions {Continued)

2.4 Transactions with associates and foint ventires
The Group enters into banking transactions with associates and joint ventures in the normal
course of business m commercial terms, These include loans and advances, deposit taking
and other normal banking businesses. The main outstanding balances with associates and

jaint ventures are stated below:

As at 31 December

215 2014

Loans and advances to customers 593 714

Due 1o customers, banks and other financial institutions (8.975) (K8
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss and financial investments 120

Credit commitments 2261 1 306

275
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Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( Continued)

42 Related pariy transactions (Confinued)

42.5 Transactions with the Annuity Plan
Apart from the obligations for defined contributions 1o Annuity Fund and normal banking
transactions, no other transactions were conducted between the Group and the Annuity Fund
for the vears ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,

42.6 Travsaciions with key management personnel
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning. directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
iticluding Directors and Executive Officers.
The Group enters into banking transactions with key management personnel in the normal
course¢ of business. During the vears ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, there were no

material transactions and halances with key management personnel on an individual basis.

The key management compensation for the vears ended 31 Decomber 2015 and 2014

COMPrises:
Year ended 31 December
2015 2014
Compensation for short-term emplovment benefits © 10 27
Compensation for post-employment benefiis 1 1

Total 11 28

1y The total compensation package Tor these bey management personnel for the year ended 31 December 2015
has not yet been firalised in accordance with regalations of the PRC relevant aothontes, The amoam of
the compensation not provided for is nod expecied o have significant impact on the Growp’s 2015 financial
statements. The final compensation will be disclosed in a separate annosncement when debenmined
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

42 Related party transactions ( Confinued)

42.7 Trangactions with Conmnected Natural Persons
As at 31 December 2015, the Bank’s balance of loans o the connected naural persons as
defined in the Admmistration of Connected Transactions between Commercial Banks and
Their fnsiders and Sharefiolders of the CBRC and the Admimistrative Measures for the
Dizclosure of Information of Listed Companies of the CSRC totalled RMBS1 million (31
December 2014: RMBTT million) and RMB18 million (31 December 2014: RMB16 million)
respectively.

42.8 Balavees with subsidiaries

Incleded in the following captions of the Bank's statement of financial position are balances
with subsidiaries:

As at 31 December

2015 2014
Due from banks and other financial institutions 32415 29.2%1
Placements with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions 64,707 55215
Due 1o banks and other financial institutions (S8 889 {115.285)
Placements from banks and
other financial institutions (52.888) (32,299
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Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)
42 Related party transactions (Continued)

42.8 Balanees with subsidigries (Continued)

The general information of principal subsidiaries is as follows:

Flace off D off
Incorporation incorperation/ Faid-in Elfective Principal
Name and operation  extablihment capital  equity beld  Viding right Tsdnesa
(i mmallinsy (%N 1%

[irectly held™
BO(T Homg Eong { Geoep [imised Haog Komg 12 Seplomber  HED 56 [{LUEN [[LLILE] Holdmg
i 1] oAy
B bstermational Holdings Limined @ Hong Kong 10 July 1993 HED 530 ([ UTE] 10000 Inwestment
banking
EBank of Chima Geoup Inmuirance Homg Emg 13 July 1992 HED3. 749 LOL00 [ELTLE] Tnsurance
Comgany Limiked ervies
Eank al Chima Geap live Hog Eong 03 May 1993 HED3M062 [ILUEL LILLILE] Inwesdment
Lisiied holding
‘Tai Fung Bank Limited Macm 1942 NHCHED S0 LE]] 5031 Commercial
banking
Eank of Chima (UK} Liwiged Lot Eimgdom 24 Seplember GHFE [{LITE] TR0 Commeencial
X bankimg
BT baomranoe Companry Limised Beijing 5 Jamary 2006 RME4 535 ({1 [L1TLE] Tosurane
RIVKLE

Indirectly held
B Hong Beng dHlollings) Limitad ®  Hong Bong 12 Seplember HEDS2.384 (.04 M Holling
] Oty
Fank of China { Hong Keng) Hong Kong M lgtober  HEDY3043 0% M Commercial
Limiiled 7 L banking
Namyang Commercial Bank, Limsted ™ Hong Eong 2 February HED3,145 [ 10 Commercial
1583 banking
Chiyw Basking Corporation Hong Bong 24 April 1947 HED3} 05 AP Commercial
Limniied & 0 bankimg
B Credit Cand {Imiernational ) Bz Eong 9 Seplember HED:3 0% 1000 Cradit cand
Limnited 150 IV
B0 Group Trmbee Compasy Hmg Eong | December HEDXG Ta43 T Prowisdon of
Limiited # 158 Irustee svices
BOAC Avaation Pre. Lid. Smgapore 25 November LS [T N Aworaft beasing

19
m
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

42 Related pariy transactions (Confinued)

42.8 Balances with subsidiaries (Continued)

43

1y These directly held principal subsidianes are unlisted companies. All holdings are in the ondimary share
capital of the undertaking concerned, and the ahlity of the subsidiones to transfer funds 1o the Group and
e Bank is not restricbed.

{1y  BOCHE (Holdings) 12 ksied on the Stck Exchange of Hong Kong Limared.

{3y BOCHEL dn whach the Groap holds a 66.06% equity inkereat, holds T049% of the equity interest of Clayu
Banking Corporation Limed

(4) BOCHK. Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited. Chive Banking Cogporation Limited and BOC International
Holdings Limated {"BOCT), im which the Groop holds 66,06%, 66.06%. 46.5T% and [0 of their equity
inferests, respectively, hold 4%, 6%, 6% ond 34% equoity interest of BOC Group Trussee Company
Lemited, respectively.

For certain subsidiaries listed above, the voting rights ratio is not equal 1o the effective
equity held ratio, mainly due to the impact of the indirect holdings.

Segment reporting

The Group manages the business from both gecgraphic and business perspectives. From the
geographic perspective, the Group operates in three principal regions: Chinese mainland,
Hong Kong., Macauw and Taiwan, and ather countrics and regions. From the business
perspective, the Group provides services through six main business segments: corporate
hanking, personal banking, treasury operations, investment banking. insurance and other
operalions.

Measurement of segment assets, liabilities, income, expenses, results and capital expenditure
is based on the Group's accounting policies. The scgment information presented includes
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis. Funding is provided to and from individual business segments through treasury
operations as part of the asset and liability management process. The pricing of these
transactions is based on market rates. The transfer price takes inlo account the specific
features and maturities of the product. Internal transsctions are eliminated on congolidation.
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43

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATEDR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)
Segment reporting { Continued )
Geographical segments

Chinese mainland — Corporate banking, personal banking, reasury operations, insurance
services, cle, are performed in the Chinese mainland.

Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan — Corporate banking, personal banking, treasury

operations, investment banking and insurance services are performed in Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan. The business of this segment is centralised in BOCHEK Group.

Other countries and regions — Corporate and personal banking services are provided in
other countries and regions. Significant locations include New York, London, Singapore and
Tokva.

Business segments

Corporate banking — Services (o corporate customers, government authorities and [inancial
institutions incleding current accounts, deposits, overdrafis, loans, trade-related products
and other credit facilities, foreign currency, derivative products and wealth management
products.

Personal banking — Services to retail customers including savings deposits, personal loans,
credit cards and debit cards, payments and seitlements, wealth management products and
funds and insurance agency services,

Treasury operations — Consisting of foreign exchunge ransactions, customer-based interest
rate and foreign exchange derivative transactions, money markel transactions, proprietary
trading and asse1 and liability management. The results of this segmen include the inter-
segment funding income and expenses, results from interest-bearing assets and labilities;
and foreign currency translation gains and losses.

Investment banking — Congisting of debt and equity underwriting and financial advisory,
sales and trading of securities, stock brokerage, investment research and asset management

services, and privale equity investment services,

Insurance — Underwriting of general and life insurance business and insurance agency

SETVICES.

Other operations of the Group comprise investment holding and other miscellaneous
activities, none of which constitutes a separately reportable segment.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Y

44

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)
Translers of linancial asseis

The Group enters into transactions in the normal course of business by which it transfers
recognised financial assets to third parties or to special purpose entities. In some cases
where these transferred flinancial assets qualify for derecognition, the transfers may give rise
tor full or partial derecognition of the financial assets concerned. In other cases where the
transferred assets do not gqualify for derecognition as the Group has retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of these assets, the Group continued to recognise the transferred assets.

Repurchase agreements

Transferred financial assets that do not qualify for derecogmition mainly include deln
securities held by counterparties as collateral under repurchase agreements and securities
lent to counterparties under securities lending agreements. The counterparties are allowed
to sell or re-pledge those securities in the absence of default by the Group, but have an
ohligation to return the securitics at the maturity of the contract. If the securities increase
or decrease in value, the Group may in certain circumstances require or be required to pay
additional cash collateral. The Group has determined that the Group retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of these securitics and therefore has not derecognised them. In
addition, the Group recognises a financial liability for cash received as collateral.

The following table analyses the carrying amount of the abovementioned financial assets
transferred to third parties that did not gqualify for derecognition and their associated
financial liabilities:

As at 31 December 2005 Axal 31 December 2014
Carrying Carrving Carrving  Carrying

amount of  amount of  amount of  amoand of
tramsferred  associated transferred  associsted

assets  linhilities assels  liahilities
z 4 4
Repurchase agreements 3170 4,942 10,246 10,19
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( Continued)
44 Translers of linancial asseis { Continued )
Securitisation fransactions

The Group enters inlo securitisalion (ranssctions in the normal course of business by
which it transfers credit assets to special purpose trusts which in turn issue asset-backed
securities to investors. The Group may acquire some subordinated tranches of securities
and accordingly may retain parts of the risks and rewards of the transferred credit assets.
The Group would determine whether or net to derecognise the associated credil assets by
evaluating the extent to which it retains the risks and rewards of the assets.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Bank derecognised the. transferred credit assets in
thear eaticety in the securitisation ransactions. The corfesponding total carrving amaount of
assel-backed securities held by the Bank was RMBE5R million as at 31 December 2015 (31
December 20014: RMB554 million), which also approximates the Bank's maximum exposure
to loss,
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Y

45

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)
Interesis in the unconsolidated siructured entities

The Group is principally involved with structured entities through financial investments,
assel management and assel securitisation transactions, These structured entities generally
finance the purchase of assets by issuing securities or by other means. The Group determines
whether or not to consolidate these structured entities depending on whether the Group has
control over them. The interests held by the Group in the unconsolidated structured entities
are set out as below:

KNerwctured entities sponsared by the Group

In conducting wealth management business, the Group established various structured
entities to provide customers specialised investment opportunities within narrow and well-
defined objectives. As at 31 December 2015, the balance of the unconsolidated bank
wealth management products sponsored by the Group amounted to RMBI1 107,079 million
(31 December 2014: RMBE46.947 million). For the year ended 31 December 20135, fee
and commission income from wealth management business, which includes commission,
custedian fee and management fee amounted to RMBESYT million (2014: RMEB7 966
million).

For the purpose of asset-liability management, wealth management prodiucls may raise
short-term financing needs to the Group and other banks. The Group is not contractually
chliged to provide financing. After internal risk assessment, the Group may enter into
repurchase and placement transactions with these wealth management products in
accordance with market principles. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the maximum
balance of such financing provided by the Group to the unconselidated wealth management
products was RMB19,300 million (20014: RMB25.350 million). Such financing provided
by the Group was included in “Placements with and loans to banks and other financial
institutions”. As at 31 December 2015, the balance of above tradings is nil (31 December
200 4: Mill. The masimum exposure to loss of those placements approximated the carrying
ALt

In addition, the total carrying amount as at the transfer date of credit assets transferred by
the Group inte the unconsolidated structured entities was RMB12.892 million for the vear
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: RMB12,713 million). For description of the portion of
asset-backed securities issued by above structured entities and held by the Group, refer
o Note V.44, Az a 3] December 20135, the amount of assets held by publicly offered
funds that are sponsored by the Group was RMB277 200 maullion (3] December 2004
RMEB160,900 million).

288

417/504

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

v

45

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

Interesis in the unconsolidated siructured entities {Continued)

Structured emtities spanzared by other financial institutions

As at 31 December 20135, the interests held by the Group in the structured entities sponsored

by other financial institutions through direct investments are set out as below:

Structared entily fype

As at 31 December 2013
Fund
Wealth manapement plans
Investment tmsts and

assel management plans
Assel-backed secontizations

Az at 3 December 2014
Fusd
Wealth managemest plins
Investment tasts and

assel management plans
Assel-backed secuntizations

Financial
asselsal
[air value
ihrough
profit

or loss

4832

Investment
securifics
available
for zale

15,853

Deht
securilies
held to
malurity

Financial
invesiments
dlassified as

Joans and

recevables

Todal

Ni685
100

71,120

Maximum
expasure io
liss

2,702
(L]

TR

L2

I

120,012

11,251
170

120,012
s gk

11.28%
170

[20,012
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
Vo ONOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 (MTsciting financial asseis and linancial liabilities

Financial assets subject to offsetting. enforceable master netting arrangements and similar
agreements are analyzed as below:

Amsunts not sel off
in the slatement of
financial position
Gross  Amounls
Gross  ameunls  presented

amounls of offsed in the in the
recognised  statement  statement Cash
financial of fimancial of fimancial ~ Financial  collateral Nel
assely pusition posilion  imsdruments*  received amount
As at 31 December 2015
[Derivatives 3.0 32710 (19.51% i) 12,363
Reverse mepo dgresenls #31 51 (851
(ther assels 0,508 (6934 1314 - - ALY
Teaal 42560 (6,03, 35,05 (20,3548) (534 14.737
Asat A December 2014
Derivatives 21,502 - 21,532 {10,808 {1,654) LT
(ither assets 11,671 19, 140y 253 = 5 3531
Teaal 33173 {9, 140K 24033 {10,808 {1,654) 11,571
T e . e D SE—
200
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

v

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

46 DHTsetting financial assets and financial labilities (Continoed)

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and

similar agreements are analysed as below:

As at 3 December 2015
Derivatives

Repurchase agnements
Other liabilities.

Tixal

Asat M December 2014
[herivatives

Fepurchase agmements
Oither Habilies

Tetal

Amsunts nol sl off
in the statement of
financial position

Gross  Amounts
Giross  amaunls  presented
amonnts of offse in the in the
retognised  stalement  slatement (ash
financial of financial of Gnancial  Financial  eollateral Nel
T bil ities position posilion  imstruments*  pledged amount
43965 43065 {19,931} (1535 16,499
4,636 4,636 (4,636) - :
1.4 (B.03) 15 - - 56
56,241 (6534 49,357 (24,567 (1,335 17,255
— — — — — —
21,580 20,580 (11,182 (1,628 4,370
2960 2060 (29600 -
9,362 {9,140 m - - m
33002 {5,140 14,762 (14,142 {1,028 500

- Incloding non-cash collaleral

Financial ‘assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net hasis, or realise the asset and

settle the lability simultanecusly (“the affset eriteria™),

Derivatives and reverse repofrepurchase agreements included in amounts not set off in the

statement of financial position where:

. the counterparty has an offsetting exposure with the Group and a master netting or
similar arrangement (including ISDA master agreement and Global Master Netting
Agreement) is in place with a right of set off only in the event of default, insolvency or

bankreptey, or the offsel criteria are otherwise not satisfied; and

] cash and non-cash collateral receivedfpledged in respect of the transactions described

above.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)

47 The Banks® statement of Onancial position and changes in equity

7.1 The Banks® statement of financial pasition

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks and
other financial institations
Balances with central banks
Placements with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions
Government certificates of indebtedness for
hank notes issucd
Precious metals
Financial asseis at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial assets
Loans and advances to customers, nel
Financial investments
— available for sale
— held to maturity
— loans and receivables
Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in associates and joint ventures
Property and equipment
Investmen! properlies
Deferred income tax assets
(Ohther assels

Total assels

421/504

As atl 31 December

2015 2014
649,628 731,400
24189,759 2,211,837
425,192 405,101
5177 4908
173,540 191,625
56,120 44,035
58,178 26,433
2027160 7377812
2993194 2,225,804
688,981 445 365 |
1,710,303 1,355,313
593,910 425,026 |
94,354 94,705
il 56
85 685 85772
1,951 203
24,085 26,377
101,986 109,547

14,786,678

13,537,357
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vo NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)
47 The Banks® staterment of Gnancial position and changes in equity { Continued)
470 The Banks” statemnent of finaneial pasition (Coniinned )

As atl 31 December

21E 2014

LIABILITIES
Due 1o banks and other financial institutions 1.746, 218 1.814414
Due 1o central banks 364,428 499,656
Bank notes in circulation 5917 454949
Placements from banks and other financial institutions 479.216 233987
Derivative financial Habilities 48,344 29,127
Due 1o customers 10403 603 9565329

— at amortised cost [ 10,089,331 0,270 854

— at fair value 314,362 285475 |
Bonds issued 233,986 233,383
Current tax liabilities 34,455 38,222
Retirement benelit obligations 4.255 4566
Deferred income tax liabilities 101 121
Other linbilities 234,157 243402
Total liabilities 13,574,770 12,467 206
EQUITY
Share capital 204,388 288,731
Other equity instruments 99,714 71,745
Capital reserve 138,832 129304
Other comprehensive income 7,104 (3469
Stansory reserves 109,215 93 868
General and regulstory reserves 172,029 152,633
Undistributed profis 390,626 334116
Total equity 1.211,908 1,070,151
Total equity and liabilities 14,786,678 13,537,357

Approved and authorised for issue by the Beard of Directors on 30 March 2016,

TIAN Guoli CHEMN Siging

Dvirector Direcrar

293
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Y

48

Vi

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued)
Events after the linancial reporting date

Cn 23 February 2016, the Bank issued USD2 billion notes, which was then listed on 2
Mareh 2016 on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, as part of the Bank’s USD20
Billion Medium Term Note Programme. The issuance details had been sel out in the Bank's
anncuncement dated 1 March 2016,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
{verview

The Group's primary risk management objectives are to maximise value for equity holders
while maintmning risk within acceptable parameters, optimising capital allecation and
satisfying the requirements of the regulatory authorities, the Group’s depositors and ather
stakeholders for the Group’s prudent and stable development.

The Group has designed a series of risk management policies and has set up controfs to
analyse, wdeatify, monitor and report nsks by means of relevant and up-to-date information
systems. The Group regularly reviews and revises its risk management policies and systems
to reflect changes in markets. products and emerging best practice.

The most significant types of risks to the Group are credit risk. market risk and hguidity
risk. Market risk includes interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk.

Financial risk management framework

The Board of Directors is responsible for establishing the overall risk appetite of the Group
and reviewing and approving the risk management objectives and strategies.

Within this framework, the Growp's sentor management has overall responsibility for
managing all aspects of risks, including implementing risk management strategies, initiatives
and credit policies and approving internal policies, measures and procedures related to risk
management. The Risk Management Department, the Credit Management Department,
the Financial Management Department and other relevant functional departments are
responsible for monitoring financial risks,

The Group manages the risks a1 the branch level through direct reporting from the branches
to the relevam departments responsible for risk management at the Head Office. Business
line related risks are monitored through establishing specific risk management teams within
the business departments. The Group monitors and controls risk management at subsidiaries
by appointing members of their boards of directors and risk management committees as
appropriate.

296
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a customer or counterparty
will cause a financial loss for the Group by failing to discharge an obligation, Credit risk is
one of the most significant risks for the Group’s business.,

Credit risk exposures arise principally in lending activities and debt securities investment
activitics. There is also credit risk in off-balance sheet financial instruments, such as
derivatives, loan commitments, letters of guarantee, bill acceptance and letters of credit.

Credit risk measurement
Loans and gdvances and off-balarce sheer commitinents

Monitoring and measurement of credit risk over loans and advances and off-balance sheet
credit related exposures are performed by the Credit Management Department, and reported
to the senior management and the Board of Directors regularly.

In measuring the credit risk of loans and advances to corporate customers, the Group mainly
reflects the “probability of default™ by the customer on iis contractual obligations and
considers the current Nnancial position of the customer and the exposures 10 the customer
and its likely future development. For retail customers, the Group uses standard approval
procedures to manage credit risk for personal loans, and uses credit score-card models,
which are based on historical default data to measure credit rizk for credit cands.

For credit risk arising from off-balance sheet commitments, the Group manages the risks
according to the characteristics of the products, These mainly include loan commitments,
guarantees, bill acceptances and letters of credit. Loan commitments, guarantees, bill
acceplances and stondby letters of credit carry similar credit risk 10 loans and the Group
takes a similar approach on nsk management. Documentary and commercial letters of credit
are written undertakings by the Group on behalf of a customer authorising a third party to
draw drafts on the Group wp to a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions
and are collateralised by the underlying shipment documents of goods to which they relate
or deposits and are therefore assessed to have less credit risk than a direct loan, Besides,
the Group moenitors the term to maturity of off-balance sheet commitments and these with
longer-terms are assessed to have greater credit risk than shorter-term commitments.

426/504
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk { Continued )

Credit risk measurement (Continued)

Loans and dadvances and off-balarce sheer commitments { Continied)

The Group measures and manages the credit quality of loans and advances to corporate
and personal customers based on the Guideline for Loan Credit Risk Classification (the
“Ciuideling™ issued by the CBRC, which requires commercial banks to classify their
corporate and personal loans imto Dve categories: pass, special-mention, substandard,
doubiful and loss, among which leans classified in the substandard. doubtful and loss
categories are regarded as non-performing loans, Off-balance sheet commitments with credit
exposures are also assessed and cateporised with reference o the Guideline, For operations
in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and other countries and regions, where local regulations and
requirements are more prudent than the Guideline, the credit assets are classified according
to local regulations and requirements.

The five categories are defined as follows:

Pass: loans for which borrowers can honour the terms of the contracis, and there is no reason
to doubl their ability to repay principal and interest of loans in full aad on a tmely basis,

Special-mention: loans for which hormowers are still able to service the loans currently,
although the repayment of loans might be adversely affected by some factors,

Substandard: loans for which borrowers” ability to service loans is apparently in question
and borrowers cannot depend on their normal business revenues te pay back the principal
and interest of loans, Certain losses might be incurred by the Group even when puarantees

are execuled.

Doubtful: loans for which horrowers cannot pay back principal and interest of loans in full
and significant losses will be incurred by the Group even when guarantees are executed.

Loss: principal and interest of loans cannot be recovered or only a small portion can be
recovered after taking all possible measures and resorting (0 necessary legal procedures.

08

427/504

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk { Continued )

Credit risk measurement (Continued)

Loans and dadvances and off-balarce sheer commitments { Continied)

The Group has developed on internal customer credit rating system, using measurements of
the probability of default within one vear based on regression analysis. These probability of
default measurements are then mapped to internal eredit ratings. The Group performs back
testing to actual default rates and refines the model according to the results.

The customer credit ratings in the internal model are based on four categories of A, B, C and
[ which are further classified into fifteen grades as AAA, AA, A, BBEB+, BBE, BRB-. BB+,
BB, BB-, B+, B-, CCC. CC, C, and D. Credit grading Db equates to defaulted customers
while the others are assigned to performing customers.

Five-category loan classifications and customer credit ratings are determined by Head Office
and tier 1 branch management under approved delegated authorities. The Bank performs
centralised review on customer eredit ratings and five-category loan classifications on an
annual basis, Further. five-category loan classifications are re-examined on a quarterly
bagis. Adjustments are made to these classifications and ratings as necessary according to
customers’ operational and financial position,

The Group identifies credit risk collectively based on industry, geography and customer
tvpe. This information is monitored regularly by management.

Management pericdically reviews various elements of the Group's credit risk management
process, in the context of loan portfolio growth, the changing mix and concentration of
asse1s, and the evelving risk predfile of the credit pertfolio. From time to time, in this regard,
refinements are made to the Group’s credit nsk management processes 10 most effectively
manage the effects of these changes on the Group's credit risk. These refinements include,
among other things, adjustments to portfolio level controls, such as revisions to lists of
approved borrowers, industry gquotas and underwriting criteria, Where circumstances related
to specific leans or a group of loans increase the Bank’s credit risk, actions are taken, to
the extent possible, to strengthen the Group’s security position. The actions may include
ehtaining additional guarantors or collateral.

209
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk { Continued )

Credit risk measurement (Continued)

De from, placanents witk ang loons to banks and other financial instinrions

The Group manages the credit quality of due from, placements with and loans to banks
and other financial institutions considering the size, financial position and the internal and
external credit rating of banks and financial institutions. [n response to adverse credit market
conditions, various initiatives were implemented since 2008 to better manage and report
credit risk, including establishing a special commitiee which meets periodically and on an ad
hoe basis to discuss actions in response to market changes impacting the Group™s exposure
to eredit risk, and formulating a watch list process over counterparty names ol risk.

Deler securities and derivatives

Credit risk within debt securities arises from exposure to movements in credit spreads,
default rates and loss given default. as well as changes in the credit of underlying assets,

The Group manages the credit risk within debt securities by monitoring the external credit
raling, such as Standard & Poor's ratings of their equivalents, of the security, the internal
credit rating of the issuers of debt securities, and the credit quality of underlying assets of
securitisation products, including review of default rates. prepayment rates, industry and
sector performance, loss coverage ratios and counterparty risk, to identify exposure to credit
risk.

The Growp has policies to maintain strict control limits en net open derivative positions
based on notional amount and term. At any time. the amount subject to credit risk is limited
to the current fair value of instruments that are favourable to the Group (i.e. assets for which
fiir value 15 positive), The denivative credit rnisk exposure 18 managed as part of the overall
exposure lending limits set for customers and financial institations. Collateral or ather
security is not usually obtained for eredit risk exposures on these financial instruments.

ElLY]
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)
Credit risk { Continued)
Credit risk limit contral and mitigation policies

The Group maonages limits and controls concentrations of ecredit risk in particular, to
individual customers and to industries.

Credit risk limits and controls
Loans and advances and off-balance sheet commitments

In order 1o manage the exposure 1o credit risk. the Group has adopted credit policies and
procedures that are reviewed and updated by the Credit Management Department and the
Credit Approval Department at Head Office. The credit approval process for both corporate
loans and personal loans can be broadly divided into three stages: (1) credit origination
and assessment; (2) credit review and approval, and (3) fund disbursement and post-
dishursement management.

Credit to corporate customers in the Chinese mainland are originated by the Corporate
Banking Depariment at Head Office and the Corporate Banking Department al branch level
and submutted to the Credit Approval Department for due diligence and approval. All erednt
applications for corporate customers must be approved by authorised credit application
approvers at Head Office and tier 1 branches level in Chinese mainland, except for the low
risk credit applications which are in accordance with the rules. The exposure 1o any one
horrower, including banks, is restricted by credit limits covering on and off-balance sheet
X[HISUPES,

Personal loans in the Chinese mainland are originated by the Personal Banking Departments
at branch level and must be approved by autherised approvers ai tier | branches level in
Chinese manland, except for individual pledged loans and government-sponsored student
loans, which may be approved by authorised approvers at sub-branches below tier 1 level.
High risk personal loans such as personal loans for business purposes in excess of certain
limits must also be reviewed by the Risk Management Department.

The Head Office also oversees the risk management of the branches in Hong Kong, Macau,
Taiwan and other countries and regions. In particular, any credit application ot these
branches exceeding the authorisation limits is required 1o be submitted 1o the Head Office

for approval.

Exposure to credit risk is also managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers
and potential borrowers (o meet interest and capital repavment obligations and by changing
these lending limits where appropriate,

3
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)

Credit risk { Continued)

Credit risk limit contral and mitigation policies (Continned)

Credit risk limars and controls (Contingied)

Dbt securities and derivatives

The Group is also exposed to credit risk through investment activities and trading activities.
Credit limits are established based on type of instruments and the credit quality of
counterparties, securities issuers and securities and set limiis are actively monitored,

Credit risk mingation policies

Collateral and guarantees

The Group has a range of policies and practices intended to mitigate credit risk. The most
prevalent of these is the taking of security for funds advances (collateral) and guarantees,
which is common practice. The Group implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific
classes of collateral. The amount of acceptable collateral a1 the time of loan origination
iz determined by the Credit Management Department and is subject 1o loan-to-value ratio

limits based on type and is monitored on an ongoing basis by the Credit Management
Department. The principal collateral types for corporate loans and advances are:

Collateral Maximum loan-to-value ratio
Deposit receipt 93%
PRC Treasury bonds 0%
PRC financial institution bonds 0%
Publicly raded stocks 509
Construction land use rights T0%
Real estate TO%
Automobiles 4055

Mortgages to retail customers are generally collateralised by mortgages over residential
properties. Cther loans are collateralised dependant on the nature of the loan.

For loans guaranteed by a third party guarantor, the Group will assess the guarantor’s eredit
rating, financial condition, credit history and ahility to meet ohligations.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk { Continued )

Credit risk limit contral and mitigation policies (Continned)
Credit risk mitngarion policies (Continped )

Collateral and guarantees (Continued)

Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loans and advances is determined
by the nature of the instrument. Debt securities, treasury and other eligible bills are generally
unsecurcd, with the exception of certain asset-backed securities and similar instruments,
which are secured by portfolios of financial instruments.,

Collateral is alse held as part of reverse repurchase agreements, Under such agreements, the
Group is permitted to sell or re-pledge collatersl in the absence of default by the owner of
the collateral. Details of collateral accepted and which the Group is obligated 10 return are
disclosed in Note V.40.3,

Master netting arrangements

The Group furthes resteiets itz exposure o credit losses by entering inlo master aetling
arrangements with counterparties with which it undertakes a significant volume of
transactions. Master netting arrangements do not generally result in the offsetting of assets
and liabilities in the statement of financial position, as transactions are usually settled on
a gross hasis. However, the credit risk associated with favourable contracts is reduced
by a master netling arrangement (o the extent that if a default cccurs, all amounts with
the customer are terminated and settled on a net basis, The Group's overall exposure (o
credit risk on derivative instruments subject 1o masier neiling arrangemenis can change
substantially within a short period, as it is affected by each transaction subject 1o the
arrangement.

Fmpairment and provisioning policies

A financial assel or a group of [inancial assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred if, and only if, there 15 objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that cecurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss

event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

ELLE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)
3 Credit risk {Continued)

1.3 Impairment and provisioming policies (Continsed)
(1) Loans and ddvances

Management determines whether ohjective evidence of impairment exists under TAS 36,
hazed on the following criteria set out by the Group including consideration of:

. significant financial difficulty incurred by the borrower;
. & hreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payment;

* for economic or legal reasons related to the borrower’s financial difficulty, whether the
Group has granted to the borrower a concession that it would not otherwise consider;

= probability that the borrower will become bankrupt or will undergo other financial re-
arganisation;

*  deterioration in the value of collateral:
*  deterioration in credit rating; or

*  other ohservable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from such loans and advances.

The Group’s policy requires the review of individual financial assets that are above certain
thresholds at least annually or more regularly when individual circumstances reguire.
Impairment allowances on individually assessed accounts are determined by an evaluation
of the meurred loss at the financial reporting date on a case-by-case basis using discounted
cash flow analysis. The assessment normally encompasses guarantees and collateral held
and the anticipated receipts for that individual account.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for: (i) pontfolios of homogenous
nssels that are individually below materiality thresholds; and (1) losses that have been

incurred but have not yet been specifically identified, by using the available historical data,
expenence, professional judgement and statistical technigues.

£
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VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3 Credit risk (Continued)

1.3 Impairment and provisioming policies (Continsed)

2} Debt securities
Debt securities are assessed for individual impairment using similar criteria as loans and
advances. Management determines whether ohjective evidence of debt securities impairment

exists under JAS 39 based on eriteria set out by the Group including constderation of?

*  a breach of contract or a trigger event. such as a defanlt or delinguency in interest or
principal payment.

] significant financial difficulty of issuers or underlying asset holders;

«  probable that the issuer or underlying asset holders will become bankrupt or will
undergo other financial re-organisation;

*  deterioration in credit rating; or

] other observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from such debt securities.

Impairment allowances on individually assessed securitics are determined by an evaluation
of the incurred loss at financial reporting date on a case-by-case basis using available data,
including default rates, loss given default and assessment of the quality of the underlying
assels of securitisation products, industry and sector performance, loss coverage ratios and
counterparty risk.

305
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credii risk { Continued)

Maxinum exposure to credit pisk before collateral held or other credit enhaneements

Credit risk exposures relating to on-balance
sheet financial assets are as follows;
Due from banks and other financial institations
Balances with central banks
Placements with and loans to banks and
ather financial institutions
Government certificates of indebtedness for
hank notes issued
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial assets
Loan: and advances to customers, net
Financial investments
— available for sale
— held to maturity
— Ipans and receivables
(Mher assels

Subtotal

Credit risk exposures relating to off-halance
sheet items are as follows:

Letters of guaraniee issued

Loan commitments and other eredit commitments

Subtotal

Tetal

E.L <]
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As at 31 December

is 2014
381,007 7279351
2.196,063 2,306 088
426,848 402 280
41,1: Ta.517
104,082 #6420
52,236 47067
2.935,195 8,294,744
1,032,004 713 603
1,790,750 1,424 463
606,710 430,699
147,441 142,392
15,993 567 14653113
1077070 1,148,535
2132963 2,141,676
3,210,033 3,290,211
189,203 600 17,943 324
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

¥1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)
3 Credii risk { Continued)

dd Maximum exposure to eredit risk before collateral held or other credit enfrancements
(Continned)

The table above represents a worst case scenario of credit risk exposure of the Group as
at 31 December 2015 and 2014, without taking into account of any collateral held, master
netting agreements or other credit enhancements attached. For on-halance sheet assets; the

exposures set out above are based on net carrying amounts as reported in the statements of
financial position.

As at 31 December 2015, 46.53% of the Group's total maximum credit exposure is derived
from loans and advances to customers (31 December 2014: 46.23%) and 18.37% represents
investments in debt securities {31 December 2014: 14.77%).
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)

3 Credit risk { Continued)

A3 Leans and advances

(1) Concentrations of risk for loans and advances 1o customers

The total loans and advances of the Group are set out below:

(i} Analvsis of loans and advances to customers by geographical area

Group

Chinese mainland
Hong Kong. Macau and Taiwan
Other countries and regions

Total loans and advances
o customers

Chinese mainland

Morthern China
MNortheastern China

Eastern China

Central and Southern China
Western China

Total loans and advances
o customers

As at 31 December
2E 2014
Amount % of total  Amount % of total

7,199,004 TREOW 6605773 TTATE
1100615 12.05% 1085928 1 2.80%
£36,151 .15% 791,574 9.33%

G 135860 100004  BA483.27% 10000
———— —— e—  —

As at 31 December
2015 2014
Amount % of total  Amount % of total

1.158,592 16099 1,042 449 15.78%
484,432 673 4537802 6.93%
2,863,040 0TTE 2685603 40,667
1,763,358 24.57% 1597434 24185
924,633 12.84% 812485 12.45%

7.199 (04 L0 6,605,773 B0, 005
— — — ——

L

437/504

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn



BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)

3 Credit risk (Continued )

15 Loans and advances {Continged)

(1) Concentrations of risk for loans aend advances to customers (Continied)
{iid  Analysis of loans and advances to customers by customer type

Asal _31 De-_:._elr_ll_'rtr }1'}]5

Hong Kong, her
Chinese  Macau and couniries
miainland Taiwan and regions Total
Corporate loans
— Trade bills T34 820 127,512 194426 1,056,767
— Onher 465,532 632,015 615598 5,313,145
Personal loans 2308733 341.088 26,127 2,765.048
Total loans and advances
10 CUstomeTs T.199,084 1100615 836,151 0,135 860

As at 31 December 2014

Hong Kang, (ther
Chinese  Macau and couniries
mizinland Taiwan and regions Total
Corporate loans
— Trade hills T13,054 148,191 255968 1,117,213
— (her IR08A411 606,350 513422 4,928 383
Personal loans 2084308 331,187 22184 2437679
Total loans and advances
1o customers 6605773 1,085,925 791,574 8483275

LY
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

¥l

3

A3 Loans and advances {Continged)

i1

Credii risk { Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

{1it) Analysis of loans and advances to customers by industry

Group

Corporate loans and advances

Manufacturing

Commerce and services

Transportation, storage and
postal services

Real estate

Production and supply of
electricity, heating,
gas and water

Mining

Financial services

Construction

Water, environment and
public utility management

Public utilities

Other

Subtatal

Personal loans

Mortgages
Credit cards
Other

Subtotal

Total loans and advances 1o

CUSIOmers

Concentrations of risk for loans end advances to customers (Continied)

As at 31 December

310
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2015 014

Amaouni S of total Amount % of total
1,684,276 18.43% 1,690,267 19.92%
1,318,028 14.435% 1.270.883 14,985
BO2,207 97T 825423 9.73%
760,511 B.31% T14573 B4I%
442,536 4845 413,033 4.87%
371,581 4.07% 156,991 4.21%
332,835 3.645% 230,508 2.71%
154,112 2.001% 170,358 2.01%
168,631 L.25% 189017 2.23%
110,242 1.21% BO024 1.05%:
104,953 1.15% 95510 1.13%
6,369,912 69.72% 6,045,596 T1.21%
2045787 22.390% 1,694,275 19.97%
268,923 295% 268,026 316%
451,238 4.545% 475378 5.60%
2765948 30.28% AT 6TG 28.73%
9,135,860 100.00% 8,483,275 100.00%5%
——— — E——— E——
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

¥l

3

A3 Loans and advances {Continged)

i1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credii risk { Continued)

Concentrations of risk for loans end advances to customers (Continied)

{1ii) Analysis of loans and advances to customers by industry (Continued)

Chinese mainland

Corporate loans and advances

Manufacturing

Commerce and services

Transportation, storage and
postal services

Real estate

Production and supply of
electricity, heating,
gas and water

Mining

Financial services

Construction

Water, environment and
public utility management

Public utilities

Other

Subtatal
Personal loans
Mortgages
Credit cards

Other

Subtotal

Total loans and advances 1o
customers

As at 31 December

311
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2015 014
Amaouni S of total Amount % of total
1,401,271 19.47% 1,385 487 20.97%
859,541 11.594% #21.011 [ 2.43%
779,443 10.83% TOT 5646 10.71%:
462,914 643% 470,149 L12%
397,511 5.52% 372713 5.649%
227805 316% 201,333 3.05%
209,285 2.01% 112,005 17065
161 428 2.24% 147512 2.23%
168,608 1.34% 188,983 2.B6%
104,719 145% 85,707 1.30%
27,836 0.30% 25910 (445
4,801,361 66.68% 4,521 465 68.45%
1,779,310 24.72% 1444715 21.87%
256,204 356% 256049 387T%
363,219 5.04% 383544 5.81%
2398,733 3332% 2084308 31.55%
7,199,094 100.00% 6,605,773 100.00%5%
—————————— ——— E—
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vi

15

iy

{iv)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credii risk { Continued)

Loans and advances {Continged )

Concentrations of risk for loans end advances to customers (Continied)

Analysis of loans and advances to customers by collateral type

Group

Unsecured loans
Guarantesd loans
Collateralised and
other secured loans
loans secured by
property and oher
immovable assets

— other pledged loans

Total loanz and advances 1o
Custommers

Chinese mainland

Ungecured loans
Guaranteed loans
Collateralised and
other secured loans
— loans secured by
properiy and other
immaovable assets
other pledged loans

Total loans and advances to
customers

Asat 3 _ﬁﬁ'e!'n_her
2015 2014

Amouni % of total Amount % of lotal

2921927 20,865 Led0613 31.25%
1,867,312 20.44% 1625424 19.16%
3 548,200 38840 3,158,716 31.23%

90242 10.8 65 1,048 518 12.36%

9,135,860 100,005 8483275 10000
.. —— 81—}

As at 31 December

2015 2014
Amount % of total Amount % of total
1,925,265 26.74% 1,831,113 21.72%
1,583,108 21.99% 1,368,779 20.72%
2.002 830 41.57% 1708384 41.00%5%
GUT 882 9.T0% 6OT 497 105655

7,199,094 10000 6,605, TT3 100_008%
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)

3 Credii risk { Continued)

15 Loans and advances { Continied

(2)  Analvsis of loges and advances 1o customers by overdue and impaired stalus

As al 31 December

{;rnup Chinese mainland
2015 2014 2015 2014
Corporate loans and advances
— Neither past due
nor impaired 6,229,020 5.050,5309 4665423 4430716
Past due but not impaired 35,316 12028 31746 11,184
Impaired 105,576 £2.129 103,192 79.565
Subtotal 6,350012 6,043 509G 4 800,351 4,521 465
Personal loans
Meither past due
nor impaired 2,713,972 2391737 2,351 401 2043175
— Past due but not impaired 27,315 38,282 12889 23641
— [mpared 24,661 17660 24443 17492
Subtotal 2765948 2437679 2308733 2.084,308
Total 8,135 860 8 483,275 7,196,084 6,605,773
313
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

¥l

15

(2

(i}

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk {Continued )

Loans and advances {Confinied)

Anaivsis of logns and advances to customers by averdue and impaired starus (Continmed )
Loans and advances neither past du¢ nor impaired

The Group classifies loans and advances based on regulatory guidance including the
“Cuiding Principles on Classification of Loan Risk Management” issued by the CBRC as

set out in Note W31, The loans and advances neither past due nor impaired are classified
under these principles and guidelines as set owt in the table below,

Group As al 3 December
05 2014
Special- Special-
Pass menlion Total Pass mienlion Total
Corporate loans
and advanoes 6,052,761 176,250 220000 5787588 162951 5050539
Personal loans 2024022 1080 2713972 2391081 646 2301737
Total 8765683 177300 894200 8178679 163,597 ®342276
e e
Chinese mainkand Asal M Decenber
s e
Special- Special-
Pass  mention Total Pass  mention Tatal
Corporate loans
and advances 4497 469 16785 4665423 4,276,206 134510 4430716
Personal [oans 2351 299 2 2351400 243,085 120 243178
Total §,848. 768 16805 7016824 6319261 134,630 6473891
i S ——— s m L T | e m— e LmE s s

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided on loans and advances neither
past due nor impaired (o estimate losses that have been incurred but not yet specifically
identified. As part of this assessment, the Group considers information collected as part of
the process to classify loans and advances under the CBRC regulatory guidelines, as well as
additienal information on industry and portfolio exposwre.

34
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)

3 Credit risk (Continued )

15 Loans and advances {Continged)

(2)  Analvsis of loaas and advances o customers by overdue anmd imparred status ( Continued )
{ii) Loans and advances past due but not impaired

The total amount of loans and advances to customers that were past due but not impaired is
as follows:

Group As ol 31 December 2015

Within More than
I month  1=3 months 3 months Taotal
Corporate loans and advances 27,271 1727 EIE 33,316
Personal loans 14,925 12,361 19 27.315
Total 42,196 20,088 347 62631
— A

As ai 31 December 2014

Within More than
I month  1=3 months 3 months Total
Corporate loans and advances 10,310 2441 177 12,028
Personal loans 17,857 10,341 24 28,282
Total 28167 12.782 261 41,210

315
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)

3 Credit risk (Continued )

15 Loans and advances {Continged)

(2)  Analvsis of loaas and advances o customers by overdue anmd imparred status ( Continued )

{ii) Loans and advances past due but not impaired (Continued)

Chinese mainland Asal 31 December 2015
Within More than
I month  1=3 months 3 months Total
Corporate loans and advances 23,924 7.589 233 31,740
Personal loans 10,953 11,936 - 22,889
Total 34,877 19.525 233 54635
S — E—

Asat 31 December 2014

Within More than
I month  1=3 months 3 months Total
Corporate loans and advances 8,798 2.236 150 11,184
Personal loans 13,715 9,806 23641
Total 22.573 12102 1300 34,825
T —— I————L———

Collateral held against loans and sdvances to customers which have been overdue for more
than 3 months principally includes properties, equipment and cash deposits,
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)

3 Credii risk { Continued)

13 Loans and advances {Continued)

(2)  Analvsis of loaas and advances o customers by overdue anmd imparred status ( Continued )

(iii) Identified impaired loans and advances

{a) Impaired loans and advances by geographical area

Group As ot 3 December
015 Hild
Impaired Impaired
Amount % of total  loan ratio  Amount % of total  lean ratio
Chinese mainland 127,635 95.00% 1.717% 97057 97.26% 1.47%
Hong Kong,

Macau and Taiwan 1482 1.14% 0.13% 1,827 1.83% 017%
Dther countries and regions 1,120 0E6% 0.1 3% Qs 0.91% 1%
Total 1300237 100N 143% SO.T89 100006 1.18%

— — — — — —

Chinese maintand Asal 31 December

il &3 RINE]
Impaired Impaired
Amount % of total  loan ratio  Amount % of total  loan ralio
Northern China 20,363 15.95% 1.76% [ 5,675 16.15% 1.50¢%
Northeasierm China 5.1 6.33% L67% 3507 367% 1.20°%
Eastern China MR 42.71% 150 44,754 46.11% 1.67%
Central and

Somthern China oot 2548% 1.6 a7e .61% 1.31%
Westem China 14,713 11.535% 1504 10,147 10 465% 1.235%
Total 127,635 100000% 1.77% 97057 1040, (0¥ 1.47%

e, ey
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)

3 Credii risk { Continued)

A5 Leans and advances (Continied)

(2)  Analvsis of loaas and advances o customers by overdue anmd imparred status ( Continued )

(iii) Identified impaired loans and sdvances (Continued)

(b Impaired loans and advances by customer type

Group

Comporate loans and sdvances
Personal loans

Total

Chinese mainkand

Corporate loans and advances
Personad Joans

Total

As ot 3 December

s RILE]
Impaired Impaired
Amount % of total  loan ratio  Amount % of total  lean ratio
105,576 31.06% 1.66% 82,129 82.30% 1.36%
24,661 15.94% 0.59% I 7660 FrL10Re 0.72%
130237 1O 143% 49,789 10000 1.18%

As at 3 December

s M4
Impaired Impaired
Amount % of total  loan ratio  Amount % of total  loan ralis
105,192 308550 L15% 9565 £1.98% 1.765%
23 19.1 5% 1.02% |7 492 18.00% 0. 84%
127,635  [00.00% 1.77% 97057 100.00% 1.47%
— —  —  — —
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)
3 Credit risk { Continued )

15 Loans and advances {Continged)

12)  Analysis of loans and advances to enstomers by overdue and impaired stams | Contined)

(iil) Identified impaired loans and advances (Continued)

(¢} Impaired loans and advances by geography and industry

As at 31 December

2018 pLI |
Impaired [mpaired
Amouwnt % of tota]  loan ratio Amownt % of total  Joan ratio
Chinee mainland
Corporate loans and advances
Manufactunng M MIE% 31T% A4 H61% 2405
Commerce and services 35,561 0% 4.14% e 1% 3404
Transportation, storage and
postal services 7873 £.05% 1.01% 3,201 83l% LIT%
Keal estate 4,205 3.13% 0.91% 2044 215% 0465
Production and supply of
electricity, healing, gis and waber 347 1.63% 0.36% 3106 3% 0.33%
Miring 3337 LM | 46% 1003 L11% 0.55%
Fanancial services 136 0.1k 0.06% 250 0.25% 0.2M%
Construclion 3150 242% 1.95% 1407 141% 0.95%
Water, emvironment
and public utlity management 82 0.22% 0.17% 198 0.20%% 0.10%
Public uilities ol 0.23% 0.2% 312 0.31% 0.36%
Other §32 041% 191% 283 0.28% (1.98%
Subtolal 03,192 79.23% 215% 19565 TTME 1.76%
Personal loans
Mortgages 7118 5415 0.40% 5045 5.06% 0355
Credit cards 8636 6.63% 3.37% 5207 5.29% 2.06%
Oither .89 6.67% 1.39% 1170 T1%% 1.8T%
Subdetal M43 18.77% 102% 17462 I7.54% D34%
Total for Chinese maintand 127635 95.00% 1.77% 97051 9108% 147%
Hong Kong, Macan, Taiwan and
Oiher countries and regions 114 2.00F 0.13% k) 174% 01155
Total 130,337 100.00% 1 43% 99780 100.00% 1.15%
T S N ——— € —" &——
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)

3 Credit risk (Continued )

15 Loans and advances {Continged)

(2)  Analvsis of loaas and advances o customers by overdue anmd imparred status ( Continued )
(iii) Identified impaired loans and sdvances (Continued)

(dy Impaired loans and advances and related allowance by geographical area

As ot 31 December 2003
Individually Collectively

Impaired assessed assessed
loans allowance allowance Met
Chinese mainland 127.635 (50,270 (22,231 46,129
Hong Kong. Macaw and Taiwan 1.482 (752) (78 652
her countries and regions 1,120 {7611 {30 321
Total 130,237 (60,701 ) (22 344) 47102

As al 31 December 2014
Individually  Collectively

Impaired assessed assessid
loans  allowance  allowance Met
Chinese mainland 97,057 (47.582) (16,305) 33170
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 1,827 (1,102) 47 678
Other countries and regions Q05 (555) (53) 297
Total 99,749 {49,239) (16,405) 34,145
—————S—— ———————— ———— —————————

For description of allowances on identified impaired loans, refer to Note V.17.3.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)

3 Credit risk (Continued )

15 Loans and advances {Continged)

(2)  Analvsis of loaas and advances o customers by overdue anmd imparred status ( Continued )
(iii) Identified impaired loans and sdvances (Continued)

(e} Within impaired corporate loans and advances, the portion covered or not covered by
callateral held are as follows:

Group Impaired corporate
loans and advances

As al Asal

31 December 31 December

s 014

Partion eovered 73,143 56416

Portion not covered 32433 25713

Total 105,576 F2129

Fair value of collateral held 24 804 18451
Chinese maninland Impaired corporate
loans and advances

As al Asal

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

Portion covered 72,103 54,606

Portion not covered 31,080 24,869

Total 103,192 78,565

Fair value of collateral held 24,041 17502

Collateral of corporate loans and advances includes land, buildings. equipment and others.
The fair value of collateral was estimated by the Group with reference to the latest available
external valuations adjusted for recent experience in disposal of collateral as well as the
market conditions.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

¥l

15

(3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)
Credit risk {Continued)

Loans and advances {Continued)

Loans and advances rescheduled

Rescheduling (referring to loans and other assets that have been restructured and
rencgotiated) is a voluntary or, to a limited extent, court-supervised procedure, through
which the Group and a borrower andfor its guarantor, if any, rescheduled credit terms as a
result of deterioration in the borrower's financial condition or of the borrower's inability
to make payvments when due. The Group reschedules a non-performing loan only if the
korrower has good prospects. In addition, prior to approving the rescheduling of loans, the
Group typically requires additional guarantees, pledges andfor collateral, or the assumption
of the loan by a borrower with better repayment abality,

All rescheduled loens are subject to a surveillance period of six months. During the
surveillance period, rescheduled loans remain as non-performing loans and the Group
menitors the borrower's busingss operations and loan repayment patterns. After the
surveillance period, rescheduled loans may be wpgraded to “special-mention” upon review
if certain criteria are met. If the rescheduled loans fall overdue or if the borrower is unable
to demonstrate s repaviment ability, these loans will be reclassified to "doubtiul™ or below.
All rescheduled Ioans within surveillance period are determined to be impaired as at 31
December 2015 and 2014.

As at 31 December 2005 and 2014, within impaired [oans and advances, rescheduled loans
and advances that were overdue for T davs or less were insignificant,
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)

3 Credii risk { Continued)

A5 Leans and advances (Continied)

(4)  verdue loans and advances 1o customers

{1} Analysis of overdue loans and advances to customers by collateral type and overdue days

G roup As at 31 December 2015
Past due Past due
up b Past due 361 days= Past due

0 days  91-260 days Iyears over Jyears Total

Unsecured loans 17438 13.626 6,740 L3 40,517

Guansteed loans 19,002 2470 9287 4,328 B0, 087
Collateralised and caher secured loans

Inags secured by property and

other immovable asets 34465 1904 10,135 5H7 60851

— olber pledged boans 1513 4380 bl 419 8572

Total 12418 3,380 BAR 12,807 170,027

As at 3] December 2014
Past due Past due
up e Past due 261 days— Past due

O days  91-260 days Iyears over 3 years Tatal

Unsecured loans 15946 1,360 3038 3,018 19,362

Guzrsteed lozns 13988 13,760 &5 1167 38.508
Collateratized and ather secured loans

Invams secured by praperty and

other immevable assets 14,553 14,713 7483 5128 51877

— olber phedged boans L) L1119 383 383 6, 18%

Total 58301 35,952 19,697 14,894 125,936
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vi

15

4

{1}

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credii risk { Continued)

Loans and advances (Continied)

hverdue loans and advances Lo custonters (Contingied )

Analysis of overdue loans and advances to customers by collateral type and overdue days

{Continued)

Chinese mainland

Unsecured loans
(uarasteed lozns
Callaieratised and other secured loans
Iname secared by propedty and
other immovabile asmets

— atber pledped boans

Total

Unsscored loans
(Guamsteed loans
Collateralised and cher secured loans
loans secured by property and
other immeovabde asets
— olber pledged loans

Tetal

As al 31 December 2015

Past due
up b Past due

Fast due

3] days

Past due

0 days  91-260 days Syears over 3 years Tatal
16410 13470 6,586 1664 10139
16500 27455 9,268 3.5 14
Fi 140 19891 1 (i 5,337 A3.208

1043 413 Xi7s 413 1,
6 1 861 18,064 12,314 160, 340
Az al 31 December 2014
Past due Past due
up e Past due 261 days— Past due

U0 davs 91-3060 days Yyears over 3 years Talal
14843 T.157 28N b 1836
13,523 13654 57 LI 3633
ol 14.5% T3 5116 46,914

£ g2 168 360 4670
51415 36,200 18,362 14, 750 117,062
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

¥l

15

4

{ii)

R

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credii risk { Continued)

Loans and advances {Continged )

hverdue loans and advances Lo custonters (Contingied )

Analysis of overdue loans and advances by geographical area

Chinese mainland
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
Other countries and regions

Subtotal

Percentage

Less: total loans and advances o customers which
have been overdue for less than 3 months

Total loans and advances to customers which
have been overdue for more than 3 months

Individually assessed impairment allowance
for loans and advances 1o customers which
have been overdue for more than 3 months

As at 31 December

2015
169,340

5882
3,805

179.027
1.96%

(TXALE)

106,608

(49,286)

014
117062

T1.296
1578

125936
1. 48%

(38.3891)

67,545

{25.8860)

e from and placements with and loans to barks and other financial institutions

Banks and other financial institutions comprise those institumions in Chinese mainland, Hong

Kong, Macau, Tarwan and other countries and regions.

The Group monitors the credit risk of counterpartics by collecting and  analysing
counterparty information and establishing credit limits taking into account the nature, size

and credit rating of counterparties.

As at 31 December 2015, the majority of the balances of due from and placements with
and loans to banks and other financial institutions were with banks 1n Chinese mainland,
meluding policy banks, large-sized and medium-sized commercial banks (Note V.12 and
MNote V141 As at 31 December 2015, the majority of the credit ratings of the banks in Hong
Kong, Macau, Taiwan and other countries and regions were ahove A.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)

3 Credii risk { Continued)

AT Dbt securities

The tables below represent an analysis of the carryving value of debt securities by credit or

izsuer rating and credit risk charactenstic.

As at 31 December 2015

Lower
Unrated AAA AA A than A Total
legners in Chines: manland
— Crovermment - - 1 A09.T4H 1,731 - 1 ALL4T5
— Public sectors and
quasi-governments G310 = i - i 62203
— Palicy banks - - 4164 194,634 = 441,288
Financial institutions 62060 104 735 137,062 42,591 ot 1R T
— Corporale 144,391 12,142 12319 0867 278,719
— China Crrient 160,000 - - - - 160000
Subgotal 428774 1) L A4.215 B0, 746 02,858 2646753
lssuers in Hong Kong, Macaa,
Tatwan and othar
comnines and regions
— (rwemments: - 193,324 1256 #8372 346 139408
— Public sectors and
(uas -gaveErnments #49 FANE" 2,779 5112 50534
— Financial institutions 7042 4614 5518 73,998 25,7495 157,267
Corporale 10,974 4 15,588 3616 16,475 106,776
Subaotal Iﬂ.ﬁ_{-ﬁ 48,305 107,741 143,158 46,016 (4,075
Total™ 447 630 MBS 1572006 £33,904 148,874 3250828
T —— — . —— —
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BANK

OF CIHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)

3 Credit risk { Continued )

A7 Debt secarities (Continued)

The tables below represent an analysis of the carryving value of debt securities by credit or

izsuer rating and credit risk characteristic, (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014

Lower
Unrated AAA AA A than A Total
legners in Chines: manland
— Crovermment - - 289823 193] - 2TH
— Public sectors and
quasi-governments 42079 = o - i 42979
— Palicy banks - - 55401 3 88T - 420373
Financial institutions 42,839 44 516 111,345 51,858 7606
— Corporale 230,144 16624 14,238 13218 313424
— China Crrient 160,000 - - - - 160000
Subiotal 476,012 B 052454 53,901 65,076 2057941
lssuers in Hong Kong, Macaa,
Tatwan and othar
comnines and regions
— (rwemments: 51504 32,344 5,457 2840 193,154
— Public sectors and
(uas -gaveErnments 6499 508 14,356 534 - 45,617
— Financial institutions oy 5583 51478 4,596 14,081 138,055
Corporale 4430 15,541 3247 20,607 10574 £40,708
Subaotal 12,146 95,955 ] o] .30 750 437534
Todal ™ 458,158 99453 1164079 3], 208 92580 2495475
— —  S——

[LN]

The Groap's available for sale and held o matmnity debt securities ane individeally assessed for impairment.
The Groop's accumulned impairment ¢charges on avalable for sale and beld fo maturily debt secunbes as of
31 December 2015 amounied to BMB1AI0 million and RMBE1% million, respectively (31 December 2004
RMEBL 924 mullion and RMB218 muillion . The carrying valises af the available for sabe and held 10 matusity
debe secuntiss constdered impaired as w0 31 December 2015 were RMELS 14 mallion and RMEBE2% mallien,

respectively (31 December 2014: RMB3.256 million and RMB3 T million),
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3 Credit risk {Continued)

18 Derivatives
The risk-weighted assets for counterparty credit risk ("CCR"™) of derivatives of the Group
were calculated in accordance with the Capital Rules for Commercial Banks ( Provisionalf
and ather relevant regulations promulgated by the CBRC under the advanced capital
measurement approaches. For derivative transactions, risk-weighted assets for CCR include
risk-weighted assets for default risk, the risk-weighted assets for credit valuation adjustment
(“CVA") and the risk-weighted assets for central counterparties ("CCPs™).

The risk-weighted assets for the CCR of derivatives are as follows:

As al 3 December

2015 2014

Risk-weighted assets for default risk
Currency derivatives 74,872 20431
Interest rate derivatives 2,506 276
Equity derivatives 365 524
Commodity derivatives and other 3,547 3,128
81,290 35,859
Risk-weighted assets for CVA 45,385 26,620
Rizk-weighted assets for CCPs 1,208 2038
Total 127,887 64517

39 Repossesved assets

The Group obtained assets by taking possession of collateral held as security. Detanled
information of such repossessed assets of the Group s disclosed in Note V.22,
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

¥l

4.1

4.2

¥y

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Market risk
Ehverview

The Group s exposed to market risks from on-balance and off-balance businesses, that
may cause losses to the Group as a result of adverse changes in market prices of interest
rate, exchange rate, equities and commaodities. Market risk arises from open positions in the
trading and hanking books. Both the Group®s trading book and hanking book face market
risks. The wrading book consists of positions in financial instruments and commodities that
are held with trading intent or in order to hedge other elements of the trading book. The
banking book consisis of financial instruments not included in the trading book (including
those financial instruments purchased with surplus funds and managed in the investment
book).

The Board of Directors of the Group takes the ultimate responsibility for the oversight
of market risk management. including the approval of market risk management policics
and procedures and the determination of market risk tolerance. Senior management is
responsible for execution of such policies and ensuring that the level of market nisk is within
the risk appetite determined by the Board, while meeting the Group’s business objectives.

Market risk management departments are responsible for the ideatification, measure ment,
monitoring, control and reporting of market risks on a Group basis. Business units are
responsible for monitoring and reporting of market risk within their respective business
lines.

Merker risk measurenent fechnigues and Ninits
Trading book

For the purpose of market risk management 1n the trading book, the Group monitors trading
hook Walue at Risk (VaR) limits, stress testing results and exposure limits and tracks each
trading desk and dealer’s observance of each limit on a daily basis,

Val is used to estimate the largest potential loss arising from adverse markel movements in
a specific holding period and within a certain confidence level.

VaR is performed separately by the Bank and its major subsidiaries thal are exposed 1o
market risk, BOCHK (Holdings) and BOCL The Bank, BOCHK (Holdings) and BOCI
used a B level of confidence (therefore 1% statistical probability that actual losses could
ke greater than the VaR estimate) and a historical simulation model to caleulate the VaR
estimate. The holding period of the VaR calculations is one day. To enhance the Group's
market risk management, the Group has established the market risk data mart, which enabled
a group level trading book VaR calculation on a daily basis,
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

¥l

4.2

i1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)

Market risk (Continuwed)

Market risk measurement technigues and limits (Comtinged)
Trading book { Conrimied)

Accuracy and reliability of the VaR model is verified by daily back-testing of the VaR result
on trading book. The back-testing results are regularly reported to senior management.

The Growp utilises stress testing as an effective supplement to the trading book VaR
analysis. Siress testing scenarios are performed based on the characteristics of trading
transactions to simulate and estimate losses in adverse and exceptional marketl conditions,
To address changes in the fnancial markets, the Group enhances its market risk
identification capabilities by continuously modifying and improving the trading hook stress
testing scenarios and measurement methodologies in order to capture the potential impact to
transaction market prices stemming from changes in market prices and volatility,

The table below shows the VaR of the trading book by type of risk during the vears ended
31 December 2015 and 2014

Unit: USD million
Year ended 31 December
s 2004

Average High Ln;lr .-.h:rage _.-Iii-gh Low

The Bank’s trading VaR
Interest rate risk £.98 1332 i 4.50 743 1.65
Foreign exchange nisk 386 B4l .81 941 14.2% 350
Volatility nisk 0,30 081 i (ki 037 (03
Commodily nisk {171 1.32 1.0 (k44 1.32 001
Tatal of the Bank's trading
Val 7.91 14.41 4.09 124 14.93 537
—— R — —  ——— —— —

The Bank’s VaR for the vears ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 were calculated on the
Group’s trading positions, excluding those of BOCHK (Holdings) and BOCL

The reporting of risk in relation to bullion 15 included in foreign exchange risk above.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

¥l

4.2

i1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Market risk { Continued )

Market risk measurement technigues and limits (Comtinged)

Trading book { Conrimied)

BOCHEK (Holdingsh's irading
VaR ™

Interest rate nisk

Foreign exchange risk

Equity nisk

Commundily risk

Total BOCHEK (Heldings)'s
trading Valt

BOCTs trading Vol ™
Equity derivatives unit
Fixed income anit

Global commeodity unit
Total BOCIEs trading VaR

i BOCHK (Holdmgs)'s oubing VaR for the yvears ended 31 December 2005 and 2004 was calcolated
including iz subsidianes of Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited, BOC Credar Card (Intersational) Limined

Unit: USD million
Year ended 31 December

2015 014

Average EHizh Lew  Average High Low
167 4,85 1.65 313 5.0 211
170 2.52 1.13 1.75 251 1.24
{102 005 (.00 kM 0.0 001
{1,060 .02 1310 (h03 17 000
.7 4.95 2.30 300 4.52 200

. S e e ==
L35 22 (.50 LA 1.97 0.3l
.95 1.76 (.66 1.0 1.M 057
0.08 (132 {4 ;1% (1 iy
233 374 1.31 142 262 097

— — — [ —

and Chiye Banking Corporaion Limited

(i) BOCT momitors ite tading VaR for equily denvatives unil, fixed income amt and global commadity umit
separalely, which inclaide equity nisk. interest mite nsk, foreign exchange sk aod commodity nsk,

VaKl for each risk factor is the independently derived largest potential loss in a specific
holding period and within a certain confidence level due to Muctuations solely i that risk
factor. The individual VaRs did not add up to the total VaR as there was diversification

effect due to correlation amongst the risk factors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

¥l

4.2

(2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)

Market risk (Continuwed)

Market risk measurement technigues and limits (Comtinged)
Banking book

The banking book i= exposed to interest rate risk arising from mismatches in repricing
periods and inconsistent adjustments between the benchmark interest rates of assets and

liabilities, The Group takes on exposure to interest rate risk and fluctvations in market
interest rates will impact the Group’s financial position.

The Group assesses interest rate risk in the banking hook primarily through an interest rate
repricing gap analysis. [nterest rate repricing gap analysiz measures the difference between
the amount of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing linbilities that must be repriced
within certain periods. The Group employs the interest rate repricing gap analysis and takes
impact of the off-balance sheet business into consideration when calculating the indications
of interest rate risk sensitivity of carnings to changing interest rates. The interest rate gap
analysis is set out in Note V143 and also covers the trading book.

Sensitivity analysis on Net interest income

The Group performs sensitivity analysis by measuring the impact of a change in interest
rates on “Net interest income”. This analysis assumes that vield curves change in parallel
while the structure of assets and liabilities remains unchanged. and does not take changes
in customer bhehaviour, basis risk or any prepayment options on debt securities into
consideration. The bank calculates the change in net interest income during the year mainly
through the onalysis of interest rate repricing gaps, and made timely adjustment te the
structure of assets and liabilities based on changes in the market situation, and controlled the
fluctuation of net interest income within an acceptable level.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)
4 Market risk { Continued}
4.2 Market risk measurement technigues and limits (Comtinged}
(2)  Bamking book ( Contimieed)
The table below illustrates the potential impact of a 25 basis points interest rate move on the

net interest income of the Group. The actual situation may be different from the assumptions

used and it is possible that actual ovtcomes could differ from the estimated impact on net
interest income of the Group.

[ Decrease)fincrense in
Mel inferest income

Asoat 31 Dl:_r:emlﬂ-r

2015 2014
+ 25 hasis points parallel move in all vield curves {2,566) (1,171)
- 25 basis points paralle] move in afl yield curves 2566 1171

Given the nasre of demand deposits, their interest rae Muctuations are less volatile than
those of other products. Had the impact of yield curves movement on interest expenses
related to demand deposits been excluded, the met imterest income for the next twelve
months from the reporting date would increase or decrease by EMBIG.T16 million (20014
EMB9 532 million) for every 25 basis points upwards or downwards parallel shift,
respectively.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

¥l

44

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Market risk (Continued )
Fareign currvency risk

The Group conducts a subztantial portion of 1ts business in EMB, with certain transactions
derominated 1n USD, HEKD and. to a much lesser extent, other currencics. The major
subsidiary, BOCHK Group, conducts the majority of its business in HKI}, EMB and USD.
The Group endeavours to manage its sources and uses of foreign currencies to minimise
potential mismatches in accordance with management directives.

The Group manages its exposure to currency exchange risk through management of its net
foreign currency position and monitors its foreign currency risk on trading books using VaR
(MNote V1.4.2. Meanwhile, the Group performs currency rizk sensifivity analysis o estimate
the effect of potential exchange rate changes of foreign currencies against RMB on profit
before tax and equity.

The tables below indicate a sensitivity analysis of exchange rate changes of the currencies to
which the Group had significant exposure. The analysis calculates the effect of a reasonably
possible movement in the currency rates against RMB, with all other variables held
constant, on profit before tax and equity. A negative amount in the table reflects a potential
net reduction in profit before tax or equity, while a positive amount reflectz a potential
net increase. Such analysis does not take into account the correlation effect of changes in
different foreign currencies, any further actions that may have been or could be taken by
management after the financial reporting date. to mitigate the effect of exchange differences,
nor for any consequential changes in the foreign currency positicons.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
Y1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)
4 Market risk { Continued )

4.4 Foreign currency risk (Confinned)

Effect on profit before tax Effe<t on equity™®
As al As al Asal Asal
Change in 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Currency currency rale 018 2014 2015 2014
sD 1% (654) (503) {280) (236)
HEKD 1% 472 416 (1471) (1.230)
. Effect on ofher comprehensive income (imespective of income tax effect)

While the table above indicates the effect on profit before tax and equity of 1% depreciation
of USD and HED, there will be an opposite effect with the same amount if the currencies
appreciate by the same percentage,
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

¥l

45

il

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)
Market risk (Continued )
Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity risk on s available for sale histed equity securities. As at
31 December 2015, a 5 percentage variance in listed equity prices from the year end price
would impact the fair value of available for sale listed equity positions by REME29T million
(31 December 2014: RMB247 million). For those available for sale equities considered
impaired, the impact would be taken to the income statement. The Group is also exposed
to commodity risk, mamly related to bullion. The Group manages such risk together with
foreign exchange risk {Note VI.4.2).

Liguidity rizsk

The liguidity risk means the risk that a commercial bank fails to timely acguire adequate
funds at a reasonable cost to deal with repayment of debts at maturity, perform ather
payment obligations and meet other fund needs for normal business operation.

Ligquidity risk management policy and process

The Bank adopls a top-down hguidiny risk management process whereby each orpanisation
shall manage that of the immediate lower level. The institutions at various levels shall
manage their respective liguidity in light of the Head Office’s policy and authorisation,
monitor the influence of the changes in their assets and liabilities as well as liquidity risk
level on the Bank's liquidity.

The Group considers hiquidity risk management a significant component of asset-hability
management, and determines the size, structure and duration of assets and liabilities
consistent with the principle of overall balance between assets and liabilities. The Group
establishes 1= ligmdity portfolio to matigate hguidity nsk, and to minimise the gaps in the
amount and duration between the funding sources and the uses of funds. The Group refines
its financing strategy, taking inte consideration of various factors including customer risk
sensitivity, financing cost and concentration of funding sources. In addition, the Group
prioritises the development of customer deposits, dynamically adjusts the structure of fund
sources by market-oriented financing modes, including dve to banks and other financial
institutions, inter-bank borrowing and improve the diversity and stability of financing
sOurces,
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Y1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)
5 Ligudity risk (Continued)
5.0 Liguidity risk management policy and process (Continued)

Assels available to meet all of the liabilities and o cover outstanding loan commitments
include “Cash and due from banks and other financial institutions”, “Balances with
central banks”, “Placements with and loans to banks and other financial mstitutions™ and
“Loans and advances to customers, net™. In the normal course of business, a proportion
of short-term loans contractually repayable will be extended and a portion of shori-term
customer deposits will not be withdrawn upon maturity. The Group would also be able
to meet unexpected net cash outflows by entering into repurchase and reverse repurchase
tranzactions, and by selling securities and accessing additional funding sources.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)
5 Ligudity risk (Continued)
5.3 Undizscounted eash flows by contractiual matsurities

The tables below present the cazh flows of the Group of non-derivative hinancial assets and
financial linbilities and derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a net basis
and on a gross basis by remaining contractual maturities at the financial reporting date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flow, except for certain
derivatives which are disclosed at fair value (i.e. discounted cash flows basis). The Group
also manages its inherent short-term liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash
flows.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

¥l

53

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liguidity risk { Continued)

Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (Continsged)

Nonderivative cash flow
Cieti and diiw From baaks
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

¥l

53

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liguidity risk { Continued)

Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (Continsged)

Nonderivative cash flow
Cieti and diiw From buaks and

siter hasamil e iva
Halamwces with ceatral bnnlke
Flwemepds with aed bavms by bashs amd

oiter fizazoil maitotion
Fimateial sty af [ux valos

Heoagh profil o loss:
Lobasss aned aedvansces fo catomuis, 12
Fimancial imvedments

- wadible for mie

= teld 1o matmity

— |ouar and rearaties
Ceher oot atets

Total firancial aiety

[iez 2 buslks nad otber fimacial
(R TC

e b oot bamkn

Plicsmséats from baaks aed other Fracial
= ot

Lrar b0 vt oammtn

Bl dmad

{rber fimmocial hubifitien

Total fimancal labditie

[erieative cash flow
Derivative Fintoc] st o setihd
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

¥l

54

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)
Liguidity risk { Continued)
Off-balaree sheet Bems

The Group’s off-balance zheel financial instrumentz that commit it (o extend credit to
customers and other facilities are summarised in the table below at the remaining period
to the contractual maturity date. Financial guarantees are also included below at notional
amounts and based on the carlicst contractual maturity date. Where the Group is the lessee
under operating lease commitments, the fulure minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases, as disclosed 1n Note V. 405, are summarised in the table below.

As at 31 December 2015

Between

Liess than 1and 5 Over
1 year VEArs 8 vears Total
Loan commitments 1072470 255,368 63582 1,391,420

Guarantees, acceplances and

other financial facilities 1.241.276 347,950 120387 1318613
subiotal 313,746 603,318 202 960 3,210,033
Operating lease commitinents 6,313 13,040 2997 22,350
Capital commitments 17,160 47,596 3,280 68,036
Total 3.337.219 G631 054 200 246 3,300.419
— — e— —

As al 31 Décember 2004

Belween

Less than I and 3 Over
1 year VEArs 5 vears Total
Loan commitments *! 046,233 185343 63878 1195454

Guarantees, acceptances and

other financial facilities 1,466,528 415,277 e 2,084,757
Subtotal 2412,762 600,620 276829 3,290,211
Operating lease commitments 5,852 12,760 3484 22 006
Capital commitments 54,986 35497 7449 97,932
Total 2 AT3.600 648,377 237,062 3,410,239

i1y Incloded witkin “Loan commitments™ ane amounis relating 10 boan commilments and ondraon credil card
limits, refer to Mote V.40.7

7
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

VI FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
6 Fair value
6.0 Assets and liabilities measured ar fair value
Assels and lisbilaities measured at fair value are classified into the following three levels:

. Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilities,
including equity securities listed on exchange or debt instrument issued by certain
governments and certain exchange-traded derivative contracts.

*  Level 2 Valuation technique using inpuis other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, This
level includes the majority of the over-the-counter derivative contracts, debt securities
for which guotations are available from pricing services providers, traded loans and
issued structured deposits,

. Level 3 Valuation technique wsing inputs for the asset or liability that is not based on
abservable market data (unobservable inputs). This level includes equity investments
and debt instruments with significant unobservahle components,

The Group's policy 15 to recognize transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur,

The Group uses valuation techniques or counterparty quotations to determine the fair value
when it is unable to obtain open markel quotation in active markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques include bond prices. interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, equity and stock prices. volatilities, correlations, early repayment rates,

counterparty credit spreads and others, which are all cbservable and obtainable from the
open markel.

3
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

¥l

]

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair value { Continued )

6.0 Assets and liabilities measurved ar fair value (Comiinned}

For certain illiquid debt securities (mainly asset-backed securities), unlisted eguity (private
equity), over-the-counter structured derivatives transactions, unlisted funds and part of
investment properties held by the Group, the management obtains valuation quotations from
counterparties or uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value, including discounted
cash flow analysis, net asset value and market comparison approach, ete, The fair value of
these financial instruments may be based on unobservable inputs which may have significant
impact on the valuation of these financial instruments, and therefore, these assets and
liahilities have been classified by the Group as level 3. The unobservable inputs which may
have impact on the valuation include weighted average cost of capital, hguidity discount.
price to book ratio, rental growth, ete. As at 31 December 2015, fair value changes resulting
from changes in the unobservable inputs were not significant. Management determines
whether to make necessary adjustments to the fair value for the Group's level 3 financial
instruments by assessing the impact of changes in macro-economic factors, valuations by
external valuation agencies and other inputs, including loss coverage ratios. The Group has
established internal comtrol procedures to contral the Group's exposure to such financial
instruments,

9
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vi

]

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair value { Continued )

6.0 Aszets and liabilities measurved at fair valie { Continued)

Assels measured ai Fair value
through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
— Dbt securities
— Fund investments and other
— Loans
— Equity securities
Drerivative financial assets
Investment securities available
for sale
— Dbt securities
— PFund investments and other
— [Equity securitics
Investment properties

Liabilities measured at fair value
through profit or loss
Placements from banks and other
financial institutions at fair value
[ue 1o customers &t fair value
Short position in debt securities
Derivative financial Habilities

Asat 31 December 2005

o Lr\-‘el_l

1,342
5642

9338

134621

117498
3812
5,588

(8.113)
]

350
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Lewel 2

96,991

4218

68,615

911,30
s
2352
2170

(1.617)
(339911
{7,012}
(50,045

Level 3

954
13955
22,269
21,111

Total

09,864
5642
4218
9338

22,236

1,025,842
18482
30,200
23281

(1,617
{330,911
(7.012)
(60,1647
—
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Vi

]

L

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair value { Continued )

Assets and liabilities measuved art fair value (Continued)

Assels measured ai Fair value
through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
— Dbt securities
— Fund investments and other
— Loans
— Equity securities
Drerivative financial assets
Investment securities available
for sale
— Dbt securities
— PFund investments and other
— [Equity securitics
Investment properties

Liabilities measured at fair value
through profit or loss
Placements from banks and other
financial institutions at fair value
[ue 1o customers &t fair value
Short position in debt securities
Derivative financial Habilities

Asat 3 December 2004
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DO0O0O0oDOo0gOooOoo(Eeoesesl)
oOoOooodn

o Lr\-‘el_l

209
2211

15 888
11,959

34,702
2356
4.663

(8,191
mi—

3351
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Lewel 2 [.tﬂ-ri 3

81,226 850
4,144 :
36,008 -
676,457 979
314 9329
2616 19,269

2274 16,3719

15,776)
(317487
(7,224}

(32.543) -
—

Total

82285
2211
4044

15,888

47067

712,138
11,999
26,548
18,653

(5,776)
(317.487)
(7.224)

(40,7 34)
—
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{ Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise sated)

V1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)

6 Fair value {Continued )

6.0 Aszets and liabilities measurved at fair valie { Continued)

Reconcilintion of Level 3 [tems

Financal
fsels ol
Inir valu:
through
ot or Investment
[T Investmwni securities available for sale properties
Fumd
Dt Dbt investments Equity
securilics securibies ani olher scuritics
As o | Jamegy 3015 50 o7 .30 19,268 16,379
Total gains and hosses
— profat - il 16 381 474
— oty comprebensive inoome - 3 2,852 {148} -
Sales L] (250} {1,852 {1,063 -
Papchases T L1 3610 & 1893
Seitkments - i1
Transfers imofiout ofi Level 3, net - (458) - - 13
Oher changes - - - 2 s %l
As 3] December 2015 1531 54 13,055 ¥ L]

Ttal gainai{bosses) for the pericd incladed
e imcome stalement for eeelalliahilities
hekl = 31 December 315 - 2 (] {3 474

As i ] Janusry 004 m A% Ik 19,115 17383
Todal gaing ancl hosses

— profiter hss 7 ] (253 [ bard] 1052

— other comprehensive inoome - 0 55 {9985 -
Salis {7 (2,766 i1,565) {1953 {25700
Perchases 573 63 3087 1 T
Selibements
Transfers imodiont ofy Level 3, net (L7 TH
Transter to propey axd equipment - - - - (320}
Caler changes = = = . £
As @ 3] December X114 250 070 93X 1%, 264 16379
Ttal gainsi{bosaes) For e pericd incladed

in the Ecome stlement for saetalishilties

held & & 31 December X4 7 5 {314) 5T 381

S — — . — . S—
352
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

¥l

]

6.1

.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Fair value { Continued )
Assets and labilities measured ar fair value (Continued)

Total gains or losses for the years ended 31 Decermber 2015 and 2014 included in the
incorme stotement as well as total gains or losses included in the income statement relating
to financial instruments held as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 are presented in “Met trading
gains", “Met gains on financial investments™ or *Impairment losses on assets™ depending on
the nature or category of the related financial instruments.

Gains or losses on Level 3 assets and liabilities included in the income statement for the year
COMprise:

Year ended 31 December 2015 Year ended 31 December 2014

-H;i-lﬁ_lfr;e;tm l'ntn] "Rnlisd Llnmli;é Total

Total gains for ihe vear b1 42 1078 TR (£ 179

The assets and liahilities measured at fair value have been no significant transfers between
level 1 and level 2 during the vear ended 31 December 2015,

Financial assets and labilivies not weasared o fair value

Financial assets and liabilities not presented at their farr value on the statement of financial
position mainly represent “Balances with central banks”, “Due from banks and other
financial institutions”, “Placements with and loans {o banks and other financial institutions”,
“Loans and advances to customers, net”, "Financial investments”™ classified as held to
maturity and loans and receivables, “Due (o central banks”, “Due 1o banks and other
financial instingtions”, “Placemenis from banks and other financial instituwtions”, and “Due to
customers” measured at amortised cost, and "Bonds ssued™,

333
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

¥l

]

62

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair value { Continued )

Financial assets and labifities not mweasured o fair value (Comtinned)

The tables below summarise the carrving amounts and fair values of “Debt zecurities™
classified as held (o maturity and loans and receivables, and “Bonds issued” not presented at
fair value on the statement of financial position.

As at 31 December

Carryving value Fair value

2015 14 2015 2014

Financial assets

[Debt securities
Held to maturity 1,790,790 1. 424,463 1.835942 1430467
— Loans and receivables 330,332 276,559 332428 276,941
S S  —— | .

Financial liabilities

Bonds issued © 252,920 278045 Joq. 81 289,875

iy

(2

Drebt secunbies clasialed o beld to matany and loans and receivablbes

The China Omnent Bond and Special Purpose Treasury Bomd beld by the Bank are non-negobiable. As there
are no observable market prices of yields reflecung am's length raneactons of o comparable ee amd
temor, the fair value 12 determuiped based on stated interest rade of the instrumenis,

Fair valees of other debt secunties are based on market prices or broker/dealer price quotations. Where
this information is ped ovielable, the Bank will perform valeation by referming to prices from valuation
servioe providers of on the basis of discounted cash flows models, Valuation parameters inclisde market
mnlenest rales, expected Mamne default mies, prepayenent rtes aml market lgurdity. The far values of BKMB
bomids are nunnly determined based on ibe valustson resulls provuded by Cluna Central Depostory Trost &
Cleanng Co.. Ll

Bonds iswed
The aggregate Tair valves ame calculaled bazed on queded market prices. For those bonds where quoned

market prices ane nod avalable, o discounted cash flow model is osed based on a cument yield curve
appropriale for the remaining term o malurity,
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

¥1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)

6 Fair value { Continued )

6.2 Financial asseis and liabifities not measured a faiv value (Comtinued}
The 1ables below summarise the three levels” fair values of “Debt securities” classified as
held to maturity and loans and receivables (excluding the China Orient Bond and Special
Purpose Treasury Bond), and “Bonds issued™ not presented at fair value on the statement of

financial position.

Asat 31 December 2015

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial asscis
Dbt securities
— Held to maturity 82,146 1,753,704 = 1,835 042
- Lpans and receivables 129812 116 120028
Financial liabilities
Bonds issued - 204 821 - 294,821

Asat 31 December 2014

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial asseis
Drebt securities
— Held to maturity 90,276 1,340,139 52 1. 430467
— Lipans and receivables = T4,386 55 T4.441
Financial liabilities
Bonds issued 23,365 266,510 E 284 875

Onher than the above, the difference between the carrying amounts and fair values of those
financial assets and liabilities not presented at their fair value on the statement of financial

position are insignificant. Fair value 15 measured using a discounted cash {low model.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

¥l

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Capital management
The Group fallows the principles below with regard to capital management:

] Adequate capital and sustainable development. Implement the Scientic Cutlook
on Development thoroughly: follow the lead of the strategic planning of the Group
development: and maintain the high quality and adequacy of capital as to meet
regulation requirements, support business growth, and advance the sustainable
development of the scale, quality and performance of the business in the Group,

*  Allocation optimisation and benefit augmentation. Allocate capital properly by
prioritising the asset businesses with low capital occupancy and high comprehensive
income, o steadily improve the efficiency and return of capital, achieving the
reciprocal matchup and dynamic equilibrium among risks, assets and returns,

*  Refined management and capital level improvement. Optimise the eapital management
system by sufficiently identifying, calculating, monitoring, mitigating, and controlling
various types of risks; Incorporate capital restraints into the whole process of product
pricing, resource allocation, structural adjustments, performance evaluation, efe.,
ensuring that the capital employed is commensurate with the related risks and the level
of risk managenent.

Capital adequacy and regulatory capital are moenitored by the Group’s management,
employing techniques based on the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee, as
implemented by the CBRC, for supervisory purpeses. The required information is filed with
the CBRC on a quarterly basis,

The Group’s capital adequacy ratios are calculated in accordance with the Capiral Reles
for Commercial Banks {Provisionall and other relevant regulations promulgated by the
CBRC. With the approval of the CBRC, the Group adopts the sdvanced capital measurement
approaches, which include Foundation Internal Hatings-based Approach for corporate
exposures, Internal Ratings-based Approach for retail exposures, Internal Models Approach
for market risk and Standardised Approach for operational risk. For risk exposures not
covered by the advanced approaches. the corresponding portion shall be caleulated adopting
non-advanced approaches.

As a Systemically Important Bank, the Group’s capital adequacy ratios are required o meet
the lowest requirements of the CBRC by the end of 2018, that 1=, the common equity ter |

capital adequacy ratio, tier | capital adequacy ratio and capital adequacy ratio should be no
less than 8.505%, 9.504% and 11.50%, respectively.
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

¥l

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)
Capital management { Confinued )

The Group's regulatory capital is managed by its capital management related departments
and consists of the following:

+ Common equity tier 1 capital, including common shares, capital reserve, surplus
reserve, peneral reserve, undistributed profits, eligible portion of minority interests and
others;

. Additional tier 1 capital, including additional tier | capital instruments issued and
related premium and eligible portion of minority interests;

. Tier 2 capital, including tier 2 capital instruments issued and related premium, excess
loan loss provisions and eligible portion of minority interests.

Goodwill, other intangible assets (except land use rights), investments in common equity
tier | capital of financial institutions with controlling interests but outside of the scope of
regulatory consolidation, sigmiicant minority capital investment in lier 2 capital of financial
institutions that are outside of the scope of regulatory consolidation and other deductible
iems are deducted from common equity tier 1 and tier 2 capital to derive ai the regulatory
capital,

The table below summarises the Group's commaon eguity tier 1 capital adequacy ratio, tier 1
capital adequacy ratio and capital adequacy ratio'" caleulated in secordance with the Capital

Rules for Commercial Bamks (Provisional) and other relevant regulations promulgated by
the CBRC,

357
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

V1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)

T Capital management { Continued )

Common equity tier 1 capital adequacy ralio
Tier 1 capital adegquacy ratio
Capital adequacy ratio

Composition of the Group's eapital base

Common equily tier 1 capital
Commaon shares
Capital reserve
Surplus reserve
General reserve
Undistributed profits
Eligible portion of minority interests
Other'®!

Regulatory deduciions

Goodwill

Other intangible assets (except land vse rights)

Gains on sales related 10 securitisation transactions

Direct or indirect investments in own shares

Reserve relating 1o cash-flow hedge items
oot measured at fair value

Investments in common equity tier 1 capital of
fimancial institutions with controlling interests
but cutside the scope of regulatory consolidation

Net common equity fier 1 capital

Additional tier 1 capital
Preference shares and related premium
Eligible portion of minority interests

MNet tier 1 capital

Tier 2 capital
Tier 2 capital instruments issued and related premium
Excess loan loss provisions

Eligible portion of minority interesis

Met capital

Risk-weighted assels

358
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As al
31 December
2018

11.10%
12.07%
14.06%

1.197. 868
294 388
139,572
111,207
179,416
451,585

29,016
(7.316)

{15.568)
()
(5,369)
£ 2044)
(85

16

{9.829)

-

J82,300

103,159
99,714
31445

285,450

212,937
153,266
45,8368
13,832

1498306

10,654,081
E—

Asx al
31 December
2014

10.61%
11.35%
3875

1 068,76
188731
130,116

95.630
150,24
383213

27329
{15.604)

(14,3173
(%6
(4.554)
(131)
(25)

10

{95213

A154,389

72,923
71,745
1178

427312

250,714
166,368
67.299
17,047

1,378 026

9,934,105
E——
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BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

{Amount in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ( Continued)
Capital management { Confinued )

i1y When cobculaing the n.:u.pi.l;! ;ﬁ:qu.i:}' mtios, Bank of China Gpo-np Investment Limited (BCHCG
Invesemeni™), Bank of Chana Insurance Company Limited (“BOC Insurance”), Bank of China Growp
Insarance Company Limed ("BOCG Insorance”) and Bank of Clann Group Life Assurance Company
Lemuted (“BOCG Life") were excloded from the scope of consolidation in accordance with requirements of
e CERC,

Xy This mainly represented exchange differcnces from the translation of foreign operations and fair valve
gaims losses) on available for sale financial asseis,

Insurance risk

Insurance contracts are mainly sold in Chinese mainland and Hong Kong denominated in
EME and HKD. The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured
event occurs and the uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claim. This risk is inherently
random and, therefore, unpredictable. The Group manages its portiolio of insurance risks
through its underwriting sirategy and policies, portfolio management techniques, adequate
reifisurance arangements and proactive claims handling and processing, The waderwriting
strategy attempls to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of type
and amount of risk and industry.

For a portfolic of insurance contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing
and provistoning, the principal risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is
that the acteal claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of the insurance
liabilities. This could occur because the frequency or severity of the claims and benefits are
greater than estimated. Insurance events are random and the acwal number and amount of
claims and benefits will vary from year to vear from the level established using statistical
techmiques.

Uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and premium receipts for long-
term life insurance contracts arises from the unpredictability of long-term changes in overall
levels of monality. In order to assess the uncertainty due to the mortality assumption and
lapse assumption, the Group conducted mortality rate studies and policy lapse studies in
erder to determine the appropriate assumptions.
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2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
13.05 13.91 17.36 19.76 20.20
11.94 12.06 14.05 16.24 18.32
12.34 12.67 15.90 17.18 19.22
12.33 13.91 17.36 19.35 18.36
2012 2013 2014 2015 UFJ
2011 100
2015 12 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016
19.15 18.29 18.34 17.57 17.38 16.83
18.36 17.66 17.13 17.17 16.65 16.41
18.72 17.91 17.56 17.37 16.94 16.66
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16.26 2016
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Independent Auditors Report

22/F, CITIC Tower
1Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the shareholders of Bank of China Limited

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bank of China Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries set out on
pages 154 to 359, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank and its
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
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with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
30 March 2016
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